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Meeting of the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee on 31 
October 2019 at 11am, in Conference Room 2, Police HQ, Ripley. 
 
AGENDA:  Reports attached 
ITEM SUBJECT 

 
Presented 

by 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

.  
CHAIR 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY) 
 

ALL 

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC 
HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2019  
 

CHAIR 

4  REVIEW OF ACTIONS  
 

CHAIR 

5  FORWARD PLAN  
 

CHAIR 

CORE BUSINESS  
 
6  INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
 

6A 
 

Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring CHAIR 

6B Internal Audit Progress Report   
- Property Management 
- Core Financials  
- Payroll  
- Data Quality Fieldwork  

 

INTERNAL AUDIT  

6C Strategy for IA and IA Plan  
 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

7 EXTERNAL AUDIT  
 

 

7A Audit Committee Briefing  
 

EXTERNAL 
AUDITOR  

7B External Audit Plan EXTERNAL 
AUDITOR 

8 RISK 
 

 

 None  
 

 

9 INTERNAL CONTROL AND GOVERNANCE  
 

 

9A HMIC Value for Money - VERBAL 
 

SIMON ALLSOP 

9B  Crime Data Integrity Update  - VERBAL 
 

DCC SWANN 

10 FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 

 

10A Year End Accounting Arrangements & Accounting 
Policies 

SIMON ALLSOP 



 
10B Financial Monitoring and Planning 2019/20 

 
SIMON ALLSOP 

10C Budget and Financial Planning 2020/2021 
onwards 
 

ANDREW DALE / 
SIMON ALLSOP 

11A ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 

 

11A Cyber Attacks - VERBAL 
 

ABBY TURNER 

12 MEMBER UPDATE 
 

 

12A JARAC member Self Assessment  
 

SUE 
SUNDERLAND 

END OF THE PUBLIC MEETING 
CLOSED SESSION  

 
 HMICFRS UPDATE 

 
DCC SWANN 

DEVELOPMENT  
 

 Anti Fraud and Corruption  
 

BARCLAYS 
BANK 
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MINUTES of a meeting of the JOINT AUDIT, RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 
held in the Old Reception Room, Police HQ on 13 December 2019 
 

P R E S E N T 
 

Ms S Sunderland (in the Chair)  
Ms L Gelderd 
Mr L Harrold 
Mr B Mellor 
 
OPCC Present:   Mr A Dale, Mr K Gillott, Mrs E Kelly 
Constabulary Present: Mr S Allsop, 
Internal Audit:   Mr M Lunn  
 
66/19 APOLOGIES 
 

66.1 PCC Dhindsa, CC Goodman, Mr D Peet, Mr D Morgan, Mr A 
Jenkinson, DD Swann, Mr H Rohimun. 

 
67/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  

67.1  No declarations declared.  
 

 RESOLVED: 
1. To note that no members declared any personal or prejudicial interests.  

 
68/19 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC HELD ON 31 October 

2019 
 

68.1 The wording of minute 57.2 was queried and it was agreed that it be 
amended as follows:  “The collaboration audit on projected 
underspends would be circulated to members under separate cover.  
Extra assurances would be needed as the assurance gained from this 
audit was limited.” 

 
68.2 Members felt that minute 57.7 did not fully detail all discussions that 

took place and asked that it be amended to include: that members 
would like to see improved progress updates and that revised target 
dates are included on the tracker.  

 
68.3 It was noted that Mr Rohimum had been incorrectly titled, to be 

amended. 
 
68.4 Following the revisions as noted above, the minutes were noted and 

confirmed by the Committee.  
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 RESOLVED: 
1. The Minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 31 October 2019 

were confirmed as a true record by the Committee.  
 

69/19 REVIEW OF ACTIONS 
 
69.1  The actions were noted by the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: 
1. The actions and updates were noted.  

 
70/19  FORWARD PLAN 
 

70.1 Members felt that the action under ISA 260 was the same as the action 
reflected under the Annual Audit Letter and therefore requested that the 
first be deleted.  It was noted that the discussion around audit fees had 
not yet taken place, but a meeting had been arranged to take place in 
January, so an update for the February meeting of the JARAC would be 
likely.  

 
RESOLVED 
1. The Forward Plan was noted.  

 
71/19  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 

71.1 Mr Lunn presented the Progress report and provided an update on the 
summary of internal audit work to date as detailed at para 2.  

 
71.2 The final audit report for the Budget Control and Savings was presented 

to the Committee.   
 
71.3 Ms Sunderland was comfortable with the opinion and referred to the 

detailed management response which was helpful. Ms Sunderland 
though, queried whether timelines would be helpful and provide some 
reassurance to members.  

 
71.4 Mr Dale replied by saying that the MTFP had been implemented and 

the savings programme is a rolling programme, therefore in many 
respects the recommendations had been implemented, however, it 
would take time to deliver and bridge the budget gap. This was 
accepted by the committee, however, they questioned whether it was a 
vehicle that had been implemented which gives no sense of assurance 
that this will fix the funding gap, they argued that, if there were 
timescales it would be tangible and measurable.  

 
71.5 Mr Dale and Mr Allsop advised that different scenarios had been 

developed dependent upon future announcements.  The settlement is 
awaited and there is and will remain much uncertainty until the 
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settlement has been announced.  Both Mr Dale and Mr Allsop will 
provide further detail in the closed session to provide the JARAC with 
confidence that there are mechanisms in place in readiness for a quick 
reaction to the announcement.  

 
71.6 Mr Lunn commented that this recommendation may not have an end 

date, but may continue indefinitely and with that in mind, members may 
wish to monitor and track this via a separate tracker.  

 
71.7 Mr Mellor referred to 4.2 and noted that the financial handbook had not 

been updated since 2012.  Mr Dale reflected that the Handbook would 
not have changed during that time, however, members suggested that, 
even if there are no changes to the Handbook there should be some 
narrative included in the Statement of Assurance every year which was 
agreed.  

 
71.8 Mr Harrold referred to the limits set out in para 4.2 and questioned 

whether these are reviewed – this then lead to some discussion about 
the meaning of the recommendation, which was interpreted differently 
by Members and Officers.  It was agreed that Mr Lunn provide some 
clarity on the meaning of this and report back to the meeting.  

 
71.9 Mr Mellor questioned why the Agresso system is not updated with the 

budget information until month 3 of the financial year.  Mr Dale advised 
that due to resourcing, it would not be possible to load the Agresso 
System with the budget information during month 1 and even if the 
budget was uploaded to the system it would not be monitored until 
month 4.  Discussion continued and both Mr Dale and Mr Allsop were 
able to reassure members that the timescale for uploading the budget 
was a good working model with no risk.   

 
71.10 Mr Mellor queried why there were so many budgets that were managed 

by the Strategic Finance team rather than being managed by a Head of 
Department which would provide accountability to the system. Mr Dale 
and Mr Allsop were able to provide reassurance that this is the case 
and there is an accountable Manager within each business area.  

 
71.11 Members reflected on the Limited Assurance in this area and asked if 

there would be any follow up in the new year.  It was agreed that 
Internal Audit follow up before the end of March to provide the 
committee with reassurance for the future.  

 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
1. The committee could not take assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the functions of Budget Control and 
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Savings were consistently applied and effective.  The committee were 
pleased to see the management response and look forward to the 
Internal Audit Follow up before the end of the financial year.  
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JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 
 
REVIEW OF ACTIONS  
 

Agenda 
Item  

Report Title and Action Required Responsible 
Officer 

Progress 

Meeting of the JARAC held on 31 October 2019 
 Forward Plan 

Members to agree whether to add a budget planning meeting to the forward 
plan after the meeting in December. 
 

 
Committee 
Members 

 
Members to agree and 
feedback 

 Internal Audit  
 
Regional Overspends 
Mr Dale provided some reassurance that it was not as bad as seen on the 
audit, however, Mr Dale would speak to the regional team and feedback to the 
response to members. 
 
Members noted that the Data Quality Audit had been deferred (Appendix A2).  
Members asked when this had been deferred to and were informed that 
discussions are taking place and an update would be available for members 
at the meeting of the JARAC in December. 
 
It was noted and agreed that the Budgetary Control Audit would be available 
for the next meeting of the Committee in December.  This would be added to 
the Agenda. 
 
Members noted that there would be seven audits due to conclude and be 
presented to the meeting of the Committee in February.  To allow members 
time to read and digest such a large number, members asked if these could 
be distributed earlier.  Mr Lunn agreed that as and when Audits are finalised 
these can be distributed to members (ONLY). 
 

 
 
 
Mr Dale 
 
 
 
Mr Allsop 
 
 
 
 
Mrs Kelly 
 
 
 
Mr Lunn 

 
 
 
Verbal update will be 
provided at the meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting took place on 13 
December 
 
 
Ongoing 
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 Audit Committee Briefing 
 
Members discussed whether they should request feedback and responses to 
key questions for the future.  It was agreed that this would be useful moving 
forward and considering the key questions, members requested further 
information on the Police Covenant for the next meeting of the Committee. 
 

 
 
Mr Dale 
 
 

 
 
For the February meeting 

 Annual Audit Letter 
 
Members queried whether discussions had taken place about whether there 
would be any additional audit fees. Unfortunately, this had not happened to 
date, however, it was hoped that feedback would available for members at the 
next meeting of the Committee in December, to be added to the agenda. 
 

 
 
Mr Dale/ Mr 
Allsop/ Mr 
Rohimum 

 
An update for the 
February meeting is 
anticipated.  

 Force Risk Management 
 
Cyber Attack on Forensic Services.  Members were surprised that the scoring 
of this risk was not higher.  DCC Swann advised that Derbyshire are linked to 
a national policing network which has a structure of security arrangements 
and all forces receive updates from the national centre on risk threats.  To 
provide members with further information on this, it was agreed that an update 
be presented to a future meeting. 
 

 
 
DCC Swann 

 
 
On the agenda 

 Fraud Corruption Work Programme 
 
Add update to a future meeting agenda.  
 

 
 
Mrs Kelly 

 
Added 
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OCTOBER REPORT  NOTES 
 Internal Audit (IA) Progress Report   
 Force Risk Management  
 OPCC Risk Management  
 HMIC Activity  
 Annual Audit Letter   
 GDPR Update  
 Financial Monitoring and Planning  
 HMICFRS – Data Integrity  
 HMICFRS – PEEL Integrated assessment  
 HMIC FRS – Fraud Report   
 The Impact of Brexit   
 JARAC Member Self Assessment   
FEBRUARY   
 Internal audit Progress Report   
 Strategy for IA and IA Plan   
 External Audit (EA) Plan   
 HMIC Value for Money   
 Year End Accounting Arrangements & 

Accounting Policies  
 

 Financial Monitoring and Planning  
 HMIC Activity  
 JARAC Member Self Assessment   
 Fraud and Corruption – Update Barclays  
MAY   
 IA Progress Report   
 Annual Report   
 EA Progress Report  
 EA Fees   
 Force Risk Management  & Mid Year Review   
 OPCC Risk Management   
 PCC Annual Governance Statement  
 CC Annual Governance Statement   
 Financial Monitoring and Planning  
 HMIC Activity  
 Fraud & Corruption Cyber Attack on Forensic 

Services 
 

JULY   
 JARAC Terms of References  
 JARAC Meeting dates  
 JARAC Annual Report   
 IA Progress Report   
 EA Report ISA360  
 Draft Letters of Representation   
 Statement of Accounts – CC / PCC  
 HMIC Activity  
 Financial Monitoring and Planning  
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 Fraud / Anti-corruption / Fraud corruption 

Work Programme 
 

 Data Quality  
OCTOBER   
 IA Progress Report   
 Force Risk Management  
 OPCC Risk Management  
 HMIC Activity  
 Annual Audit Letter  
 Financial Monitoring and Planning   
 Annual Audit Letter   

 Fraud & Corruption   
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   Audit / Recommendation Priori
ty 

Recommendations Audit 
Confirme

d 
Implemen

ted 

Comments  
Contact Last 

update
d 

REF 
NO.  

Agreed 
Implemen

tation 
Date 

Manager 
Confirmed 

Implementatio
n 

Manager 
Confirme

d Not 
Implemen

ted 

Update 

  02/19 
5B A 

GDPR Review  - One P1 recommendation  
Abbey T   Implementation of Action Plan  

The organisation should seek to 
complete the implementation of its 
action plan.  
We acknowledge the approach 
being taken to update the 
Information Asset Register and this 
should look to be completed as 
soon as is practical. It will require 
management commitment, 
adequate resource to implement 
and oversight of management to 
ensure it is implemented in a timely 
manner.  
We also acknowledge the ongoing 
drive to embed the process for 
completing the Data Privacy Impact 
Assessments. 
 

P1 Septem
ber 
2019  

Accepted    The organisation should seek to complete the 
implementation of its action plan.  
We acknowledge the approach being taken to 
update the Information Asset Register and this 
should look to be completed as soon as is 
practical. It will require management commitment, 
adequate resource to implement and oversight of 
management to ensure it is implemented in a 
timely manner.  
We also acknowledge the ongoing drive to 
embed the process for completing the Data 
Privacy Impact Assessments. 
 
The implementation of the Data Protection 
Reform Implementation plan is continuing to be 
progressed following the Mazars audit.  Areas of 
key progress include the driving forward of the 
requirement for Data Privacy Impact 
Assessments across the organisation by 
engaging with relevant business leads. The Data 
Protection Team continue to provide service and 
support as required. The Constabulary’s 
Information Asset Register has been subject to 
significant review and revision and the content is 
currently being updated.  
 
The Constabulary was also pleased to invite the 
Information Commissioner’s Office (IC) in to 
undertake a consensual audit to assess its 
processing of personal data under the new data 
protection obligations and to consider their 
subsequent feedback to identify how we can 

JARAC – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION MONITORING  
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improve our management of data. This audit took 
place between 26 and 28 March 2019. 
 
The purpose of the audit is to provide the IC and 
the Constabulary with an independent assurance 
of the extent to which the Constabulary is 
complying with the legislation. 
 
There are four levels of assurance which are; 
‘very limited’, ‘limited’, ‘reasonable’ and ‘high’.   
 
The IC has found that the Constabulary reaches 
a level of ‘reasonable’ assurance for the scope 
areas of Governance and Accountability and 
Data Sharing meaning that there is a reasonable 
level of assurance that processes and 
procedures are in place and are delivering data 
protection compliance. In respect of the Security 
of Personal Data the IC has found that the 
Constabulary reaches a ‘high’ level of assurance 
that processes and procedures are in place and 
are delivering data protection compliance.  
 
An Audit Action Plan is in place alongside the 
Data Protection Reform Implementation Plan, 
which builds on existing good practices and 
addresses any gaps identified from the new data 
protection obligations. The majority of the actions 
are straight forward and many are already 
underway.   
I can advise that progress continues to be made 
in respect of the Audit Action Plan following the 
IC’s consensual audit earlier this, and the Data 
Protection Reform Implementation Plan. Whilst 
much has been achieved, there are areas which 
we need to work on following the inspections, this 
work forms part our Continuous Improvement 
Plan. A detailed update will be presented to the 
JARAC by the Deputy Data Protection Officer, 
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Thursday 31 October 2019. 
 
January 2020  
 
Further to our presentation in October 2019 I can 
confirm that the audit recommendations are not 
new issues for implementation, they are things 
which are already embedded in Force which 
require review and improvement. 
 
I can advise that any residual improvements 
which remain outstanding will form part of our 
Continuous Improvement Plan for 2020/21 and 
that both the Implementation Action Plan and ICO 
Audit Action Plan will be closed down 
accordingly. 

  02.19 Recruitment – Two P2 recommendations  
Phil M  5B C Retaining Documentation 

Retained HR should carry out 
sample tests on candidates that 
have been recruited to give 
assurance that the Service Centre 
are carrying out the process 
accordingly.  
There should be further guidance 
provided within the Service Centre 
around the importance of the pre-
offer stage.  
Guidance and refreshers should be 
provided to all staff involved in the 
recruitment process, emphasising 
the importance of retaining 
documentation on e-recruitment. 
 

P2  
 
 
 
Dec 18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 19 

Accepted    The Service Centre will carry out monthly audit 
checks of the recruitment process and report 
back findings of these to both forces as part of 
the Client Liaison function.  
An offer and pre-employment checks has been 
created across all employee types to ensure each 
stage of the process is completed consistently 
and correctly before the vacancy is achieved.  
The Drug tests results are supplied on long lists 
of candidates, so these are saved locally and 
obtained by the supplier. But the result should be 
updated within E-Recruitment.  
The team will receive additional training to ensure 
they are adhering to process.  
The process around retaining documentation was 
reviewed in Oct/Nov and training has been 
provided to the Recruitment Team regarding this.  
The new checklist for pre-employment 
documentation was introduced in January 2019 
and is now being utilised by the team and signed-
off by Team Leaders. 
Plans are underway to standardise and automate 
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contract creation.  This will further help to reduce 
the risk of errors as contracts will be 
automatically created. 
The Service Centre has a robust process in place 
for carrying out regular audits.  These audits 
ensure that the correct information is entered in 
Gateways when new records are created or 
records are amended. 
 
A new contract checklist has also been created 
and has been in use since January 2019.  A 
checklist is completed for every candidate to 
ensure the contract has been created correctly, 
the correct documents have been up loaded and 
the HR system has been updated correctly.  
Checklists are signed off by another colleague, 
 
A decision log has also been created to record all 
decisions where any aspect of the recruitment 
process has been bypassed/amended or not 
followed.  This log records the justification of the 
decision as is signed off at Team Leader level. 
 

Phil M   5c Performance Reporting 
The Force should determine targets 
and performance standards which it 
expects of the Transactional 
Services team. Following this, 
regular reporting should be carried 
out against this.  
Performance reporting in respect of 
recruitment should be included as a 
regular item on the board reports. 
 

P2 Jan 19 Accepted    Performance of the recruitment area is always 
reported to the HRSC Management Board.  
Whilst performance is not a separate item on the 
agenda it has always been included as part of the 
performance data in the Manager Board Report.  
There are further plans to develop reporting to 
both forces in the future so that a quarterly 
Information pack is provided detailing relevant 
performance data. 
Further work is underway in conjunction with the 
E-Recruitment Sytem supplier to develop a 
dashboard for users which will provide up-to-date 
and detailed analysis of recruitment activity. 
The recruitment Dashboard is still work in 
progress, however, a first draft of the diversity 
reporting module was shown by the supplier is 
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September 2019.  Further work is being carried 
out by the supplier on the module after feedback 
from forces.  In the meantime, the HRSC will 
continue to report on performance via the 
Derbyshire/Leicestershire Support Service Board. 
 

  07/19 Fleet Management  - Two P2 Recommendation  
Terry 
Hitchcock 

 4.2 Fleet Service History Access 
The Force should work with the 
County to agree how best it secures 
assurance that its vehicle fleet is 
being maintained in accordance 
with the required service schedules 
managed by DCC. This could be 
linked to the agreement of 
performance measures referred to 
in 4.3 below 
 

P2 October 
2019 

Accepted     The scheduling of routine inspections and 
servicing is undertaken by DCC direct with 
operational users, although no show and 
outstanding inspections are reported for action to 
the Fleet Admin team we will work with DCC to 
improve the visibility of work completed to 
evidence contract compliance.   
Since the introduction of a new fleet management 
software by DCC they have experienced a 
number of significant issues, one being that we 
have lost direct access to their system to monitor 
daily VOR status, DCC are working to resolve 
this with their IT Department.    
 
Direct access onto the DCC fleet management 
system is now available and allows the download 
of reports and live review of all work in progress 
which can be filtered.  
This is used on a routine basis now to monitor 
VOR and to identify / resolve maintenance 
queries.   
 
20-01-2020 – DCC progressing more 
improvements to the online data available and bi-
weekly meetings with DCC are scheduled to  
monitor and address any VOR issues.  
 

  4.3 Performance Measures 
Performance measures should be 
established and utilised to monitor 
arrangements with the County in the 
maintenance of the Force’s vehicle 

P2 October 
2019 

Accepted    DCC are currently working on a solution to 
provide VOR and overall performance reports 
associated with the vehicle maintenance contract 
in accordance with our contract requirements.  It 
is proposed that this in addition to high level KPIs 
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fleet. on vehicle accidents be incorporated into the 
Fleet Strategy and presented at future Transport 
Steering Group meetings. 
 
DCC have now resolved the IT issues around the 
VOR and performance reports and these are now 
available in line with contract requirements from 
DCC, they are currently finalising online access 
to these with date parameters.  
 
The Fleet Strategy is still to be updated, the aim 
is for this to completed and presented to the next 
Transport Steering Group in October 2019. 
 
20-01-2020 - This is still work in progress, the 
DCC system has improved allowing more 
accurate data on fleet availability and further 
updates to the Fleet Strategy are being made.  
 

Annual Audit Letter Recommendations  
   Formally assess the need to value 

its larger specialised assets 
frequently to take account of build 
costs outside of the five year cycle; 
and  

      Mr Dale and Mr Allsop will update the JARAC at 
the meeting 

   Commission a formal impairment 
review from its valuer to determine 
whether there has been a material 
movement in values year on year.  

      Mr Dale and Mr Allsop will update the JARAC at 
the meeting 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

6B 
 

JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE 
COMMITTEE  

 
 

REPORT 
TITLE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/2019 

REPORT BY MARK LUNN  
DATE 20 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To receive a progress report from the internal auditors on their work to date 
during 2019/20 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Progress Report (Annex A) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. That the Committee takes assurance that the internal audit plan addresses relevant 

matters and is being delivered as expected, as detailed in the progress report. 

ii. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the functions detailed below are suitably designed, 

consistently applied and effective: 
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CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale  

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
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OVERVIEW 

1.1 As part of the management of the internal audit process, a progress report is 
provided to each meeting of the JARAC.  Attached at APPENDIX A to this report is 
the latest progress report dated October 2019. 
 

1.2 Members are requested to review the covering progress report and the follow up of 
Audit Recommendations. 
 

1.3 The committee can consider if it can take assurance that the controls upon which 
the organisation relies to manage each of the audit activities are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective as detailed in each of the Appendices to the 
report. 

 
1.4 The report will be presented by a representative from Mazars.  JARAC Members 

will then have the opportunity to question the internal auditor. 
 
1.5 There is an opportunity to review the content of the audit plan to ensure it continues 

to be fit for purpose.
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01  Introduction 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC) as to the progress in respect of the Operational Plan 

for the year ended 31st March 2020 that was considered and approved by the JARAC at its meeting on 13th February 2019.   

1.2 The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are responsible for ensuring that the organisations have proper internal control and 
management systems in place.  In order to do this, they must obtain assurance on the effectiveness of those systems throughout the year, and are 
required to make a statement on the effectiveness of internal control within their annual report and financial statements. 
 

1.3 Internal audit provides the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable with an independent and objective opinion on governance, risk 
management and internal control and their effectiveness in achieving the organisations’ agreed objectives.  Internal audit also has an independent 
and objective advisory role to help line managers improve governance, risk management and internal control.  The work of internal audit, culminating 
in our annual opinion, forms a part of the OPCC and Forces’ overall assurance framework and assists in preparing an informed statement on internal 
control.    
 

1.4 Responsibility for a sound system of internal control rests with the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable and work performed by 
internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all weaknesses which exist or all improvements which may be made.  Effective implementation of 
our recommendations makes an important contribution to the maintenance of reliable systems of internal control and governance. 

1.5 Internal audit should not be relied upon to identify fraud or irregularity, although our procedures are designed so that any material irregularity has a 
reasonable probability of discovery.  Even sound systems of internal control will not necessarily be an effective safeguard against collusive fraud. 

1.6 Our work is delivered is accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

02 Summary of internal audit work to date 
 

2.1 Since the last meeting of the JARAC we have issued three final report in respect of the 2019/20 plan, this being in respect of IT Governance, Core 
Financials and Payroll, and we have issued three draft report in respect of Property Management, Data Quality and the Collaboration audit of 
Performance Management. Further details are provided in Appendix 1. 
 

Derbyshire 2019/20 Audits Report 
Status 

Assurance 
Opinion  

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Priority 2 
(Significant) 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping) 

Total 

Risk Management Final Significant   2 2 

Fleet Management Final Satisfactory  2 1 3 

Budget Controls & Savings Final Limited  4 1 5 

IT Governance Final Significant   1 1 

Core Financials Final Significant   1 1 

Payroll Final Significant    1 1 

Property Management Draft      

Data Quality Draft      

  Total  6 7 13 

Collaboration 2019/20 Audits Report 
Status 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Priority 2 
(Significant) 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping) 

Total 

Performance Management Draft      

 
 

2.2 In Line with discussions at the JARAC in December, a terms of reference for a follow up audit of Budgetary Control has been circulated to management 
and timescales have been agreed for this audit to take place during March 2020. Moreover in regards to the remaining audits of Commissioning and 



 

 

Estates Management, planning discussions have taken place and are on track for completion before the end of quarter four. Further details are provided 
in Appendix 2 

 
2.3 For the internal audit plans for 2019/20, it was agreed at the Joint Chief Finance Officers meeting that a similar ‘themed’ approach would be taken, albeit 

covering a different set of themes / areas, carrying out the audit across a further sample of units. The proposed ‘themed’ audits are Performance 
Management, Business Continuity & Health & Safety. The Performance Management audit draft report has been issued and is awaiting the co-ordinated 
response from the Forces. The fieldwork for Business Continuity & Health & Safety will be completed in February and draft reports issue thereafter.  

 
 

  



 

 

03  Performance  

3.1 The following table details the Internal Audit Service performance for the 2019/20 year to date measured against the key performance 
indicators that were set out within Audit Charter.  

No Indicator Criteria Performance 

1 Annual report provided to the JARAC As agreed with the Client Officer N/A 

2 
Annual Operational and Strategic Plans to the 

JARAC 

As agreed with the Client Officer 
Achieved 

3 Progress report to the JARAC 7 working days prior to meeting. Achieved 

4 Issue of draft report 
Within 10 working days of 

completion of final exit meeting. 

100% (8/8) 

 

5 Issue of final report 
Within 5 working days of 

agreement of responses. 

100% (6/6) 

 

6 Follow-up of priority one recommendations 
90% within four months. 100% 

within six months. 
N/A 

7 Follow-up of other recommendations 
100% within 12 months of date of 

final report. 
N/A 

8 Audit Brief to auditee 
At least 10 working days prior to 

commencement of fieldwork. 
100% (12/12) 

9 Customer satisfaction (measured by survey) 85% average satisfactory or above 100% (1/1) 



 

 

Appendix A1 – Final Reports 2019/20  

Below we provide the Final Reports issued to date in respect of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. 
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01 Introduction 
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 for the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire (OPCC) and Derbyshire Police (Force), 
we have undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect 
of IT Governance within the Force based on the COBIT framework of 
controls. 

The specific areas that formed this audit included:- 

AP001 Manage the IT management framework  

 Process Description - Clarify and maintain the governance of enterprise 
IT mission and vision. Implement and maintain mechanisms and 
authorities to manage information and the use of IT in the enterprise in 
support of governance objectives in line with guiding principles and 
policies. 
 

 AP002 Manage Strategy  

 Process Description - Provide a holistic view of the current business and 
IT environment, the future direction, and the initiatives required to migrate 
to the desired future environment. Leverage enterprise architecture 
building blocks and components, including externally provided services 
and related capabilities to enable. 
 

APO12 Manage Risk  

 Process Description - Continually identify, assess and reduce IT-related 
risk within levels of tolerance set by enterprise executive management.  
 

We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force and are 
grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.  

02 Background  
The Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner have 
developed plans to serve the people of Derbyshire. These both complement 
the overall Policing 2025 vision produced by the National Police Chiefs 
Council (NPCC). The National Policing Digital Strategy (2020-2030) has just 
been finalised and was signed off by NPCC’s Information Management 
Operational Risk Coordinating Committee (IMORCC) in autumn 2019. The 
high-level ambitions from this have been considered in this document and will 
be fully reviewed during 2020.  

The Forces overall strategic approach is now being coordinated by the new 
business change team (formed in 2019). This is the first time in recent history 
the Force has had a dedicated department to fulfil this function.  

The 3 P’s - Purpose, Principles and Priorities – define the ambition of the 
Force and the aims set to achieve these. The aims associated with the 3 P’s 
will change during the coming years and will be updated as they are 
completed but they are currently defined as:- 

 The ‘Purpose” is now a shared one with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue 
Service (DFRS) the preferred collaborative partner, and is Making 
Derbyshire Safer Together. 

 The ‘Principles’ are ‘Doing the Right Thing’, ‘Making a Difference’ and 
‘Shaping the Future’. 

 The ‘Priorities’ and immediate aims are: 
o Excellent pubic service 

 Putting victims at the heart of our service  
 Preventing harm, especially to the most vulnerable 
 Delivering a high-quality policing service 
 Spreading good news and engaging with communities 
 Making our partnership with Fire the best in the country 

o Looking after our people 



 

 
 

 An inclusive employer of choice for all faiths, backgrounds and 
genders 

 Enabling our people to bring the best of themselves to work 
 Empowering our people to innovate and to take responsibility 
 Caring for our people in good times and bad 

o Using technology in all aspects of our work 
 Employing new and emerging technology to modernise our 

services 
 Developing tools to analyse data intelligently to make better 

decisions 
 Using drones to support everyday business 
 Providing tasers to every frontline officer who wants it 

The Deputy Chief Constable’s (DCC) enabling portfolio, made up of Human 
Resources, Business Futures, Corporate Services, Organisational Learning 
Culture and Ethics (OLCE), Information Management, Strategic 
Communications and Information Services, are the key teams to ensure 
delivery of the 3P’s vision. With new leads in business change, OLCE and 
strategic communications, the high level aims for all the “enablers” group are 
being updated to reflect the Force’s purpose, principles and priorities. 

The business change team will link all the national, regional, collaborative 
and local programmes of work together into a Force programme and 
capability plan. This plan will include ensuring that the force operating model 
is efficient and effective in delivering the force priorities and the constantly 
evolving business needs to ensure that risks and threats are mitigated. They 
will work closely with all in the DCC’s enablers group and specifically the IS 
Department for the technology enabled projects. 

To ensure the key results to meet this challenge are delivered, the IS 
department have created this strategic approach document to show the 
actions that will be taken in 2020 and the longer term. There are two other 
documents to support this strategy: 
 

 Technical infrastructure approach 
o Details current situation and future state for the infrastructure 

o Uses 3 themes as a guiding principle for decisions; Enabling, 

Innovation and Supporting. 

 Financial planning approach 
o Capital planning for the next 5 years – detailed for the next 2 

years 

o Revenue details are for the current year 

o Highlights the challenges and what is to be addressed in the 

next planning cycle 



       
 

03 Key Findings 

Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls 
 

 Significant Assurance 

 

Priority Number of recommendations 

1 (Fundamental) - 

2 (Significant) - 

3 (Housekeeping) 1 

TOTAL 1 

 

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably 

 The approach to governance aims to balance the agility in delivering 
digital excellence with the controls needed to manage an effective 
service to the Force. The business change team have reviewed and 
updated the high level governance model. 

 The Information Services (IS) Structure is defined with a clear reporting 
and decision making structure reporting to the Head of Information 
Services reporting to the Deputy Chief Constable. The structure allows 
for engagement with stakeholders through a number of boards 
including the Design Board, IS Leadership Meetings, and IS 
Infrastructure Meeting.  

 Through meetings with the DCC and the IS Leadership Team, 
engaging with stakeholders, the Head of IS was able to establish and 
demonstrate an understanding of the enterprise vision, direction and 

strategy and has established a draft strategy although this has not yet 
been published.  

 Overall strategic oversight is provided by the Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT) which comprises of the Executive team, Chief Superintendents 
and police staff heads of department for HR, IS and Assets.  

 Information Services itself is governed via two key meetings which 
cover the high level leadership of the department and the approval of 
technical architecture direction and implementation: 
 IS Leadership meeting – Chaired by the Head of IS and attended 

by all IS managers. This provides oversight across the full range of 
IS activities including strategy, people, communications and 
customer service improvement.  It also handles exceptions to the 
normal tasking and resourcing process, e.g. project 
delays/overruns, urgent requests, customer/IS pressure points. 
There are short weekly meetings and longer monthly ones.   

 IS Infrastructure meeting – Chaired by the Digital Solutions 
Programmes and Projects Manager, this focuses on the major 
technical decisions and direction the IS team need to lead, to 
ensure that the Force aims are met, whilst creating an innovative 
and forward looking infrastructure. This group monitors and updates 
on progress against the IS technical approach.  

 Information Services also interact with the Design Board and are 
monitored via two financial meetings.  

 The Design Board – Chaired by Deputy Chief Constable, provides 
oversight of the Force change programme to ensure that the 
organisation has the capacity and capability to meet future operational 
and organisational needs. The functions of the previous optimising 
technology board are now part of the design board. It includes:- 
 Ensuring the proposed changes can be resourced and funded;  
 Strategically identify and prioritise business need requirements 

across converging projects, re-aligning where necessary; 
 Approve or commission new strategic change proposals, ensuring 



 

 
 

these are aligned with the organisation’s strategic direction and 
ambition, considering the services delivered, strategic performance 
framework, force management statement (FMS) & pre-existing 
projects  

 Monitor and manage programme progress, ensuring project / 
programme leads are adequately supported in their work and 
accountable for the delivery of their responsibilities;  

 Ensure overall effective communications and engagement strategy, 
sharing key messages internally and with partners as required; and  

 Ensure all enabling functions are involved in the early design of any 
changes, recognising the value they bring in facilitating effective 
change and improvement.  

 The Financial Futures Board – Chaired by Joint Director of Finance and 
Business Services and attended by the OPCC Chief Finance Officer, 
this meets quarterly to review the capital and revenue schemes. It is 
also responsible for:- 
 Financial strategy and overall financial management; 
 Budget setting; 
 Monitoring and reviewing financial performance; and  
 Significant business change/development approval, invest to save 

projects ensuring value for money, revenue implications of capital 
spend and return on investment/benefits realisation. 

 The IS Revenue/Capital Review Meeting – Held monthly with Finance 
to review all lines of the revenue budget allocated to IS and any capital 
queries  or changes.  

 In addition to this there are project boards for each significant project. 
These are overseen by Business Change with an individual SRO in 
control of each - these are generally Executive team members. To 
support these, project checkpoint meetings are run to manage projects 
on an ongoing basis.  

 Roles and responsibilities are clearly defined with a clear structure, 
accountability and reporting lines in place with a depth of knowledge 

and cross service responsibilities.  

 Through the risk register process there is a recognition of the key risks 
and risk tolerance for IT. For the most recent version of the Corporate 
Risk Register the IS team had six risks recorded at the corporate level, 
these included:- 
 STR1913 Loss of Power to Force IT Systems; 
 STR1960 Cyber Attack; 
 IS0019 IS resources (Finance and Staff) are insufficient to meet the 

demands of the organisation; 
 STR1033 Data, I.T. and Communications Integrity; 
 IS0013 Ethernet Adapter - Safety Concerns (a recent addition 

following an issue with a laptop and a proprietary network adaptor);  
 IS0018 Encryption on the wide and local area networks. 

 Risk profiling fits into the Corporate Risk Profiling and scoring process. 
Each IT risk at the corporate level has been assigned a risk score 
between 6 and 2 which translates to a traffic signal like scoring system. 

 Risks are regularly reported to the Joint Audit and Risk Committee 
(JARAC) and owned by the Head of Information Systems and subject 
to ongoing monitoring and review where each risk is described, 
assessed, analysed and scored. 

 The organisation also has a set of policies which set the environment 
expectations and requirements and is also subject to external control 
environment review through both Governance & Information Risk 
Return (GIRR), and Public Services Network (PSN). 

 The placement of the IT function in reporting to the DCC is consistent 
with other Forces in the region and is considered optimal. 

 There is also one key regional and national groups with whom 
Derbyshire Police are engaged that provide oversight on potential 
future directions and programme updates of wider Police technology. 

 Regional Heads of ICT – Chair rotated by Force, it is attended by 
the East Midlands Force’s ICT leads. It aims to share information 
on approaches, best practice and identify areas for collaboration. 



 

 
 

 Information Management and Operational Requirements Co-
Ordination Committee (IMORCC) – Chaired by Commissioner 
Dyson (CoLP). IMORCC is designed to ensure a better of 
understanding of the relationship between national policing and the 
technological programmes and equally help to build a more 
consistent approach to governance, standards and visibility.  Three 
key groups report into this NPTC, PIAB and the BCC. 

 National Police Technology Council (NPTC) - This is made up of 
the Directors/Heads of ICT from 50 organisations and is chaired by 
a nominated member. It provides ‘thought leadership’ and direction 
back to IMORCC and into the Police ICT Company, acting as a 
technical design authority board. There is a separate smaller NPTC 
board (15 members) where each person is either aligned to a 
national programme, an internal development group (e.g. 
standards, people) or both.  

 Police Information Assurance Board (PIAB) - This operates as the 
security design authority to IMORCC.    

 Business Change Committee (BCC) – This is the business design 
authority to IMORCC. 

 There is a mechanism in place for continual review of progress against 
strategic aims through projects and at leadership meetings.  

 There is a process to link individual IS staff performance through the 
‘Check in’ performance enablement process.  

 Derbyshire Police has provided evidence that its infrastructure is 
approved to connect to The National Policing Community of Trust - 
(National Systems and PSN in Policing Protected and Secured 
Networks) for the following period: 6th January 2019 - 6th January 
2020. 

 The Force is also approved to connect to PSN itself until 27 February 
2020. 

 The IT Health Check for the next GIRR return is currently in 
procurement phase following successful completion in previous years. 

 

 

Sector Comparison 

Internal Audit has carried out IT Strategy or Governance audits across a 
number of Forces in recent years which enable a basis for comparison 
across the Forces visited. As Derbyshire Police has in effect changed its 
governance and strategy process in the last year the process is not yet 
considered mature, however the controls identified should allow for an 
effective governance structure but its implementation and operation will 
need to be monitored over time.  

 

 

Risk Management 

Effective risk management is critical to the success of IT service and 
programme delivery. Recognising this, the Force has defined a process to 
manage each category of IT related risks:  

 STR1913 Loss of Power to Force IT Systems 

 STR1960 Cyber Attack 

 IS0019 IS resources (Finance and Staff) are insufficient to meet the 
demands of the organisation 

 STR1033 Data, I.T. and Communications Integrity 

 IS0013 Ethernet Adapter - Safety Concerns (a recent addition 
following an issue with a laptop and a proprietary network adaptor)  

 IS0018 Encryption on the wide and local area networks 

We noted that the risk management process operated a consistent scoring 
process, demonstrated what mitigating controls are in place and with 
evidence of regular challenge and update. 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

Value for Money 

Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our 
audit process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and 
processes in place within the auditable area. 

In regard to the governance, VfM is considered and an effective process 
exists to support consideration of its impact. 

The structures established allow and invite ideas to be proposed but ensure 
that VfM as well as need and benefit are considered. 

 
 



 

 
  

04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, 
to whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.  

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.1 Publication of IT Strategy  

Observation: A draft strategy is in the process of being 
defined with the intention of being approved by early 
2020, however, given the likely need to update the 
strategy following updates to the Corporate Strategy 
and the budgeting cycle, there is a view that aligning 
with this cycle and ensuring this is complete in 
March/April 2020 may be favourable. It would then 
also fit into a wider Corporate timetable of ongoing 
update in future years. 
 
Risk: Strategy produced may only be accurate for a 
short period and out of date within 4 months. 

 
The Force should consider delaying 
publication of the final version of the 
strategy until possible changes to the 
Corporate Strategy and potential 
budgeting implications are clearer. 

 

3 

The draft strategy has been 
finalised but not communicated 
beyond the IS department. The 
Head of IS will work with the 
Head of Strategic 
Communications to promote the 
IS Strategy in 2020. This will be 
planned in early 2020. The 
strategy will be further refined 
during this time to consider 
corporate strategy changes and 
financial budget updates. These 
are expected to be completed 
end of February 2020.   

April 2020 for 
strategy update 
and 
communication. 

Richard Cariss 
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Audit Control Schedule 

Client contacts:  Rachel Swan, Deputy Chief 
Constable 

Richard Cariss, Head of IT 

Internal Audit Team: David Hoose, Partner 

Mark Lunn, Internal Audit Manager 

Neil Belton, IT Audit Manager 

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting: 12th December 2019 

Draft report issued: 18th December 2019 

Management responses received: 29th December 2019 

Final report issued: 8th January 2020 

Scope and Objectives 

The audit objectives are to provide a review of the arrangements in place to support the IT 
Governance within the Force based on the COBIT framework of controls. This will include: 

AP001 Manage the IT management framework  

 Process Description - Clarify and maintain the governance of enterprise IT mission and 
vision. Implement and maintain mechanisms and authorities to manage information and 
the use of IT in the enterprise in support of governance objectives in line with guiding 
principles and policies. 

AP002 Manage Strategy  

 Process Description - Provide a holistic view of the current business and IT 
environment, the future direction, and the initiatives required to migrate to the desired 
future environment. Leverage enterprise architecture building blocks and components, 
including externally provided services and related capabilities to enable  

APO12 Manage Risk  

 Process Description - Continually identify, assess and reduce IT-related risk within 
levels of tolerance set by enterprise executive management.  

We will also consider if governance procedures are in place to help support, manage and 
maintain the PSN, PSN-P and other accreditations the Force has in place. 
The objectives of our audit were to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of 
arrangements for IT Governance with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which 
risks in this area are managed. In giving this assessment it should be noted that assurance 
cannot be absolute. The most an Internal Audit Service can provide is reasonable assurance 
that there are no major weaknesses in the framework of internal control.  

We are only able to provide an overall assessment on those aspects of f management that 
we have tested or reviewed. Testing has been performed on a sample basis, and as a result 
our work does not provide absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist. 
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01 Introduction 
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 for the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police, we have 
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of the 
Core Financial Systems.   

The specific areas that formed part of this review included: General Ledger, 
Cash, Bank & Treasury Management, Payments & Creditors and Income & 
Debtors. The Payroll element of Derbyshire’s Core Financial Systems is 
covered in a separate audit and is reported on separately.  

We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force during the 
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.  

02 Background  
The administration and management of the core financial function is the 
responsibility of the Finance and Business Support team who are based at 
the Police Headquarters in Ripley, with the operation being overseen by the 
Joint Director of Finance and Business Services. The Corporate Finance 
Manager oversees the specific areas covered by this audit, with the Finance 
Support Team dealing with day to day processing operations.  

Derbyshire Police use the Agresso finance system to manage their General 
Ledger. The system is modular in nature, with access levels and permitted 
user controls embedded within the system. Access to the system is 
maintained by a number of system administrators within the Finance and 
Business Support Team.  

The management of the ledger is overseen by the Corporate Finance 
Manager, with operational input by the Finance Support Team and budget 
control carried out by Operational Management Accountants. 

 

The management of cash and cheques received at HQ is carried out on a 
daily basis, with preparation of banking and delivery of monies to the bank 
completed. A safe is held in the office and a driver is called upon to 
accompany finance staff to transport funds to the bank. A manual cash 
receipts book and overall cashbook is maintained, updated and reconciled to 
the bank statements and the general ledger. 

The Senior Operational Management Accountant ensures that funds held by 
the Force are controlled and maximised to assist the Force in meeting its 
organisational and statutory objectives. An annual Treasury Management & 
Investment Strategy is approved by the Strategic Priorities Assurance Board 
(SPA) and the Senior Operational Management Accountant carries out the 
strategy with oversight from the Corporate Finance Manager. A Borrowing 
Strategy is also in place, however the Force have not undertaken any 
borrowing for a number of years.  

The Finance Support Team administers the payment of suppliers through the 
processing of requests from other departments that are processed on the 
Agresso system. They are also responsible for managing the supplier 
standing data, including setting up new suppliers and amending existing 
ones.  

The team also raise invoices to debtors based on the information provided by 
departments. If debtors fail to pay within the allotted payment period, the 
Finance Support Team also carry out the agreed debt recovery process, 
which includes reminder letters, before being passed to Legal for 
consideration of any legal action to recover outstanding debts.  
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03 Key Findings 

Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls 
 

 Significant Assurance 

 

Area Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls 

General Ledger Significant 

Cash, Bank & Treasury 
Management 

Significant 

Payments & Creditors  Significant 

Income & Debtors  Significant 

 

Priority Number of recommendations 

1 (Fundamental) - 

2 (Significant) - 

3 (Housekeeping) 1 

TOTAL 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably 

 The General Ledger is regularly and independently reconciled, with 
unbalanced items investigated and suspense accounts regularly 
reviewed and cleared; 

 Banking is undertaken securely and transactions are accounted for 
correctly, with appropriate cross checking of manual records, bank 
statements and the Agresso Financial system; 

 Cash flow information is prepared on a daily basis to assist the decision 
making process for investments undertaken by the Force; 

 Investments are made with approved counterparties and up to agreed 
limits for individual investments and total investments per counterparty 
type; 

 A robust bank reconciliation process is in place to ensure all items are 
accounted for; 

 Invoice payments are made when appropriate authorisation has been 
obtained to proceed; 

 BACS processing and Cheque payments are undertaken with 
appropriate segregation of duties between processors and authorisers; 

 Robust processes are in place for raising debtor invoices and chasing 
payments when it falls overdue; and, 

 Debt collection actions are undertaken in a timely manner, in line with 
the Debt Collection Policy and write offs are reviewed and authorised 
before being processed. 

 

  



 

     OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police – Core Financial February 2020 

 

Risk Management 

The Agresso system is key to the completion of accounts and management 
of finances at the Force and the Finance function have a number of system 
administrators to control access to the system. It is noted that the Force 
moved to submission of overtime and expenses on the system and therefore 
the number of users has increased significantly as all staff, including officers, 
now require access. When staff leave the Force they should be removed 
promptly to prevent unauthorised access to the finance system.   

The Joint Director for Finance and Business Support has the responsibility 
for oversight of the Finance and Business Support Teams with support from 
the Corporate Finance Manager, for the specific areas of this audit. 

We noted during our audit that there is a lack of formalised policies and 
procedures for core finance activities, such as raising invoices or creating 
debtor files. While these activities are supporting by guidance notes, the 
Force should consider formalising these into policies and procedures. 

We also noted during the testing of banking procedures that on one occasion 
we were unable to confirm that the banking slip has been signed twice to 
indicate a review to confirm the amount. The finance team confirmed that on 
some occasions the slip is scanned onto Agresso before the second 
signature and that this is likely to have been the case and we were unable to 
locate the physical slip to verify it. As this was an isolated instance, we have 
not raised it as a recommendation, however the Force should be aware of 
the reason segregation of duties are important within the banking process to 
mitigate fraud risks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sector Comparison 

From our experience across our client base, we are seeing pressure on 
resources and higher service demands have resulted in challenges to the 
existing control environment. This often results in increased challenges to the 
decision making process where conflicting priorities exist and need to be 
balanced with effective risk management.   

Reduced resources mean that organisations have to accept a certain degree 
of risk within processes and systems in place and need to ensure this risk is 
identified and managed as business as usual. Derbyshire have begun to align 
with similar organisations as they move towards more electronic processing, 
such as the overtime and expenses process that is in place.  

 

Value for money 

Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our audit 
process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and 
processes in place within the auditable area.   

During the review of amendments to debtor details it was noted that there 
appears to be a duplication of processing. In five out of ten instances the 
debtor details were being ‘re-opened’ after being previously closed due to no 
longer being in use. Staff time is wasted having to carry out this processing 
and previous audits have raised a suggestion to review this process to ensure 
a more efficient use of time. This was discussed with management during the 
audit and the position remains the same. A recommendation has not been 
raised as the Force continue to review the most efficient way to manage their 
Debtors.  

 



 

 

04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, to whom we 
have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.  

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.1 Retention of Supporting Documentation 

Observation: Audit testing of amendments to debtor 
master files identified two instances where 
supporting evidence had not been retained within 
Agresso. 

One instance was an account being re-opened and 
closed, apparently in error as this was in sequential 
changes on the same day between closed and 
open status. There is no note on file to state that 
this was an error and no supporting documents to 
indicate why the account would’ve been re-opened. 

The other instance was to re-open a closed debtor 
to raise a further invoice. Although the invoice is 
linked to the debtor, the required form has not been 
retained and therefore any changes cannot be 
validated nor can the invoice be verified. 

Risk: Incorrect debtor details are set up so the 
Force are unable to collect the income due. 

 

Staff should be reminded that 
supporting documentation 
should be retained when 
carrying out processes on the 
system to ensure adequate 
audit trails are maintained. 
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Staff will be reminded to retain 
supporting documentation    

 

January 2020  

Finance 
Support 
Manager 



 

 

A1 Audit Information  

Audit Objectives 

Our audit considered the risks relating to the following areas under review: 

 Clearly defined policies and/or procedures are not in place resulting in 

ineffective and inefficient working practices.   

 Systems and data entry restrictions are not in place which could lead to 

inappropriate access to the systems and data.   

 There are errors in accounting transactions posted on the General Ledger 

resulting in inaccurate financial information. 

 Inaccurate cash flow information regarding investments and borrowings is 

produced which could result in inappropriate levels of cash held within the 

Force.  

 The purchasing process is not complied with by staff which could lead to 

fraudulent transactions that go undetected.  

 An ineffective debt management process is in place which could lead to 

irrecoverable income and inappropriate write off of debt.  

In reviewing the above risks, our  audit considered the following areas: 

 General Ledger 

 Cash, Bank and Treasury Management 

 Payments and Creditors 

 Income and Debtors 
The objectives of our audit were to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Core Financial Systems with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which 
risks in this area are managed. In giving this assessment it should be noted that 
assurance cannot be absolute. The most an Internal Audit Service can provide is 
reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in the framework of 
internal control.  
We are only able to provide an overall assessment on those aspects of the Core 
Financial Systems that we have tested or reviewed. Testing has been performed 
on a sample basis, and as a result our work does not provide absolute assurance 
that material error, loss or fraud does not exist. 

 

Audit Control Schedule 

Primary Sponsors: Andrew Dale – OPCC Chief Finance 
Officer 
Simon Allsop, Joint Director of 
Finance and Business  Services 

Client contacts:  Julie Cook – Corporate Finance 
Manager 
Claire Widdowson – Finance Support 
Manager 

Internal Audit Team: David Hoose, Partner 
Mark Lunn,  Internal Audit  Manager 
Alex Campbell, Internal Auditor 

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting: 3rd December 2019 

Draft report issued: 18th December 2019 

Management responses received: 11th February 2020 

Final report issued: 11th February 2020 



 

 

 

OPCC for Derbyshire & Derbyshire Police  

Final Internal Audit Memo 

Payroll 

February 2020   

01 Introduction  

In line with the approved 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan for the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police, Internal 
Audit have carried out an audit of the Payroll function to review the effectiveness of the internal controls in operation. There is a joint working arrangement 
between Derbyshire Police and Leicestershire Police for the administration of the Payroll function and, as such, Mazars visited both organisations as part 
of the audit. 

A separate audit is to be completed on the payroll provider, Kier Services, later in the current financial year.  This audit will include a visit to the Kier offices 
in Lincolnshire where they have a team who maintain the payroll system for Leicestershire and Derbyshire Police. 

 

02 Background 

The current payroll system is made up of four separate payrolls for each of the Forces – Police Officers, Police Staff, Pensioners and Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner Staff. Each payroll follows the same administration processes, although are paid at different times of the month in line with the 
agreed payroll timetable. 

The payroll system in operation is iTrent, with Kier, an external supplier, providing the Forces’ the maintenance and running the Payroll System, as well 
as processing the monthly BACS payments.  

For the pensioners payroll a separate contract exists between Derbyshire and XPS, who provide Derbyshire with the pension payroll information. Audit 
carried out an audit of the Pension Provider in August 2019 and a significant audit opinion was issued.  



 

 

The Leicestershire Payroll Team is notified of new starters from retained HR at Derbyshire, leavers and variations to existing payroll data in the format of 
a PIM request form. The information from the PIM request form is then input on to the iTrent system to ensure correct payments are processed.  

A separate audit is to be completed on the payroll provider in February 2020, which will include a visit to the Kier Services offices in Lincolnshire where 
the team who maintain the payroll system for Leicestershire Police are located. 

 

03 Sector Comparison 

From our experience across our client base, we are seeing pressure on resources and higher service demands have resulted in challenges to the existing 
control environment. This often results in increased challenges to the decision making process where conflicting priorities exist and need to be balanced 
with effective risk management.   

Reduced resources mean that organisations have to accept a certain degree of risk within processes and systems in place and need to ensure this risk 
is identified and managed as business as usual. Derbyshire have begun to align with similar organisations as they move towards more electronic 
processing, such as the overtime and expenses process that is in place 

04 Findings 

Access to the iTrent payroll system, for users at both Derbyshire and Leicestershire, are controlled by Kier, the payroll provider. On a quarterly basis, Kier 
provide a list of iTrent users, along with their assigned workgroup, to the Payroll Services Manager at Leicestershire. The workgroups are differentiated 
by tiers, offering various levels of either no access, read only or write access to functions within iTrent. We carried out testing to compare the actual access 
on iTrent to the list provided by Kier and confirmed that this was correctly stated for the testing sample of staff within the Derbyshire finance operations 
team.  

The Leicestershire Payroll Team is notified of new starters, leavers and variations to existing payroll data in the format of a PIM request form from 
Derbyshire. The information from the PIM request form is then input on to the iTrent system. Testing confirmed that new starters to the Force are promptly 
added to the Payroll, with key information provided on the PIM request form inputted on to the system by the Leicestershire payroll team. Testing performed 
by Audit also confirmed that leavers from the Force are processed by Leicestershire payroll, following instruction via PIM request forms.  

Audit reviewed the value of the first payslip for each new starter within our sample and noted that this was correct, with deductions correctly calculated. 
This exercise was also conducted for each leaver within our sample and we confirmed that the employee account was closed on the iTrent system and 
that the final payslip was correct, with deductions correctly calculated. 



 

 

Variations to employment are requested through a PIM request form, which the Leicestershire Payroll team will process. Audit confirmed that variations 
had been processed in accordance with the PIM request form, for a sample of payroll variations completed. 

The finance team at Derbyshire centrally process any overtime, expenses or mileage claims. These claims are processed on the Agresso finance system, 
where officers can submit their overtime, expenses and/or mileage claims for authorisation to their line manager. For some specialist units where some 
Derbyshire Officers are based, these are still processed on a paper-based system. Audits testing of overtime claims confirmed that in all instance there 
was appropriate sign off by the line manager for authorisation and the claims were legitimate in line with Force policy.  

Derbyshire Police have , since April 2019, changed to an electronic process within Agresso finance system for expenses and mileage, with staff completing 
the claim, which is then processed through a workflow On the Agresso system prior to entry on to the payroll system. The claim will only be directed for 
approval by the individual’s line manager if the value is above the threshold of £300 per claim or if individual lines are greater than £50 award. Testing of 
six mileage and expense claims confirmed that where applicable, there was sign off by the line manager to authorise the claim being submitted.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

05 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 

Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified the following area where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, to 
whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below. This recommendation has been raised for 
Leicestershire payroll and not Derbyshire, therefore it is for information only. 

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority 

4.1 Performance analysis 

Observation: Audit previously recommended in January 2019 that 
the reporting capabilities of iTrent have not been fully explored by 
management to drive performance. At the time of the current Audit, 
it has been noted that this has been raised with Kier, with an 
outstanding log action in place. 

Risk: Performance is not reviewed or analysed. 

The force do not drive performance improvements. 

 

Management should review the reporting 
capabilities of iTrent to enhance the level of 
analysis at a more granular level. 
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06 Conclusion 

An audit opinion of ‘Significant’ has been achieved with regards to the controls in place within Leicestershire for the delivery of the payroll service; see Appendix 
1 for audit definitions of assurance opinions. 

The audit of the Payroll System found that there is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the Organisation’s objectives. The control processes 
tested are being consistently applied. The Leicestershire Payroll Team are completing the required inputs on behalf of Derbyshire’s payroll and the system has 
sufficient audit trails in place to confirm the rationale behind why changes have been made to payroll information.  

 



 

 

Appendix A2  Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 

Auditable Area Planned 
Fieldwork 

Date 

Draft Report 
Date 

Final Report 
Date 

Target 
JARAC 

Comments 

Core Assurance 

Core Financial Systems Nov 2019 Dec 2019 Feb 2020 Feb 2020 Final report issued 

Payroll Nov 2019 Dec 2019 Feb 2020 Feb 2020 Final report issued 

Risk Management Apr 2019 May 2019 June 2019 July 2019 Final report issued. 

Strategic & Operational Risk 

Budget Control & Savings Plans  Sept 2019 Oct 2019 Dec 2019 Dec 2019 Final report issued. 

Property Management Nov 2019 Dec 2019  Feb 2020 Draft report issued 

Commissioning 
Mar 2020   May 2020 Planning Meeting completed, scheduled 

fieldwork March 2020 

Data Quality Jan 2020 Feb 2020  Feb 2020  Draft report issued.(12th Feb 2020) 

IT Governance Nov 2019   Feb 2020 Final report issued.  

Estates Management 
Mar 2020   May 2020 Planning Meeting completed, scheduled 

fieldwork March 2020 

Fleet Management May 2019 June 2019 July 2019 July 2019 Final report issued. 

Budget Control & Savings Plans 

Follow Up Audit  

Mar 2020   May 2020 Scope circulated, currently finalising dates 

for fieldwork  

 



 

 

 

Auditable Area Planned 
Fieldwork 

Date 

Draft Report 
Date 

Final Report 
Date 

Target 
JARAC 

Comments 

Collaboration 

Performance Management Oct 2019 Feb 2020  May 2020 Draft Report issued 5th Dec 2019 

Business Continuity Feb 2020   May 2020  

Health & Safety Feb 2020   May 2020  

 

 

 



 

 

Appendix A3 – Definition of Assurances and Priorities 

Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system 
design 

Effectiveness of 
operating controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system of 
internal control designed to 
achieve the Organisation’s 
objectives. 

The control processes 
tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically 
sound system of internal 
control, there are 
weaknesses, which put 
some of the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the 
level of non-compliance 
with some of the control 
processes may put some 
of the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the system 
of internal controls are such 
as to put the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

The level of non-
compliance puts the 
Organisation’s objectives 
at risk. 

No Assurance Control processes are 
generally weak leaving the 
processes/systems open to 
significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-
compliance with basic 
control processes leaves 
the processes/systems 
open to error or abuse. 

 
 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control 
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted 
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk. 



 

 

Appendix A4 - Contact Details 
 

Contact Details 

 

David Hoose 
07552 007708 

David.Hoose@Mazars.co.uk 

Mark Lunn 

 

07881 284060 

Mark.Lunn@Mazars.co.uk 
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A5  Statement of Responsibility  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Status of our reports 

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a service 
to management to enable them to achieve this objective.  Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the internal 
control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure that they 
are operating for the period under review.  We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable 
expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  However, our procedures alone are not a guarantee 
that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.                                                                                            

The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police.  Disclosure to third parties cannot be made 
without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is 

registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

6C 
 

JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE 
COMMITTEE  

 
 

REPORT 
TITLE 

STRATEGY FOR INTERNAL AUDIT 2019/20 TO 2021/22 
AND 2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

REPORT BY MARK LUNN  
DATE 13 FEBRUARY 2019 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To review and advise on the draft annual internal audit plan for 2020/21 to 2022/23, 

ensuring that this : 

• is consistent with professional standards; 

• meets the audit needs of the PCC and the Chief Constable; and 

• provides the JARAC with adequate coverage for the purpose of obtaining 

 appropriate levels of assurance over the adequacy of the risk management, 

 governance and internal control environment of both the PCC and Chief 

 Constable.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Internal Audit Strategy 2020/21 to 2022/23 and the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. To review and make comments on the adequacy of the proposed Strategy for 

 Internal Audit 2020/21 to 2022/23 and the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. 

ii. To recommend, subject to any amendments, the final plan to the Chief Constable 

 and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective approvals. 



AGENDA ITEM 6C 
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE  

20 FEBRUARY 2020 
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CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale  

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 6C 
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE  

20 FEBRUARY 2020 
 
 

3 

OVERVIEW 

1. The Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act introduced in November 2012 the 

 legal concept of 2 corporations sole for the Police and Crime Commissioner and 

 the Chief Constable with two Annual Governance Statements to support the 

 relevant statements of accounts and the group accounts.   

2. As part of a robust risk management process, internal controls are reviewed in 

 several ways; one such assurance is provided by the work of the internal audit 

 function.   

3. Given that the systems and process for both corporations sole are aligned, it has 

 been agreed, in consultation with both internal and external auditors, that there 

 will be one common audit strategy addressing all internal control review 

 requirements. 

4. Our internal audit is currently provided by Mazars as part of a regional contract.  

5. Each year an annual audit plan is compiled which the JARAC will review, 

 comment on and approve.  It is an important feature of the governance function 

 that this Committee, with the advice of the Chief Finance Officer and the Director 

 of Finance, can influence and direct those areas of review which it thinks are 

 appropriate. 

6. The work of External Audit is dependent to a certain extent on the assurances 

 provided by internal audit, especially on the key financial controls in place in both 

 the organisations.  This avoids duplication of cost and effort.  

7. Attached at APPENDIX A to this report are the draft Internal Audit Strategy 

 2019/20 to 2021/22 and the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20. 

8. The JARAC is required to consider 

 • if the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see   

  Appendix A) reflects the areas that the Committee believes should be  

  covered as a priority, taking into account the assurance work that been  

  carried out 

 • if the audit strategy includes all those areas that the Committee would  

  expect to be subject to internal audit coverage for both the Chief   

  Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner, in terms not only of  

  professional responsibilities but also covering areas of concern flagged by  

  management 



AGENDA ITEM 6C 
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 • if the level of audit resource is accepted by the Committee and agreed as  

  appropriate, given the level of assurance required 

 • the detailed audit plan at Appendix A. 

9. Members are requested to consider the proposals and to suggest any changes 

 they think are appropriate before recommending the 2019/20 audit plan to the 

 Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective 

 approvals.  

10. From time to time, it may be appropriate to amend the audit plan or to 

 commission work within the plan from any pooled resource/contingency 

 allocation.  Where this might need to be actioned outside the cycle of JARAC 

 meetings, the Chief Finance Officer or the Director of Finance will make minor 

 changes to the audit plan.  Changes will be reported through the audit update. 



Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police 

Draft Internal Audit Strategy 2020/21 to 2022/23 and 2020/21 Internal Audit 
Plan 

February 2020 

This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 12. 

This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Framework Agreement dated 21 Apri l 2015 between The Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Nottinghamshire and Mazars LLP and Order Form dated 12 May 2015, and subsequently extended on 6 November 2018, between Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Derbyshire and Mazars LLP.  This report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire.  This report 
must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or 
liability to any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 

AGENDA ITEM 6C
JARAC
20 FEBRUARY 2020
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1. Introduction 
1.1 A three-year proposed Strategic Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police 

(the OPCC and Force) for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023, together with an operational audit plan for 2020/21.  
 

1.2 As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its attention 
on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks.  
 

1.3 Appendix A contains our proposed Annual Audit Plan 2020 – 2021. 

1.4 Appendix B sets out our proposed Strategic Audit Plan 2020 – 2023.  

 

2. The Scope and Purpose of Internal Audit 
2.1 Internal Audit’s primary role is to provide the organisation’s management with independent assurance on the effectiveness of the internal control systems 

that contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s business objectives.  In so doing, this will support the OPCC and Force in signing the Annual 
Governance Statement.  It is also Internal Audit’s role to provide the OPCC and Force with assurance that they have in place effective processes for 
the management of risk.   

2.2 In drawing up the internal audit work programme it should be noted that: 

 The OPCC and Force are accountable for internal control.  The OPCC and Force are responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives, and for reviewing its effectiveness; 

 The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve these objectives; 

 The system of internal control can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness; and 

 The system of internal control is based on an on-going risk management process designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 

2.3  As set out in the Audit Charter, Internal Audit fulfils its role by: 

 Coordinating assurance activities with other assurance providers (such as the external auditors and HMICFRS) such that the assurance needs of 
the OPCC and Force, regulators and other stakeholders are met in the most effective way. 
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 Evaluating and assessing the implications of new or changing systems, products, services, operations and control processes. 

 Carrying out assurance and consulting activities across all aspects of the OPCC and Force’s business based on a risk-based plan agreed with the 
Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC). 

 Providing the Police & Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the key controls associated with the management of risk in the area being audited. 

 Issuing periodic reports to the JARAC and Senior Management Team summarising results of assurance activities. 

 Re-enforcing an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the OPCC and Force to aid the prevention and detection of fraud. 

 Assisting in the investigation of allegations of fraud, bribery and corruption within the OPCC and Force and notifying management and the JARAC 
of the results. 

 Assessing the adequacy of remedial action to address significant risk and control issues reported to the JARAC.  Responsibility for remedial action 
in response to audit findings rests with line management. 

 

3. Approach 
3.1 As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its attention 

on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks. As Internal 
Audit is a one source of this assurance, Internal Audit have reviewed the OPCC / Force Risk Register with the aim of identifying where the OPCC / 
Force obtains this assurance and that the Internal Audit plan is suitably focused and aligned with other sources of assurance. The results of this exercise 
were considered when drawing the audit plan. 

3.2 The Assurance Framework provides a top-down identification and analysis of the assurance needs of the JARAC, and aims to provide a co-ordinated 
view of the activity of the various assurance providers and therefore the right combination of direct, risk and independent assurance activities as shown 
below: 

 

 

 

 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence

Audit Functions

Compliance and Legal

Security, Investigations etc

Corporate Risk

Departments

Departmental 
control activities

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence

Audit Functions

Compliance and Legal

Security, Investigations etc

Corporate Risk

Departments

Departmental 
control activities



 

 

Page 3 
 

3.3 In drawing up the operational and strategic audit plan, the assurance mapping exercise  identified where the OPCC / Force obtained assurance it was 
managing its key risks, with the aim of aligning the Internal Audit plan with other sources of assurance. The review was carried out through discussions 
with appropriate staff and review of documents to confirm the adequacy of the assurance processes in place. In particular we: 

 Agreed the key strategic risks (OPCC and Force) that the JARAC require assurance on. 

 Identified and met with the nominated risk owners. 

 Through discussions and the review of relevant documents, using the ‘three lines of defence’ model referred to above, determined the key 
sources of assurance that the risks are being effectively managed. 

 Identified and agreed gaps in assurance. 

 Agreed whether the gaps should be addressed and, if so, the likely sources of assurance available. 
 
In determining Internal Audit’s current and future role in the ‘assurance landscape’, we noted that Internal Audit has a wider remit than purely focusing 
on just those risks set out in the Strategic Risk Registers of the OPCC and Force, and is required to provide assurance on the systems of internal 
control, risk management and governance arrangements. For this reason, we also considered other key areas of assurance including those relating to 
Finance, Governance, Procurement, Information Technology and Risk Management. 

3.4 Through a focused approach to assurance, the internal audit service can be utilised to provide the right level of assurance, it can avoid unnecessary 
use of its finite resources and it can support the OPCC and Force in maintaining an effective Assurance Framework. Internal Audit, through its support 
for the Assurance Framework, should: 

 support the OPCC and Force in managing its risks through the establishment (and, more importantly, the maintenance) of an Assurance 
Framework that is fit for purpose;  

 look to other sources of assurance and assurance providers, including third party assurance, to supplement the resources of the internal audit 
team; 

 work alongside other assurance providers, such as External Audit, to more effectively provide assurance and avoid duplication; and 
 through risk-based auditing, focus internal audit resource on what is really important to each organisation. 

 
3.5 Further to the above risk identification process, it should also be remembered that Derbyshire form part of the East Midlands Policing Region and, as 

such, collaborate on a wide variety of services. The aim will therefore be to, wherever possible, align the audit plans across the region in order to secure 
efficiencies through collaborative auditing. 
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4 External Audit Consultation 
4.1 We liaise closely with your external auditors in preparing, and then delivering, a co-ordinated approach to the provision of assurance.  

4.2 We speak regularly with the External Auditors to consult on audit plans; discuss matters of mutual interest; discuss common understanding of audit 
techniques; methods and terminology; and to seek opportunities for co-operation in the conduct of audit work.  In particular, we will offer the External 
Auditors the opportunity to rely on our work where appropriate, provided this does not prejudice our independence. 

4.3 Internal audit forms a significant part of the organisation’s governance arrangements and it is therefore also important that Internal and External Audit 
have an effective working relationship.  To facilitate this relationship we included in the Audit Charter liaison arrangement with the external auditors 
under the Public Internal Audit Standards. The key principles behind this agreement are: 

 a willingness and commitment to working together; 

 clear and open lines of communication; and 

 avoidance of duplication of work where possible. 

 

  



 

 

Page 5 
 

Appendix A – Annual Audit Plan 2020-21  
AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 

TIMING1 
JARAC2 PLAN 

DAYS 
Commentary on Coverage 

Core Assurance 

Core Financial Systems 
Assurance: 

 General Ledger 
 Cash, Banking & Treasury 

Management 
 Payments & Creditors 
 Income & Debtors 

Q3 Feb 2021 14 

To provide assurance with regards the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal 
control in operation to manage the core financial systems. The scope of the work will include, 
but not be limited to: 

 Policies and procedures 
 Access controls 
 Amendments to standing data 
 Reconciliations 
 Authorisation routines 
 Reporting 

Payroll  Q3 Feb 2021 5 

To provide assurance that there are effective controls in place for delivering the payroll 
service. Testing will be primarily be carried out on site at Leicestershire Police, who deliver 
the service on behalf of Derbyshire. However, we also cover ‘front end’ processes at 
Derbyshire and arrangements in place within the payroll bureau, Kier, in respect of access 
controls, payroll reporting and approval / sign-off routines. 

Governance Q4 May 2020 8 

To provide assurance that the Force and OPCC have effective arrangements in place to 
support compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance. In particular, it will review the 
process for compiling the Annual Governance Statement, providing a challenge with regards 
the evidence collected to support the declaration. 
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AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 

TIMING1 
JARAC2 PLAN 

DAYS 
Commentary on Coverage 

Strategic & Operational Risk Assurance 

Victim Support Q2 Oct 2020 8 

The OPCC commission services from a range of service providers to support the Victims of 
Crime in Derbyshire whilst the details of the scope will be agreed with management the audit 
will look to provide assurance that arrangements are in place for the compliance with the 
Victims Code of Practice.  

Partnership Q3 Feb 2021 7 

To provide assurance that partnerships are delivering the expected outcomes for its partners. 
The audit will cover the governance and risk management arrangements in place, including 
the agreement of a clear mission, the roles and responsibilities of the respective parties, 
accountability, decision-making, and performance monitoring and reporting. 

Proceeds of Crime Act Q1 July 2020 7 

Whilst the details of the scope will be agreed with management the audit will look to provide 
assurance with regards the policies and procedures put in place to ensure compliance with 
the Proceeds of Crime Act and to review if opportunities are being missed to maximise 
income for the Force.  

IT – Disaster Recovery Q3 Feb 2021 8 

Using computer specialist resource, the objective will be to provide assurance with regards 
key IT risks, such as those relating to data security, IT policies and procedures, network 
infrastructure and application controls. 

Workforce Planning Q2 Oct 2020 8 

To provide assurance that key controls in place with regards Workforce Planning are in place 
and are operating as intended. The scope will include, but not be limited to, how such 
planning contributes to the delivery of savings targets, the effective focus of resources, 
opportunities for recruitment and workforce projections. 

Project Management  Q1 July 2020 8 

Whilst the details of the scope will be agreed with management, the over-arching objective 
of the audit would be to provide assurance that projects are being effectively managed and 
that  the expected benefits have been realised and / or the Force/ PCC have processes in 
place to measure the success of a project. 
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AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 

TIMING1 
JARAC2 PLAN 

DAYS 
Commentary on Coverage 

Collaboration 

Collaboration Q2 & Q4 Feb & May 
2021 10 

Resources have been allocated across each OPCC / Force in order to provide assurance 
with regards to the systems and controls in place to deliver specific elements of regional 
collaboration.  

Consideration will be given to assessing whether the area of collaboration is delivering 
against its original objectives and what arrangements are in place, from an OPCC / Force 
perspective, for monitoring and managing the service. 

 Other 

Audit Management Ongoing  14 This includes audit planning, production of progress and annual reports, and attendance at 
progress and JARAC meetings.  

Follow Up of 
Recommendations   3 To provide assurance that management have implemented audit recommendations. 

 TOTAL   100  

1 Proposed timings for each audit to be agreed, with any changes reported to the JARAC. 
2 Dates for delivery to the JARAC to be included within future progress reports when known.



 

 

Page 8 
 

Appendix B – Strategic Audit Plan 2020-23  

Audit Assignment 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 
RISK  

CAT. 

Core Assurance  

Core Financials Systems    Core 

Payroll    Core 

Risk Management    Core 

Governance    Core 

Strategic & Operational Risk 

Procurement     

Complaints    STR2010 / 
PRO1088 

IT Security    STR1960  

Business Continuity     STR1089 / 1913 
/ 1894 

MTFP / Budget Control & Savings Plans    STR1192 / 1176 

Property Management     

Commissioning    STR1984 

Partnerships    STR1979 / 0016 
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Audit Assignment 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 
RISK  

CAT. 

IT Governance    STR1960 / 1033 

Recruitment    STR1422 / 1099 

Estates Management    STR1035 / 2014 

Victims Support    STR1978 / 2020 

Health & Safety    STR1219 

Data Quality    STR1046/ 1959 

Absence Management    STR1098 / 1219 

Project Management     

Workforce Planning     

IT – Disaster Recovery     

POCA     

Collaboration 

Collaboration     

Other 

Follow-up of Recommendations    General 

Audit Management     



OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police - Draft Report  

 

Page 10 
 

Appendix C – Levels of Assurance & Opinions 
 

Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system design Effectiveness of operating 
controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system of internal 
control designed to achieve the 
Organisation’s objectives. 

The control processes tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically sound 
system of internal control, there are 
weaknesses which put some of the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the level of non-
compliance with some of the control 
processes may put some of the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the system of internal 
controls are such as to put the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

No Assurance: Control processes are generally weak 
leaving the processes/systems open 
to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic 
control processes leaves the 
processes/systems open to error or 
abuse. 

 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control weaknesses, which expose the 
organisation to a high degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control weaknesses which expose the 
organisation to a moderate degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted opportunities to 
implement a good or better practice, to improve efficiency or further reduce 
exposure to risk. 
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Appendix D – Contact Details 

 

 

Contact Details 

 

David Hoose 
07552 007708 

David.Hoose@mazars.co.uk 

Mark Lunn 

 

07881 284060 

Mark.Lunn@mazars.co.uk 

 

 

mailto:David.Hoose@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Mark.Lunn@mazars.co.uk
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Statement of Responsibility 
We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of 
our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or 
all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed 
by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and 
should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound 

management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal 
controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management 
and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in 
internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound 
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not 
be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to 
provide us full access to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our work 
and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our 
recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control 
system. 

Mazars LLP 

London 

February 2020 

This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, 
without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name or this document for any other purpose, 
disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or 
communicate them to any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any 
purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown or gains 
access to this document. 

Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United 

Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars 
LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out 
company audit work. 
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JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE 
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TITLE AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING  

REPORT BY CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER/FINANCE DIRECTOR 
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To share with members, the Police Sector Audit Committee Briefing produced by EY, 
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1Police Sector Audit Committee Briefing

This sector briefing is one of 
the ways that we support you 
and your organisation in an 
environment that is constantly 
changing and evolving.

It covers issues which may have an impact on 
your organisation, the police sector, and the 
audits that we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public 
sector audit specialists within EY’s national 
Government and Public Sector (GPS) team, 
using our public sector knowledge, and EY’s 
wider expertise across UK and international 
business. 

The briefings bring together not only technical 
issues relevant to the Police sector but wider 
matters of potential interest to you and your 
organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of 
the articles featured can be found at the end of 
the briefing. 

We hope that you find the briefing informative 
and should this raise any issues that you would 
like to discuss further please contact your local 
audit team.
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EY club item
Economic forecast — EY Club Item

The latest EY ITEM Club forecast highlights that continued 
uncertainties — including those surrounding Brexit — and the 
weak economic global environment continue to weigh on the UK 
economy post the General Election. Fiscal policy will be more 
supportive than previously planned, with the 2020/21 spending 
review indicating that public spending will rise by 4.1% in real 
terms. This briefing considers the prospects for social care 
funding and the housing crisis.

The EY ITEM Club anticipates that continued Brexit 
uncertainty will restrict UK economic growth in 2020

The EY ITEM Club’s autumn forecast predicts relatively weak UK 
GDP growth of just 1.0% in 2020. This reflects an assumption 
that the UK will leave the EU at the end of January with Boris 
Johnson’s withdrawal agreement, in addition to the fact that 
uncertainty around the UK’s future relationship with the EU 
remains. This is likely to limit any recovery in business investment 
in the immediate future. Geopolitical and trade pressures weighing 
on the global economy are also likely to cause a drag on the UK 
economy.

UK GDP growth for 2019 remains on track to be 1.3% in 2019, 
in line with past EY ITEM Club forecasts and representing a slight 
decline on the 1.4% figure for 2018. By comparison, 1.0% in 2020 
would be a significant decline, and this is likely to have important 
consequences for local government.

Government and 
economic news

Local authorities will likely need to continue to be innovative 
to deliver high quality social care

Chancellor Sajid Javid has pledged public spending increases of 
4.1% in real terms in the 2020/21 spending review — the fastest 
increase in 15 years — whilst it is anticipated that the Budget for 
2020/21 will contain further fiscal loosening measures. Austerity 
to the extent of the past decade appears to be at an end.

Figure 1: UK public sector spending (% of GDP)

Sources: Office for Budget Responsibility; BBC

Despite this, the Conservative manifesto pledges maintaining the 
£1bn of grant funding announced in the last spending review for 
the duration of the next parliament as well as £500mn of funding 
for potholes (in contrast with an extra £13bn proposed by the 
Labour manifesto).
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The Conservative manifesto is light on detail on social care reform 
that has been anticipated in the continuously delayed green paper. 
On top of the maintenance of the £1bn of grant funding, they 
refer to the need for more staff, better infrastructure and a new 
entitlement to an extra week of leave for people undertaking care 
on an unpaid basis. But this falls short of a long-term solution, 
which the Conservatives have stated needs to come from cross-
party consensus. It also does not indicate how the manifesto 
commitment that ‘no one needing care has to sell their home to 
pay for it’ will be achieved.1

Until more clarity emerges in this regard, local authorities may 
continue to be financially and operationally squeezed in their 
delivery of social care. This is compounded by the fact that there 
were 136,000 job vacancies in the health and social work sector 
(17% of all UK vacancies),2 whilst labour markets remain tight, 
with unemployment of 3.9% just one percentage point above the 
joint-lowest level since 1974. Despite this, continued funding 
constraints will mean that badly needed wage growth in the sector 
is unlikely to materialise to a great extent in the next year, even 
given recent strong economy-wide wage growth. Furthermore, 
UK wide productivity remains low, with Q2 2019 being the fourth 
consecutive quarter without growth.

The housing crisis remains a major pressure on local 
government

The latest RICS survey indicated that average housing stock 
levels on estate agents’ books in September were close to the 
lowest level in the survey’s history. Housing market activity is also 
forecast to remain below the 2016 peak until at least 2023. The 
Government’s initiatives to boost house building will take time 
to have a significant effect, so are unlikely to markedly influence 
housing availability in the short term at least. In addition, the 
proportion of new houses that will be affordable must also be 
seen as a significant measure as to the effectiveness of central 
government policy dealing with the housing crisis.

Local authorities therefore continue to take up the mantle in 
combating the crisis, with 78% of councils having a housing 
or property company as of March 2019. Councils are finding 
different ways of delivering, developing their own land in some 
cases and making acquisitions in others, working with different 
types of partners and providers, and applying focus to affordable 
housing and various specific-need groups (such as the elderly).3

Certainty elusive as Brexit continues to dominate the 
political agenda

The Conservatives’ primary election campaign promise to ‘Get 
Brexit Done’ only represents the beginning of a long process of 
trade deal negotiations, both with the EU and other third partners. 
The Government has stated its intention to negotiate a deal 
with the EU next year, not extending the implementation period 
beyond 2020. That said, the delays to the withdrawal agreement 
process suggest that it is difficult to guarantee this. Furthermore, 
the Government plans to agree new free trade agreements to 
cover 80% of UK trade over the next three years.1 Economic and 
political uncertainty are therefore likely to remain prominent 
during this period, if not beyond.

Central government is therefore likely to remain focused on 
international trade and relations over the next few years. It will 
become increasingly important for local government to continue 
to play a leading role in society, delivering vital services for local 
residents. There is little in the EY ITEM Club’s forecasts to suggest 
that the economy will provide much support in meeting these 
challenges.

The need for innovation to improve the social care system’s 
capacity

The lead up to the UK election saw all major political parties 
making proposed commitments to expand social care. The newly 
elected Conservative government has stated that the social care 
system needs to ‘give every person the dignity and security they 
deserve’. Aside from a commitment to maintain the extra £1bn 
of grant funding, there has been little further detail about what 
social care reform may happen in the term of the Parliament.

This financial commitment contributes, albeit probably not 
sufficiently, to the proposed funding gap. However, funding in the 
social care system is not the only shortfall; recent research by the 
Nuffield Trust has suggested there are 165,000 over 65s with 
unmet care needs and providing these with just two hours of care 
a day would require 90,000 new home care workers. This doesn’t 
consider any other forms of social care, such as adults with 
special or complex needs. Therefore, the shortfall of 90,000 care 
workers is likely to be a prudent figure.

Successful expansion of the social care system will be 
heavily influenced by macroeconomic conditions

Any expansion of the social care system in the UK will need careful 
consideration of the existing conditions in the labour market. 
The current unemployment rate of 3.9% stands at near record 
low levels. However, despite nominal wage growth standing at 
its highest rate since 2008, real wage growth remains near zero. 
These conditions will make it challenging to expand the workforce 
of the social care system without significantly increasing spending 
or looking for alternative means of delivery.

1 The Telegraph, ‘Conservative Party manifesto 2019’, 10 December 2019, [online]. 
Available at: https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2019/12/10/conservative-
manifesto-2019-nhs-election/

2 Office for National Statistics, ‘Vacancies and jobs in the UK’, 12 November 2019, 
[online]. Available at: https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/
peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/
november2019

3 Inside Housing, ‘Councils are finding their building confidence’, 15 March 2019, 
[online]. Available at: https://www.insidehousing.co.uk/sponsored/sponsored/
councils-are-finding-their-building-confidence?

https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2019/12/13/conservative-manifesto-2019-election-boris-johnson/
https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2019/12/13/conservative-manifesto-2019-election-boris-johnson/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/november2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/november2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/november2019
https://www.insidehousing.co.uk/sponsored/sponsored/councils-are-finding-their-building-confidence?
https://www.insidehousing.co.uk/sponsored/sponsored/councils-are-finding-their-building-confidence?
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It is possible to establish an economically sustainable social 
care system

There are examples of successful social care system 
transformations from across the globe that provide insightful 
lessons for potential reform in the UK’s social care system.

In 2013, the Australian Government introduced a universal 
social care system referred to as the National Disability Insurance 
Scheme (NDIS). The NDIS entitles people with a ‘permanent and 
significant’ disability (under the age of 65), to full funding for 
‘any reasonable and necessary’ support needs relating to their 
disability (subject to certain restrictions). Funding is allocated to 
the individual, and the individual or their guardian chooses which 
providers supply the funded goods and services (subject to other 
restrictions). The scheme is entirely publicly funded.

Research commissioned by the Australian Government in 2011, 
found that by approximately 2025 the cost of maintaining the 
status quo in relation to the care of people with a disability would 
be greater than the cost of an NDIS. The status quo heavily relied 
on a fragmented funding system of grants that offered little long-
term security for those with disabilities. A broken system was 
deemed to be constraining those with special needs’ ability and 
the ability of their carers to participate in Australian society. Other 
downstream costs of the status quo included those seen in the 
criminal justice system, health system, homelessness and costs 
relating to social isolation.

Expanding social care requires innovation and careful 
consideration of labour supply and community needs

There was a clear need to overhaul the social care system in 
Australia, however it meant the disability sector in Australia would 
need to double its workforce to meet the needs of the NDIS. 
Consultations on the NDIS to date have highlighted several key 
issues that would be of important consideration in the proposed 
expansion of social care in the UK:

• Vulnerable clients: The communities that some providers 
serve may have complex and more pressing needs, including 
isolation, complex disability support and challenges in self-
determining their needs. These clients require more highly 
qualified staff to service their needs.

• Higher operating costs: Low client numbers (or difficulty in 
finding connection with clients that are in a region), and/or 
highly dispersed clients result in high per-client costs under 
existing staff utilisation.

• Workforce: Challenges in recruiting and retaining qualified 
workers as well as providing learning and development 
opportunities.

• Temporary supply gaps during transition: Temporary supply 
gaps during transition to full implementation of the scheme, 
where some supports (such as certain specialist supports and 
Allied Health services) take time to reach levels required to 
meet demand.

• Geographic isolation: Physical distance and travel time 
results in high costs for service delivery for isolated or highly 
dispersed communities.

Many of these challenges would likely impact any proposed 
expansion of the social care workforce in the UK too. Focus should 
therefore be applied to mitigating these during the formation of 
any associated policy. However, what else should be considered in 
the need to expand social care?

The need to improve capacity

The call to expand the social care system pertains to the current 
and growing challenge of lack of capacity in the system. Whilst 
expanding the workforce is one means to try and tackle this, so 
is improving productivity. Where significant workforce challenges 
exist, then focusing on technologically enabled productivity gains 
is likely to be crucial.

There are a range of opportunities through which technology has 
the potential to improve the productivity of the social care system:

• Managing front-door demand — Predictive analytics can now 
be used to identify risk and vulnerable groups to proactively 
target interventions before demand materialises.

• Making existing service delivery for staff more efficient —
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) applications provide improved productive capacity 
and flexibility for staff through streamlined processes and 
automated administration tasks, allowing staff to focus on 
supporting user needs.

• Technology-enabled care — Assistive technology provides a 
vehicle to personalise and tailor support, reducing intrusion 
whilst providing a platform for connectivity and care, such as 
virtual reality empathy training, real time care monitoring and 
work flowed predictive analytics.

• Procurement and commissioning — Data driven decision 
making through predictive analytics, digital care planning and 
eBrokerage now provides an effective platform for evidence-
based outcome-focused commissioning.

It is vital that any proposed expansion of the social care system 
doesn’t purely focus on increasing the number of social care 
workers. The system needs fundamental transformations in its 
digital infrastructure and it is through the productivity gains that 
can be yielded from those, that the system can best overcome its 
capacity challenges.
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Future funding for vital services
Research conducted by the Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) has 
predicted that council tax revenues will significantly fall short 
of the funding required to provide key services. If council tax 
revenues increase at their current rate in line with inflation at 2% 
then this would result in a shortfall of £4bn by 2024/25, rising 
to £18bn by the mid-2030s. An increase in council tax by 4% per 
year would still result in a shortfall of £1.6bn by 2024/25 and 
£8.7bn by 2034/35. 

Local authorities, including police forces, have become increasing 
more reliant on council tax and business rates income. More 
than half of all spending is funded from council tax while 30% 
of spend is funded from business rates. With reform of business 
rate retention and Fair Funding reviews on the horizon it is likely 
that this sector will become even more reliant on council tax and 
business rate income. 

The IFS also found that budgets of local authorities, including 
fire and rescue services, are increasingly focused on fulfilling 
statutory duties and focusing spending on those that need it the 
most, as opposed to providing equitable service to all. 

Public works loan board (PWLB) interest  
rate increase
On 9 October 2019 HM Treasury announced a 1% interest 
rate increase for all new PWLB loans with immediate effect. 
The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government noted that this was a necessary step to control 
the increase and dependency on PWLB borrowing. Total PWLB 
borrowing increased by 72% from 2017/18 to 2018/19 to £9.1bn 
on new loans across all local authorities, including police forces, 
before this interest rate hikes. 

A spokesman from the Local Government Association (LGA) has 
commented that this PWLB rate increase may put at risk many 
vital capital schemes, which may now be delayed or cancelled due 
to unaffordability. 

The initial impact of the interest rate increase on PWLB loan 
borrowing has suggested that the value of new loans drawn down 
in October 2019 has decreased by 71% compared to September 
2019. In response to interest rate hikes councillors and mayors 
from multiple London Boroughs have written to the Chancellor 
of the Exchequer (the Chancellor) calling on him to reverse the 
increase.

Home office announces first wave of 20,000 
police recruit targets
The Home Office has announced the police recruitment targets 
for every police force in England and Wales for the next 3 
years to align with the 20,000 police recruits announced by 
the government and confirmed by the Chancellor in the recent 
budget. This is in addition to the extra police officers already being 
recruited in 2019/20 as a result of the £1bn increase in police 
funding arising from council tax and serious violence funding.

Chairing the second meeting of the National Policing Board 
the Home Secretary, Preeti Patel, set out her vision for front 
line policing, including the additional police numbers which she 
claimed was not only a priority for the government but for the 
public at large.

Detailing the phasing of the additional recruits, the Home 
Secretary provided a force by force breakdown of the first recruits 
to be hired in 2019/20. In total this will be 6,000 trainee officers 
and is part of the uplift in police funding to be committed through 
a combination of location taxation through council tax increases 
and matched government funding.

Details of the individual forces and their respective first year 
targets can be found in the web link referred to in the ‘Find out 
more’ section of this briefing.

GDP Domestic 
demand

Consumer 
spending

Fixed 
investment

Exports Imports

2017 1.9 1.2 2.2 1.6 6.1 3.5

2018 1.4 1.4 1.6 -0.1 -0.9 0.7

2019 (forecast) 1.3 2.3 1.2 -0.3 -0.1 4.3

2020 (forecast) 1.0 0.8 1.4 -0.4 1.1 0.3

2021 (forecast) 1.5 1.8 1.8 2.7 2.5 3.1

2022 (forecast) 1.7 2.0 1.9 2.3 3.2 3.8

2023 (forecast) 1.8 2.0 2.0 2.6 3.5 3.7

The EY ITEM Club forecast for the UK economy, autumn 2019. % changes on previous year
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Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

Going concern
In response to recent well-publicised corporate failures, the 
Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the regulator of external 
auditors, has issued a revised standard on going concern, 
International Standard on Auditing (‘ISA’) (UK) 570. The revised 
standard is effective for audits of financial statements for periods 
commencing on or after 15 December 2019 (e.g., the 2020/21 
accounts), with early adoption possible. 

The uncertain economic environment, risks arising from Brexit 
and weakness in the retail sector due to falling consumer spending 
mean increasing risks around going concern in the corporate 
sector. These risks are also prevalent, to a lesser extent, in local 
government. Public interest expectations around the work of 
auditors on going concern, and the regulator’s expectations on 
how we robustly challenge management, have also never been 
higher.

The revised standard increases the work auditors are required to 
perform when assessing whether an entity is a going concern. 
As a starting point, the expectation of the regulator is that there 
are going concern uncertainties in every business which must 
be identified by the auditor, before a robust consideration of 
management’s assessment is carried out. 

This requires auditors to perform:

• An enhanced risk assessment to inform the auditor’s challenge 
of management’s identification of events or conditions 
impacting going concern, more specific requirements to test 
management’s resulting assessment of going concern, an 
evaluation of the supporting evidence obtained which includes 
consideration of the risk of management bias.

• If we identify events or conditions that management 
did not, further procedures are required including 
consideration of control weaknesses and risk of fraud.

• The testing of management’s method of assessment, 
assumptions, the relevance and reliability of data, 
management’s future actions and events since 
management’s assessment are more explicitly described in 
the new standard, although many of the required steps will 
reflect current best practice.

• The evaluation of evidence when we draw our conclusions 
on going concern includes a stand back requirement to 
consider all the evidence obtained (whether corroborative 
or contradictory) and consideration of management bias 
even if all judgements and assumptions are individually 
reasonable.

• Financial statement disclosures around going concern now 
need to be considered for ‘appropriateness’ not ‘adequacy’.

• Extended requirements to report to regulators where we have 
concerns about going concern.
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Your local audit team will provide further details later in 2020 on 
what these changes might mean for the work management must 
perform on going concern and the expectations of the audit team.

Public sector audit consultations 
There are two recent consultations which may change the shape 
of public sector financial reporting and auditing. These are:

• Independent review into the arrangements in place to support 
the transparency and quality of local authority financial 
reporting and external audit in England (‘Call for Views’) led by 
Sir Tony Redmond.

• Local audit in England — Code of Audit Practice — Draft Code 
Consultation led by the National Audit Office (‘NAO Code’).

We believe reforms should be guided by the following principles:

• Reforms should enhance, or at least should not create risks to, 
the quality of financial reporting and external audit.

• The importance of the multidisciplinary audit firm model, to 
enable local auditors to respond efficiently and effectively 
to the increased reporting complexity and risks facing public 
sector bodies.

• There should not be a two-tier system of generally accepted 
accounting and auditing standards between the public and 
corporate sectors.

• To be effective and sustainable, reforms need to focus on the 
public sector financial reporting and external audit ecosystem 
as a whole (e.g., public bodies governance, controls, reporting 
and auditing). This should include changes to how local 
auditors conduct and report on local public bodies’ Value for 
Money arrangements.

We also believe that increased transparency of reporting to local 
taxpayers and other users of accounts is needed to improve 
the effectiveness of local public bodies’ corporate governance, 
financial position, risk appetite and rationale for significant 
decisions. 

The Call for Views and changes to the NAO Code comes at a time 
of significant scrutiny of the UK audit market and profession. We 
believe it is crucial that the outcomes from the Call for Views, 
and the finalisation of the NAO Code, is closely aligned with the 
outcome of these various reviews. 

At EY, we will be responding to both consultations and are 
committed to work with Sir Tony Redmond, the UK government 
and NAO in support of the aim to improve the transparency and 
sustainability of public sector financial reporting and external 
audit. In our next briefing, we will share the key messages in our 
responses to both consultations. We encourage Audit Committees 
to be aware of and contribute its views to these important 
consultations and developments and your Engagement Lead will 
be happy to discuss these matters with you.

CIPFA publications: Financial management and 
commercial investments 
On 11 October 2019 CIPFA launched its first financial 
management code in 15 years. The financial management Code 
(FM Code) is designed to help officers navigate the increasing 
complex issues of public sector finance, including financial 
sustainability. The FM Code requires all local authorities, 
including police, fire and other authorities, to demonstrate that 
the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good 
financial management. The FM Code identifies risks to financial 
sustainability, introduces a framework of assurance and sets 
explicit standards of financial management. Complying with the 
standards set out in the FM Code is the collective responsibility 
of elected members, the chief finance officer and the leadership 
team. Ultimately the FM Code aims at improving financial decision 
making. 

The FM Code is built on elements of other CIPFA codes and 
applicability will be familiar to users of publications such as The 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance, Treasury Management in 
the Public Sector Code of Practice and Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

CIPFA chief executive, Rob Whiteman, said that ‘CIPFA’s ambition 
was to embed good financial management as an organisational 
responsibility … and move towards a sense of collective 
responsibility when it comes to finance.’ The National Audit Office 
Auditor General, Gareth Davies, welcomed the new financial 
management code as it will help local authorities to improve their 
standards of financial management and cope with the financial 
challenges they are facing.

CIPFA has also issued new guidance to advise local authorities 
on what is expected from them when commercial property 
investments are made. The institute has warned that authorities 
must not borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely 
in the interest of profit. The cornerstone of this new guidance, 
published on 15 November 2019, is that under the prudential 
framework local authorities should not put public money 
and services at risk to the extent that an investment bank or 
commercial investor may legitimately do with their shareholders’ 
funds.
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Regulation 
news

Value for money profiles 2019
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and 
Rescue Services (HMICFRS) has published its latest annual 
value for money profiles. The profiles allow the public to review 
performance and spending of police forces in England and Wales. 
The value for money profile groups similar forces across England 
and Wales to enable more meaningful comparison. The analysis 
may offer an opportunity to identify areas where improvement 
can be made within a force through consideration of performance 
relative to other forces. Key metrics include:

• How much forces spend on different activities.

• How crime levels compare across forces, as well as what 
outcomes forces achieve.

• Workforce costs broken down by role, rank and gender.

Police response to cyber-dependent crime is 
generally good, but it can be inconsistent, finds 
inspectorate
Police forces and the National Crime Agency (NCA) are generally 
good in responding to the threats of cyber-dependent crime but 
there can be local variations. 

HMICFRS inspected how the police and the NCA respond to the 
range of threats which currently present themselves. These 
include hostile state actors, those involved in online harassment, 
and others involved in organised crime. The report and the 
assessments were specifically requested by the Home Secretary.

Not all forces and agencies were assessed in detail. A total of 10 
forces, 3 crime agencies and 10 regional organised crime units 
were used to support the assessment.

The objectives of the assessment were:

• To assess whether law enforcement has a well-defined strategy 
for tackling cyber-dependent crime.

• Reviewing organisational structures to see if they provided the 
necessary capability, capacity and partnerships.

• Assessing the degree of responses received from the victims 
of cybercrime.

• Considering if staff at a local and national level are provided 
with appropriate learning opportunities to deal with cyber 
dependent crime.
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In a far-reaching report ‘Cyber — Keep the Light On’ HMICFRS 
identified a number of positive attributes. These include:

• Efficient working between different law enforcement agencies.

• Early identification and response to emerging threats.

• Development of local cyber-dependent crime teams.

• A well-developed national strategy for dealing with the threat 
from cyber dependent crime.

• Implementation of minimum standards and widely recognised 
performance standards.

Despite these positive efforts, HMICFRS concluded that the 
wider aims of the various agencies involved is at risk of being 
undermined due to the inconsistencies that currently exist across 
the wider system.

Specific issues highlighted in the report included:

• Concerns over the financial sustainability and capacity at all 
levels.

• Limited understanding of demand at a local level.

• Some forces not fully complying with initiatives to co-ordinate 
resources.

Police effectiveness, efficiency and legitimacy 
(PEEL) efficiency and effectiveness review — 
group 2
HMICFRS published the latest assessment results at the end of 
September 2019 for those forces included in Group 2 of the PEEL: 
Efficiency and Effectiveness Review for 2018/19. The first 14 
forces were assessed, and their results published in May 2019 and 
this report covers the next 15. The last 14 assessments will be 
published in early 2020.

These assessments were also the first assessments conducted 
under the Integrated PEEL Assessments (IPA) methodology. This 
brings the 3 assessments into a single integrated approach. The 
IPA approach also attempts to reduce the burden of inspection on 
forces and adopts a more risk based approach to inspections.

PEEL is the annual assessment of the police in England and Wales. 
HMICFRS assess the police to find out:

• How effective they are at investigating crime, protecting 
vulnerable people and tackling serious organised crime.

• How effectively they manage demand and plan for the future.

• How legitimately they treat the public, how ethically they 
behave, and how they treat their workforce.

A headline message issued with the report was that forces are not 
considered to be doing enough to prevent officers abusing their 
position for a sexual purpose.

Other headline messages from this second wave of assessments 
were:

• Overall most forces continue to perform well.

• The majority of forces continue to keep people safe and  
reduce crime.

The second wave of assessments highlighted that there are 
more forces requiring improvement in more areas. HMICFRS also 
issued the first inadequate grading in the 2018/19 assessment. 
Cleveland Police scored inadequate across all 3 assessment pillars. 
The second wave of assessments also reinforced the findings from 
the first round of assessments — a system under pressure. 

Of the 15 forces assessed the following results were obtained:

Effectiveness: 10 forces were graded as good, 4 as requiring 
improvement and 1 graded as inadequate.

Efficiency: 9 forces were graded as good, 4 as requiring 
improvement and 2 graded as inadequate.

Legitimacy: 11 forces were graded as good, 3 as requiring 
improvement and 1 graded as inadequate.

New and emerging themes:
Demand is a key feature of policing. New patterns emerging with 
respect to demand include an increasing number of forces failing 
to respond to increases in demand. 7 of the 15 forces inspected 
in the second wave of inspections saw their performance in the 
efficiency assessment actually decline when compared to the prior 
period. Furthermore, 2 of the forces were experiencing particular 
difficulties in this area and as such were graded as inadequate.

Another demand related issue was in respect of the ability of 
control room staff to meet the demands placed on them. 9 of the 
15 forces inspected were experiencing pressure in this area and 
difficulties in performance. 

Other areas highlighted included particular pressures in 
responding to non-urgent and high volume crimes such as 
burglary, assault and theft. With limited resources most forces 
have invested in key priorities such as the more serious crimes of 
child abuse, rape and serious violence over non-urgent and high 
volume crimes.

A further issue highlighted was supervision. For forces to operate 
efficiently and effectively good supervision and oversight are 
key. The assessments noted that some forces are struggling to 
give their workforce the supervision they need to provide the 
public with the best possible service. This was also linked to poor 
supervision across investigations with 6 of the 15 forces being 
assessed as requiring improvement in this area.
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EY audit quality and transparency reports 
This year, for the first time, EY is publishing a UK Audit Quality 
Report alongside our UK Transparency Report and both reports 
are now available on ey.com. 

As our profession continues to face scrutiny, we believe it is vital 
that we are as open and transparent as possible. Together these 
reports aim to achieve this by setting out how we’re addressing 
our public interest responsibilities and delivering high quality 
audits. 

Our Audit Quality Report sets out the actions we’ve taken over 
the last five years to improve audit quality and, importantly, those 
that we will focus on in the future. We hope that by sharing the 
details of our long-term and future investment plans with you, this 
will instil confidence in our commitment to quality.

Audit quality
We understand our role in society is to serve the public interest. 
Delivering consistently high quality audits is how we play our part 
in restoring and sustaining confidence. A commitment to audit 
quality starts at the top of the organisation. EY leaders set a clear 
tone from the top by promoting, maintaining and demonstrating 
a culture based on a commitment to quality, integrity, and 
collaboration.

It is also critical that we create an environment where our teams 
are supported to deliver high-quality audits. We have established 
the Audit Quality Board (‘AQB’) to take a lead in setting this tone 
and we hold regular events and issue communications to reinforce 
a priority on audit quality. 

The importance of setting the right expectations for all our audit 
teams is why ‘tone at the top’ is the first pillar of our Sustainable 
Audit Quality (‘SAQ’) programme. 

We have already made significant investments to improve audit 
quality over the last five years through our SAQ programme. 
We began this programme in 2014 when we set up the UK AQB 
and our Audit Quality Support Team and launched annual Audit 
Quality Summits for our partners and senior staff. Since then, our 
approach to partner and staff remuneration has been focused 
on ensuring audit quality is reinforced as a critical factor in 
determining pay awards.

Our investment in audit quality is now £25mn a year higher than 
in 2014; however, we recognise that there remains more to do. 
We will continue to invest to meet the expectations of all our 
stakeholders and society as a whole.

Exceptional talent
The competition for talented people with the right mindset to 
deliver high-quality audits has never been higher. As a result, 
the profession continues to face challenges with recruiting and 
retaining the right number of people with the right skills. This 
has been exacerbated by the increased demands and pressures 
that the profession is facing in the current environment. We 
are committed to attracting, developing, inspiring and retaining 
outstanding audit professionals and promoting an inclusive culture 
for them to be able to deliver to the best of their abilities. We 
have been recruiting, and continue to recruit, across our business 
and aim to deliver an exceptional experience for our people 
throughout the recruitment process and their career.

Accountability
Society as a whole and our regulators rightly expect us to be 
accountable for the work we perform. Without this accountability 
being recognised and responded to at all levels in the audit 
process, we will not achieve the improvements we need to make 
in delivering consistently high quality audits. We believe that, 
as auditors, we are accountable not just to ourselves, but to 
our teams, our organisation, our stakeholders and the public 
interest. We have embedded a culture of accountability at all 
levels of the audit process, whilst also providing the support 
necessary for our people to take responsibility for their work. We 
are further reinforcing the importance of accountability through 
the SAQ programme, our quality ratings and our partners’ 
performance evaluations. Monitoring our audit performance and 
the effectiveness of our actions to improve audit quality is a key 
part of our system of quality control and the activities of the AQB, 
ensuring that we hold ourselves fully accountable for the quality 
of work we do.

Audit technology and digital
The extent to which the entities we audit create and use data has 
increased significantly. This generates a unique opportunity to 
drive greater assurance and hence improve audit quality through 
the appropriate analysis of this data. During the past five years, 
we have been undergoing an unprecedented transformation in 
our capability to leverage and interrogate the data created by the 
entities we audit and in improving our own technology supporting 
the audit process. This allows us to increase audit quality not 
only through improved data analysis, but also through using 
technology to improve project management, timely review and 
resolution of issues identified in our audits.
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To take advantage of the opportunities offered by innovative 
technologies in every EY audit, we have transformed EY’s Global 
Audit Methodology (GAM) to put data at the heart of the audit. 
Known as EY Digital GAM, this new approach has been piloted in 
2019 and will be phased in globally from 2020. Digital GAM is 
powered by our digital audit technology, using this to embed data 
analysis and automated techniques in all phases of the audit. It 
also simplifies certain tasks and improves linkage from one audit 
procedure to another. 

This updated methodology will further enhance audit quality 
through:

• The standardising or automating of routine audit tasks, 
enabling teams to focus on identified anomalies or higher risk 
judgemental aspects of the audit.

• Providing greater clarity on the risks inherent in an 
organisation, driving a more focused audit approach.

Simplification and innovation
A natural response to regulatory inspection findings and the 
pressures we face to deliver the highest quality audits is to do 
more and more work; however, if this is not targeted in the 
right areas or effectively performed, it can actually be counter-
productive. The quality of our audits is improved where we can 
also deliver simplification and innovation in the way we perform 
and document our work. In a world of ever-increasing complexity 
and data availability, we have innovated our audit technologies 
and approach — not only to stay ahead of these changes, but also 
to use them to our advantage and improve audit quality. Where 
possible, we have also used this opportunity to simplify our work, 
giving our audit teams greater clarity on key risks and increased 
time to focus on these.

Enablement and quality support
The complexity of the organisations we audit continues to 
increase, making risk assessment and key audit judgements ever 
more difficult. At the same time, the expectations of 

all our stakeholders for us to perform high-quality audits and 
provide trust and confidence also increases. We have to ensure 
that we have the right support for our audit teams to help them 
address complexity, challenge management appropriately and 
document our judgements clearly. We have always provided, and 
continue to provide, technical accounting and risk management 
support to our audit teams as required. Since 2014 we have 
significantly increased the level of support provided to individual 
audit teams, particularly those on our most challenging and 
complex audits. This includes coaching programmes and coaching 
kits, as well as other processes designed to improve audit quality. 
Importantly, we also routinely monitor audit quality indicators and 
have in place processes to learn quickly from both positive and 
negative quality outcomes.

There is no doubt we are in challenging times and there is 
uncertainty ahead. Our main focus will continue to be on 
delivering high-quality audits and we have every confidence that 
the steps we have taken, and those we plan to make, to deliver 
audit quality are the right ones. We will continue to support our 
audit teams through the investment in technology, processes and, 
most of all, in our people. Our purpose must be to deliver audits of 
the highest quality and provide confidence to the capital markets 
and other stakeholders. 

Our Transparency Report, meanwhile, sets out what we do as a 
firm, how we’re structured and governed, how we manage risk 
and comply with regulation, and how we performed in FY19. 
During the year we established our Audit Risk Committee, to 
expand our risk-scanning processes on audits. The goal is to 
ensure that we appropriately identify high risk clients and sectors 
and tailor our approach to them. Looking ahead to 2020, we have 
a number of priority areas which include additional investment in 
people, increasing the scope of our Audit Quality Support Team, 
championing new ideas and innovation and enhancing our focus 
on promoting the desired culture and behaviours for audit quality. 

We hope these reports offer a useful means to assess our policies 
and processes for maintaining independence and complying with 
relevant standards and regulations.
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Key questions for the audit committee
Future funding for vital services
What is the largest cost pressure or funding gap for your police 
force? What actions are your force taking to address future 
budget gaps in the medium to long term?

To what extent is your police force reliant on its tax based to 
fund services?

Public works loan board (PWLB) interest rate 
increase
What impact has the PWLB interest rate increase had on your 
police force?

Home office announces first wave of 20,000 
police recruit targets
What impact does the additional police officers in your 
respective force have on wider strategic and operational 
objectives?

Going concern
Have you discussed with your auditors what impact the revised 
standard on going concern will have on your consideration of 
going concern and the changes to your audit?

Public sector audit consultations
Did your Police force participate in the public sector audit 
consultations? 

What reforms do you believe are key to the future 
sustainability of public sector financial reporting and auditing? 

CIPFA publications: Financial management 
and commercial investments
How has your Police force adopted and implemented CIPFA’s 
new Financial Management code?

Value for money profiles 2019
Have you reviewed the 2019 VFM Profiles for your local force? 
Is there any learning that can be gained from the reported 
performance of your local force or that of your closest 
statistical neighbours?

Police response to cyber-dependent crime 
Is your police force prepared to respond to the threat of  
cyber-dependent crime?

PEEL efficiency and effectiveness review — 
group 2
Are you aware of the latest PEEL Inspection results for your 
Force? Is there any learning or action required as a result of 
the latest findings? If so, does this have any impact on the 
strategic or operational risk registers?

EY audit quality and transparency reports
Have you discussed with your auditors the benefits of a digital 
audit?
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Find out more
Future funding for vital services
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/major-gap-
between-council-revenue-and-funding-needed-says-ifs

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/2019/11/ifs-councils-sacrificing-
other-services-protect-social-care

PWLB borrowing drops since rates rise
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/increased-pwlb-
interest-rate-rise-puts-capital-projects-jeopardy

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/whiteman-
councils-risky-commercial-deals-could-prompt-increased-
regulation

Additional police officers
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/home-office-announces-
first-wave-of-20000-police-officer-uplift

Going concern
https://www.iaasb.org/publications-resources/international-
standard-auditing-isa-570-revised-going-concern

Public sector audit consultations
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-
practice-consultation/

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/call-for-views-for-
independent-review-into-local-authority-audit

CIPFA publications: Financial management and 
commercial investments 
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/
financial-management-code

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/cipfa-unveils-
financial-management-code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/
prudential-property-investment 

Value for money profiles 2010
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/news/news-feed/
value-for-money-profiles-2019/

Cyber — keep the light on
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/
uploads/cyber-keep-the-light-on-an-inspection-of-the-police-
response-to-cyber-dependent-crime.pdf

PEEL assessment: 2nd wave
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/
uploads/peel-spotlight-report-a-workforce-under-pressure-second-
group.pdf

EY reports on audit quality and transparency
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-
us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-audit-quality-report.pdf

https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2019-
transparency-report/$FILE/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/2019/11/ifs-councils-sacrificing-other-services-protect-social-care
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/2019/11/ifs-councils-sacrificing-other-services-protect-social-care
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/increased-pwlb-interest-rate-rise-puts-capital-projects-jeopardy
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/increased-pwlb-interest-rate-rise-puts-capital-projects-jeopardy
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/whiteman-councils-risky-commercial-deals-could-prompt-increased-regulation
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/whiteman-councils-risky-commercial-deals-could-prompt-increased-regulation
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/whiteman-councils-risky-commercial-deals-could-prompt-increased-regulation
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/home-office-announces-first-wave-of-20000-police-officer-uplift
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/home-office-announces-first-wave-of-20000-police-officer-uplift
https://www.iaasb.org/publications-resources/international-standard-auditing-isa-570-revised-going-concern
https://www.iaasb.org/publications-resources/international-standard-auditing-isa-570-revised-going-concern
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/call-for-views-for-independent-review-into-local-authority-audit
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/call-for-views-for-independent-review-into-local-authority-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/cipfa-unveils-financial-management-code
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/cipfa-unveils-financial-management-code
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/news/news-feed/value-for-money-profiles-2019/
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/news/news-feed/value-for-money-profiles-2019/
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/cyber-keep-the-light-on-an-inspection-of-the-police-response-to-cyber-dependent-crime.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/cyber-keep-the-light-on-an-inspection-of-the-police-response-to-cyber-dependent-crime.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/cyber-keep-the-light-on-an-inspection-of-the-police-response-to-cyber-dependent-crime.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-audit-quality-report.pdf
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-audit-quality-report.pdf
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report/$FILE/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report/$FILE/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf
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PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
1.1 To advise the Committee of the proposed external Audit Plan for the financial 

 year 2019/20 and the audit of the statements of accounts. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Audit Planning Report for year ended 31 March 2020 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
i. To receive the External Audit Plan 2019/20 

ii. To raise any matters of further concern with the Audit Director. 

 

 

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
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INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

1. An External Audit Plan covering the work that will be carried out to support the 

Audit opinion for the Statements of Accounts for 2019/20 has been provided to and 

reviewed by the two statutory Chief Finance Officers.  

2. The plan details the audit approach which covers planning, the control evaluation, 

substantive procedures and other audit matters. A copy of the plan is attached as 

APPENDIX A to this report 

3. The fee for the activity is £39,372. This is split into £11,550 for the Chief Constable 

and £23,897 for the Commissioner with an additional fee of £3,925 relating to 

additional pension work and Group Accounts.  

4. A representative of Ernst & Young, will be present to talk to this paper and answer 

Members’ questions. 
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Private and Confidential 13 February 2020

Dear Members of the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee

Audit planning report 2019/20

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as the auditor to Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire (the ‘PCC’ and ‘CC’’ respectively). Its purpose is to provide the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance 
Committee (JARAC) with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2019/20 audit in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is 
aligned with the JARAC’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the PCC and CC and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the JARAC and management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 20 February 2020 as well as understand whether there are other matters which 
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Helen Henshaw

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire

Butterley Hall

Ripley

Derbyshire

DE5 3RS
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Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)). The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued 
by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers 
matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature. This report is made solely to the Members of the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee (JARAC) in accordance with the statement 
of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Members of the JARAC and management of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire those 
matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the JARAC and 
management of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior 
written consent.
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Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error (PCC 
and CC)

Fraud risk
No change in risk 

or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Valuation of the  
Police Pension 
Scheme liability (CC)

Significant Risk Change in risk

The pension fund valuations separately involve external specialists, to provide these actuarial 
assumptions. A small movement in these assumptions could have a material impact on the value in the 
balance sheet. Following the outcome of the McCloud and Sargeant judgements in 2018/19 there 
remains significant uncertainty around the impact this will continue to have on the valuation of 
liabilities within the scheme, as well as the implications for the triennial review and funding 
requirements. Due to the current uncertainty surrounding the valuation of the pension liability as a 
result of the ongoing repercussions from the McCloud judgement, we have increased the level of risk 
from inherent to significant for this Financial Year. 

Valuation of Pension
Liabilities – LGPS 
(CC)

Higher inherent 
risk and area of 

audit focus

No change in risk 
or focus

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to a range of assumptions such as rates of 
pay and pension inflation, mortality and discount rates. The pension fund valuations separately involve 
external specialists, to provide these actuarial assumptions. A small movement in these assumptions 
could have a material impact on the value in the balance sheet. 

Valuation of land and 
buildings (PCC)

Higher inherent 
risk and area of 

audit focus

No change in risk 
or focus

The external valuation expert undertakes a rolling programme of valuations that ensures that all land 
and building assets required to be measured at fair value are revalued at least every five years. The 
valuation of land and buildings is subject to a number of assumptions and judgements and a small 
movement in these assumptions could have a material impact on the financial statements. As the Code 
requires all land and buildings are held at fair value, there is a risk that the remaining asset base is
materially misstated. 

Group financial 
statements (PCC)

Higher inherent 
risk and area of 

audit focus

No change in risk 
or focus

In 2014/15, the PCC entered into two joint service arrangements with the Derbyshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority which consists of a joint headquarters and a joint training centre. There is a risk of 
misstatement that the accounting treatment of these joint service arrangements are not in accordance 
with the relevant accounting standards in the financial statements and that balances may be misstated.  

Accounting for the 
PFI schemes (PCC)

Higher inherent 
risk and area of 

audit focus

No change in risk 
or focus

The PCC has two PFI schemes which include several judgements made by management resulting in the 
accounting treatment shown in the financial statements. The arrangements are supported by complex 
models to calculate the figures to be included in the financial statements  each year. 

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the JARAC with an overview 
of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  
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Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy (continued) 

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Collaborative 
arrangements (CC)

Higher inherent 
risk and area of 

audit focus

Decrease in risk 
or focus

The joint arrangements operate with partners across the east midlands. There is a risk that the 
allocation of activity in the financial statements is not correctly recorded in the financial statements. 

IFRS 16 – leases 
(PCC and CC)

Area of audit 
focus

New area of focus

Although the new standard will not be included in the CIPFA Code of Practice until 2020/21, work will 
be necessary to secure information required to enable authorities to fully assess their leasing position 
and ensure compliance with the standard from 1 April 2020. As you will be required to include the 
estimated impact of IFRS 16 within your 2019/20 financial statements, you will need to provide 
evidence to demonstrate that an impact assessment has been undertaken, it is complete, and that any 
disclosures are free from material misstatement. 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire give a true and fair view of the 
financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

▪ Our conclusion on the entity’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the PCC and CC’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;

▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;

▪ The quality of systems and processes;

▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,

▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the PCC and CC. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on 
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees  has not kept pace with 
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension 
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the value for money 
conclusion.  Therefore to the extent any of these are relevant in the context of the PCC and CC audits, we will discuss these with management as to the impact on the 
scale fee. We have highlighted a number of these items throughout our audit plan and have included the impact on fees within appendix A. 



7

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy (continued) 

Audit team changes 

Engagement Partner - Helen Henshaw
Helen has over twenty years of audit experience 
working for EY with significant experience across 
both the public and private sector.

Senior Manager - Hayley Clark
Hayley has a significant amount of audit experience within the public 
sector and has been a Senior Manager at EY since 2017.

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£2.2m

Performance 
materiality

£1.7m

Audit
differences

£112k

For the PCC materiality has been set using 2% of the prior years assets. For the CC materiality has been set 
using 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on the surplus/deficit on provision of services less the one off 
pension past service costs and intra-group funding. 

Performance materiality has been set at 75% of materiality for both the PCC and CC. 

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement and cash flow statement greater than 
£112k for the PCC and £277k for the CC.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent 
that they merit the attention of the JARAC.

Planning
materiality

£5.6m

Performance 
materiality

£4.1m

Audit
differences

£277k

PCC CC
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Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will;

• Identify fraud risks during the planning stages.

• Inquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud.

• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to 
address the risk of fraud.

• Determine an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of 
fraud.

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including:

• testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the 
preparation of the financial statements;

• assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management 
bias; and

• evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual 
transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not 
free of material misstatements whether 
caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management 
is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly or indirectly 
and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. We identify and respond to this 
fraud risk on every audit engagement.

In undertaking our fraud risk assessment 
we have not identified any specific risks for 
inclusion in our audit plan at this stage. We 
will continue to monitor this and provide 
you with an update as required. 

Misstatements due 
to fraud or error*

(PCC and CC)

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit. Throughout we have indicated whether
the risk impacts the PCC and CC as single entities. In all instances the risks are relevant to the PCC’s group financial statements.
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Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

We will:

• Understand how the CC is considering the impact of 
McCloud and Sargeant on the financial statements 
arising from the employment tribunals, any resulting 
consultations and other pronouncements from 
government on restitution. 

• Assess the work of the actuary (GAD) including the 
assumptions they have used by relying on the work of 
PwC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the 
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector 
auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the 
EY actuarial team; 

• Understand and consider the PwC report for how your 
actuary has treated the impact of McCloud and 
Sargeant in calculating the IAS 19 liability and for any 
impact on the triennial revaluation;

• Review and test the accounting entries and 
disclosures made within the financial statements in 
relation to IAS19;

• Gain assurance over data that has been provided to 
the actuaries;

• Test a sample of lump sums and pension payments for 
new police pensioners;

• Complete a predictive analytical review for both the 
pensions payroll and employees and employers 
pension contributions; and

• Assess management’s arrangements to reconcile the 
active and pensioner membership numbers.

What is the risk?

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the 
CC to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements 
regarding its membership of the Police Pension Scheme administered and 
underwritten by HM Government. The CC’s pension fund deficit is a 
material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be 
disclosed on the balance sheet. At 31 March 2019 this totalled 
£2,183.892 million. The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 
report issued to the CC by the actuary. Accounting for this scheme 
involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore 
management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their 
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the 
use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

Following the outcome of McCloud and Sargeant in 2018/19, initial 
estimates suggest removing the difference in treatment of discrimination 
will add around £4 billion per annum to scheme liabilities across public 
services from 2015. 

CIPFA is preparing further accounting guidance to support bodies with 
the accounting for the McCloud liability in 2019-20. However, the CC, via 
their actuaries will need to ensure that they refine their estimate of the 
impact of McCloud and Sargeant in 2019/20 and how subsequent 
funding implications may impact on the triennial valuation. 

As well as a risk to the valuation of the liabilities, there is also a timetable 
risk arising from the above, as agreement of remedy (and potential 
consultations starting in the spring) may necessitate refining of liability 
estimates by GAD, to update the work completed in summer 2019 to 
remeasure the McCloud liability. 

As a result of the uncertainty associated with the above we have 
designated the valuation of the Police Pension Scheme liability to be a 
significant risk. 

Valuation of the  
Police Pension 
Scheme liability

(CC)

Financial statement 
impact

Misstatements that occur 
in relation to the risk of 
valuation of the Police 
Pension Scheme could 
affect multiple balances 
and disclosures throughout 
the financial statements. 
The Police Pension Scheme 
had a net liability of 
£2,183.892 million in 
2018/19. 
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings (PCC)

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represent 
significant balances in the entity’s accounts and are subject to 
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. 
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and 
apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet.

The PCC will engage an external expert valuer who will apply a 
number of complex assumptions to these assets. Annually assets are 
assessed to identify whether there is any indication of impairment.  
As the PCC’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the 
valuer are subject to estimation, there is a risk fixed assets may be 
under/ overstated. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:

• Consider the work performed by the external valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of 
the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. 
floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE. We will also consider if there are 
any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been communicated 
to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset base 
is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Pension Liability Valuation (CC)

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require 
the CC to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements 
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered by Derbyshire County Council. The CC’s pension fund 
deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that 
this liability be disclosed on the balance sheet of the CC. At 31 March 
2019 this totalled £136 million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the 
CC by the actuary to the County Council. Accounting for these 
schemes involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore 
management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on 
their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Derbyshire Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances over the 

information supplied to the actuary in relation to the CC;

• Assess the work of the LGPS Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have used 
by relying on the work of PwC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by Public Sector Auditor 
Appointments for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant 
reviews by the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the CC’s financial 
statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? Our audit approach?

Group financial statements (PCC)

The PCC prepares group accounts which incorporate the activities of the 
DPFP LLP which is a joint venture with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
used to provide both organisations with a joint headquarters and joint 
training centre.  The currently has a 57.16% share of the net assets of the 
DPFP LLP. The Group Accounts have been produced using the equity method 
to reflect the nature of the partnership. 

The DPFP LLP financial statements are currently not subject to audit. 
Therefore, we will be required to undertake procedures on the balances and 
disclosures associated with the LLP to ensure that the group financial 
statements are not materially misstated. 

There is a risk of misstatement that the accounting treatment of the joint 
service arrangements are not in accordance with the relevant accounting 
standard in the financial statements. 

We will:

• Update our understanding of the joint service agreements to understand the nature 
and responsibilities for both the Police and Crime Commissioner and Derbyshire Fire 
and Rescue Authority.

• Review management’s assessment of the required accounting treatment in the 
Financial Statements.

• Test the accounting entries and disclosures to confirm that the correct accounting 
standard has been applied.

• Ensure that we have gained assurance over any balances included within the DPFP 
LLP accounts which are material to the entity’s Group Financial Statements. 

Accounting for the PFI schemes (PCC)

The PCC has two PFI schemes which include several judgements made by 
management resulting in the accounting treatment shown in the financial 
statements. The arrangements are supported by complex models to 
calculate the figures to be included in the financial statements  each year. 

Our approach will focus on:

• We will review (with the support of EY specialists) the accounting judgements and 
models to ensure that we are comfortable with the judgements and related 
accounting treatment in the financial statements. 

• For each of the schemes we will undertake testing of in-year inputs to the accounting 
models and agree relevant entries in the financial statements to year-end outputs 
from each of the models.

Collaborative arrangements (PCC and CC)

The CC participate in a number of Jointly Controlled Operations (JCO) or 
Collaborations with other East Midlands Forces. These are used to deliver 
services within the Force. The share of cost to Derbyshire is different 
depending on the number partaking in the JCO. There is also combination of 
JCO’s being hosted by either Leicestershire or Derbyshire. 

Given the volume of transactions being accounted for across the 5 Forces 
that participate across the JCO’s and their value, we consider there to be a 
risk associated with the accuracy of the information being reported and 
accounted for (i.e. the measurement/valuation, completeness and 
presentation and disclosure of balances included in the financial statements). 

We will:

• Review the underlying allocation of expenditure in the CC’s own accounts against 
agreements in place. 

• Consider the completeness of the reported balances within the financial statements. 

• Seek assurance from the external auditors at Leicestershire Chief Constable on:

• The processes in place to record and transact balances for other Forces.

• Confirmation of the balances recorded and reported for Derbyshire Chief 
Constable. 

• How assurances have been gained that balances for each Force have been 
recorded completely and accurately within the finance system. 
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS16 – leases (PCC and CC)

IFRS 16 Leases was issued by the IASB in 2016. Its main impact is to remove (for 
lessees) the traditional distinction between finance leases and operating leases. 
Finance leases have effectively been accounted for as acquisitions (with the asset on 
the balance sheet, together with a liability to pay for the asset acquired). In contrast, 
operating leases have been treated as “pay as you go” arrangements, with rentals 
expensed in the year they are paid. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be 
accounted for using the acquisition approach, recognising the rights acquired to use 
an asset.

Implementation of IFRS 16 will be included in the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) for 2020/21. This Code has yet to 
published, but in July 2019 CIPFA/LASAAC issued ‘IFRS 16 leases and early guide for 
practitioners’. 

This early guidance provides comprehensive coverage of the requirements of the 
forthcoming provisions, including:

• the identification of leases

• the recognition of right-of-use assets and liabilities and their subsequent 
measurement

• treatment of gains and losses

• derecognition and presentation and disclosure in the financial statements,

• the management of leases within the Prudential Framework.

The guidance also covers the transitional arrangements for moving to these new 
requirements, such as:

• the recognition of right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases previously 
accounted for as operating leases by lessees

• the mechanics of making the transition in the 2020/21 financial statements 
(including the application of transitional provisions and the preparation of 
relevant disclosure notes).

IFRS 16 – leases introduces a number of significant changes which go beyond 
accounting technicalities. For example, the changes have the potential to 
impact on procurement processes as more information becomes available on 
the real cost of leases. 

The key accounting impact is that assets and liabilities in relation to 
significant lease arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases 
will need to be recognised on the balance sheet.

Although the new standard will not be included in the CIPFA Code of Practice 
until 2020/21, work will be necessary to secure information required to 
enable authorities to fully assess their leasing position and ensure compliance 
with the standard from 1 April 2020.

In particular, full compliance with the revised standard for 2020/21 is likely 
to require a detailed review of existing lease and other contract 
documentation prior to 1 April 2020 in order to identify:

• all leases which need to be accounted for

• the costs and lease term which apply to the lease

• the value of the asset and liability to be recognised as at 1 April 2020 
where a lease has previously been accounted for as an operating lease.

We will discuss progress made in preparing for the implementation of IFRS 16 
– leases with the finance team over the course of our 2019/20 audit.

As you will be required to include the estimated impact of IFRS 16 within your 
2019/20 financial statements, you will need to provide evidence to 
demonstrate that an impact assessment has been undertaken, it is complete, 
and that any disclosures are free from material misstatement. 



14

Audit risks

Other matters

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Going Concern Compliance with ISA 570 (PCC and CC)

This auditing standard has been revised in response to enforcement cases 
and well-publicised corporate failures where the auditor’s report failed to 
highlight concerns about the prospects of entities which collapsed shortly 
after.

The revised standard is effective for audits of financial statements for 
periods commencing on or after 15 December 2019, which for the PCC 
and CC will be the audit of the 2020/21 financial statements. The revised 
standard increases the work we are required to perform when assessing 
whether the PCC and CC is a going concern. It means UK auditors will 
follow significantly stronger requirements than those required by current 
international standards; and we have therefore judged it appropriate to 
bring this to the attention of the JARAC.

The CIPFA Guidance Notes for Practitioners 2019/20 accounts states ‘The 
concept of a going concern assumes that an authority’s functions and 
services will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
The provisions in the Code in respect of going concern reporting 
requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in which 
local authorities operate. These provisions confirm that, as authorities 
cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, they must 
prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting.’

‘If an authority were in financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that 
alternative arrangements might be made by central government either for 
the continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the 
recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year. As a result of this, 
it would not therefore be appropriate for local authority financial 
statements to be provided on anything other than a going concern basis.

The revised standard requires:

• auditor’s challenge of management’s identification of events or conditions 
impacting going concern, more specific requirements to test management’s 
resulting assessment of going concern, an evaluation of the supporting evidence 
obtained which includes consideration of the risk of management bias;

• greater work for us to challenge management’s assessment of going concern, 
thoroughly test the adequacy of the supporting evidence we obtained and evaluate 
the risk of management bias. Our challenge will be made based on our knowledge of 
the PCC and CC obtained through our audit, which will include additional specific 
risk assessment considerations which go beyond the current requirements;

• improved transparency with a new reporting requirement for public interest 
entities, listed and large private companies to provide a clear, positive conclusion 
on whether management’s assessment is appropriate, and to set out the work we 
have done in this respect. While the PCC and CC are not one of the three entity 
types listed, we will ensure compliance with any updated reporting requirements;

• a stand back requirement to consider all of the evidence obtained, whether 
corroborative or contradictory, when we draw our conclusions on going concern; 
and

• necessary consideration regarding the appropriateness of financial statement 
disclosures around going concern.

The revised standard extends requirements to report to regulators where we have 
concerns about going concern.

We will discuss the detailed implications of the new standard with finance staff during 
2019/20 ahead of its application for 2020/21.
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Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the entity has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;

▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work.  We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector 
and organisation-specific level. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper 
arrangements at both sector and organisation-specific level.  This has included consideration of the steps taken 
by the PCC and CC to consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and 
investment values.  Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that Authorities will be 
carrying out scenario planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have 
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of the significant risks noted on the following page which we 
view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment
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Value for Money 

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk?
What arrangements 
does the risk affect?

What will we do?

Securing financial resilience

In common with other Police bodies, the PCC and CC is facing 
significant financial pressures in the medium term.

The PCC and CC are currently forecasting a £1.6 million 
overspend in 2019/20. 

Following the confirmation of the 2020/21 funding settlement 
and increase in precept the PCC and CC are able to balance the 
budget for 20/21, however, beyond this they are currently 
forecasting deficits in the medium term. 

The upcoming release of the HMI report is also expected to 
identify savings and prioritisation as areas of improvement. 

Given the uncertainty of the funding settlement post 2020/21 
and the financial pressures set out above, we have considered 
this to be a significant area of focus in forming our value for 
money conclusion. 

Deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner.

Planning finances 
effectively to support the 
sustainable delivery of 
strategic priorities and 
maintain statutory 
functions

We plan to review:

• the MTFS including the adequacy of any major assumptions;

• how the organisation has monitored progress of strategic 
delivery plans;

• how the PCC and CC has considered the impact of the Local 
Government settlement on the MTFS;

• the adequacy of plans that have been developed to identify 
future savings and the level of reported savings delivered in 
year. 
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Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2019/20 has been set as set out below. 

Materiality will be reassessed throughout the audit process.

We have provided supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix D. 

Audit materiality

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we 
anticipate misstatements would influence the 
economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to 
determine the extent of our audit procedures. We 
have set performance materiality at 75% of 
planning materiality. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that 
misstatements identified below this threshold are 
deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount 
relating to the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement and balance sheet that 
have an effect on income or that relate to other 
comprehensive income. Other uncorrected 
misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and 
movement in reserves statement or disclosures, 
and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the 
attention of the JARAC, or are important from a 
qualitative perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality 
for remuneration disclosures, related party 
transactions and member allowances. As these 
disclosures are considered to be of interest to 
users of the accounts we have adopted 
judgement in ensuring that we have tested the 
disclosures in sufficient detail to ensure they are 
correctly disclosed. 

Key definitions

We request that the JARAC confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting 
levels.

PCC Group
PCC single 

entity
CC single entity

Police pension 
fund

Materiality basis

2% of the prior years 
gross expenditure on 
the surplus/deficit 
on provision of 
services less the one 
off pension past 
service costs

2% of prior year 
assets 

2% of the prior year 
gross expenditure on 
the surplus/deficit on 
provision of services 
less the one off 
pension past service 
costs and intra-group 
funding

2% of benefits 
payable

Planning 
materiality

£5.7 million £2.2 million £5.5 million £1.2 million

Performance 
materiality

£4.2 million £1.7 million £4.1 million £0.9 million

Audit differences £283k £112k £277k £58k
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Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the PCC and CC’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we will 
undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards

• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;

• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;

• Entity-wide controls;

• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and

• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the PCC and CC has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Our audit involves: 

• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2019/20 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required to 
conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy
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Audit Process Overview

Analytics: We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the JARAC. 

Internal audit: We will review internal audit plan and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other 
work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)
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Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:

1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, either because of its 
relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances (qualitative criteria). We generally assign significant 
components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from significant 
components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures. 

Our preliminary audit scoping has identified 3 significant components and 0 non-significant components. 

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit 

Scoping by entity and scope definitions

Full scope: locations where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels 
assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit. Procedures 
performed at full scope locations support an interoffice conclusion on the reporting 
package. These may not be sufficient to issue a stand-alone audit opinion on the local 
statutory financial statements because of the materiality used and any additional 
procedures required to comply with local laws and regulations. This scope is relevant 
to the PCC and CC as single entities. 

Specific scope: locations where the audit is limited to specific accounts or 
disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk profile of 
those accounts. This scope is relevant to DPFP LLP. 

2

1

Group audit team involvement in component audits

Auditing standards require us to be involved in the work of our 
component teams. 

The DPFP LLP financial statements are currently not subject to 
audit. Therefore, we will be required to undertake procedures on 
the balances and disclosures associated with the LLP to ensure that 
the group financial statements are not materially misstated. 
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Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team will be utilised where any specific risks or issues are identified that require further consultation. 

Pensions disclosures EY Actuaries

PFI EY PFI specialists

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the organisation’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the 
particular area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

Audit team 
The engagement team is led by Helen Henshaw, who is supported by Hayley Clark, Senior Manager, who is responsible for the day-to-day direction of audit work and is 
the key point of contact for the finance team. Both work within our dedicated Government and Public Sector team and have significant experience on local government 
audits. Sam Forrest, your lead senior for the audit, will provide continuity in your team and will be responsible for leading the team on site. 
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Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2019/20.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the JARAC and we will discuss them with the Chair as appropriate. We will also 
provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning: Risk assessment and setting 
of scopes.

Walkthrough of key systems and 
processes

January

Interim audit testing February and March JARAC Audit Planning Report

Early review of property valuations April

Year end audit June JARAC

Year end audit

Audit Completion procedures
July JARAC

Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

August - October JARAC Annual Audit Letter
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Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional 
wording should be included in the communication 
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction
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Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the organisation. Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit 
services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding 
fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved. At the time of writing, 
there are no non-audit services to be provided.

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Helen Henshaw, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of senior management of the organisation. Management threats may also arise during the 
provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 
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Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

EY Transparency Report 2019

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2019 and can be found here: 

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019

Other communications

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019
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Appendix A

Fees
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2019/20 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies. 

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the entity; and

► The entity has an effective control environment.
If you are unable to meet key dates within our agreed timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your audit, which may be that we postpone your audit 
until later in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet deadlines elsewhere. 

Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope changes, or poor 
audit evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee and the timing of the audit. Such circumstances may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other 
work elsewhere.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

(1) Scale fee is split between the PCC (£23,897) and CC (£11,550). 

Total fee 
2018/19

£

Total Fee – Code work (1) 35,447

- Additional pensions work 2,650

- Group accounts 1,275

Total audit 39,372

Other non-audit services not covered above 0

Total fees 39,372

Our fee for 2018/19 has been set out to the left. The 18/19 Code work includes an additional fee of 
£3,925, which relates to the areas identified. We have agreed the variation with officers, but are 
awaiting approval from PSAA. 

In relation to 2019/20 the scale fee has been set at the same level as the prior year being £35,477. 
The results of our planning procedures has identified areas where audit work will be required over 
and above the level of the fee previously set which also correspond to the risks set out in our audit 
plan. The identified areas are:

• Additional pensions work (use of specialists);

• PPE valuations (use of specialists);

• Group accounts;

• PFI;

• Collaborative arrangements; and

• Exit packages and Value for Money.

We have discussed these with management and provided indicative fee levels for each of these 
areas. The actual amounts may differ and will be based on the actual audit effort incurred. Following 
discussions with management we have not included these amounts in this plan but will report the 
final levels to you upon conclusion of our work and agreement with management. 
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Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the JARAC of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the 
engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the JARAC
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the JARAC.
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Appendix B

Required communications with the JARAC (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Fraud • Enquiries of the JARAC to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results 
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report
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Appendix B

Required communications with the JARAC (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the JARAC into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
JARAC may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

Certification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report
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Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial 
statements, the JARAC reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the JARAC and reporting whether it is 
materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the Group financial statements; and

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.
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Appendix A.   Draft 2019/20 Year-end closedown plan 

Appendix B.   Statement of Accounting Policies for the Police and Crime Commissioner 
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Appendix C.   Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable for Derbyshire   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. That the Committee can take assurance that plans, including the draft timetable 

for the closure of accounts and the production of the Statements for 2019/20 are 

robust. 
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2. The Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable and for the Police 

and Crime Commissioner are approved. To note the information and analysis as 

set out in this report and Appendix B and C. 

 

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
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1. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

1. The 2019/20 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting 2019/20 (the Code). The Accounts reflect the current 

legislative framework as well as the local arrangements operating in practice. Key 

elements of this framework include: - 

• The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act). 

• Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

• The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police 

Service of England and Wales 2013 – revised July 2018. 

• Joint Corporate Governance Framework – Scheme of Delegation and 

consent between the Commissioner and Chief Constable. 

• The Financial Handbook of the Commissioner and Chief Constable. 

 

2. There are no major changes to the Code in 2019/20. 

3. Each year a timetable is prepared setting out the key processes that must be 

followed and respective deadlines to ensure the accounts are prepared in 

accordance with the framework and by the statutory deadline.  Under the Accounts 

and Audit Regulations 2015, the date by which the unaudited accounts must be 

published is the 31 May and the date by which the accounts must be published is 

the 31 July. The year-end timetable is attached at Appendix A. 
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Preparation of the 2019/20 Accounts 

4. We are required, under statute to publish the annual statement of accounts 

before the end of July of the following financial year. The primary financial 

statements within this document comprise:- 

• Movement in Reserves Statement. 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Balance Sheet. 

• Cash Flow Statement. 

5. In addition to these primary statements the accounts include a Narrative Report 

providing context and explanations of key issues and a series of notes providing 

further detail to the primary statements. 

6. The Annual Governance Statements (AGS) also accompany the statements of 

accounts. The AGS sets out the management’s view of its governance 

arrangements, issues to be addressed and actions to be taken to strengthen 

governance. 

Accounting Policies 

7. Accounting policies are the specific principals, conventions, rules and  

practices that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual accounts.  The 

Commissioner and Chief Constable follows broadly the standards and policies 

contained in the Code when preparing their final accounts.   

8. It is recommended that the Accounting Policies are approved by the Joint Audit, 

Risk and Assurance Committee, so setting the framework for final accounts to be 

prepared and the Statements produced.  Attached at the Appendices B and C are 

the Statements of Accounting Policies for the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts for the 

Committee’s approval. 
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Day Date Leave Task/Comment Responsible Task Complete

Sep-Mar
Put Payments in advance, receipts in advance, creditors, debtors into system where possible. Raise debtor invoices for 2019/20 
where possible Strat Finance

Sep-Mar Ensure any miscodings are corrected, orders closed, reconciliations are up to date etc… Strat Finance
Oct/Nov Set up proforma accounts for 2019/20 JC
Nov/Dec Prepare Capital working Papers JC

Dec GAD issue data requirements and deadlines for police pensions plus Commissioning letter GAD/PS/MC
Nov Deadline for revaluations as at 1 April 2019 back from Valuer Valuers

Jan/Feb Calculate all revaluations and accounting entries required for interim audit JC/MC
Jan/Feb Set up Asset Registers for 2019/20, calculate depreciation, prepare spreadsheets to send out for disposals JC/MC
Dec-Mar Finance Support to ensure that creditors,debtors and aged registrations are monitored and cleared as soon as possible Fin Support
Jan/Feb Review Code of Practice for new requirements JC

Jan Finance Support to review debtor invoices for write off during January - deadline for return 29 January JC/CW
Feb Do any changes required by EY to the Accounts from last years audit eg Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature JC
Feb Check have all paperwork behind all redundancies from HR for interim audit TW
Feb Scan all grant notifications & precepts for interim audit MC

Friday 17-Jan Deadline for return of GAD commissioning letter MC/PS
Tuesday 21-Jan Send data requirements information to EY JC

Meeting with CW re Final Accounts Timetable CW
Saturday 25-Jan
Sunday 26-Jan
Wednesday 29-Jan PS,KF Deadline debtor write offs CW
Thursday 30-Jan CW to check that mileage details are up to date for Chief Officers CW
Friday 31-Jan Deadline for acceptance of demographic assumptions to GAD MC/PS

Email to IS re asset disposals - deadline for return 27 February JC
Saturday 01-Feb
Sunday 02-Feb
Monday 03-Feb KF Send out Draft Timetable to discuss at meetings JC
Tuesday 04-Feb List of registrations to be sent out to check if any need closing/chasing MC/LSc

CIPFA FAN Closedown & Financial Reporting Workshop JC
Wednesday 05-Feb PS,KF Finance Support to review old registrations to clear by 28 February and review credit notes outstanding Fin Supp
Thursday 06-Feb MC,CW Check debtors reconciliation of 0325 in anticipation of year end KB/CW

Meeting with Strategic Finance re Final Accounts Timetable Strat Finance
Friday 07-Feb CW Deadline for Analytical Data for EY JC

Public Sector Accounting Workshop - EY MC
Send out email re CDC % to staff deadline 6 March KF
Deadline for JARAC - Report on Accounting Policies - include track changes on Acc Policies JC

Saturday 08-Feb
Sunday 09-Feb
Monday 10-FebKF,CW,JC, MC
Tuesday 11-Feb CW Written Instructions issued to users re year end procedures JC
Wednesday 12-Feb CW, KF Email sent out to SS about property sales JC
Thursday 13-Feb CW, PS Send out emails re leases and embedded arrangements to IS, Assets Team and Procurement. JC
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Day Date Leave Task/Comment Responsible Task Complete

Emails Assets Team (SS) re new leases or terminated leases in 2019/20 JC/KB
Friday 14-Feb CW, PS Assets registers to be complete for start of year position JC/MC/TW

DCC issue data requirements and deadlines for LGPS - awaiting information DCC
Saturday 15-Feb
Sunday 16-Feb
Monday 17-Feb KF,CW

Tuesday 18-Feb CW
Written request sent to Finance (CW) & Divisions & CTIU for Petty Cash Imprest Account Reconciliations and a request to bank 
income on 31 March JC
Email Derbyshire Fire/LLP re deadlines for accruals and other information JC

Wednesday 19-Feb CW,PS,KF Meeting with Assets (DP) re recharge to LLP for costs of Joint HQ & Joint Training Centre KB/Assets
Thursday 20-Feb JARAC 

List of old orders to be sent out to check if any need closing/chasing JPJ/LSc
Friday 21-Feb Written request to Lampton Smith Hamptons re valuation requirements JC

Deadline for DCC IAS19 information - awaiting deadlines PS/MC
Saturday 22-Feb
Sunday 23-Feb
Monday 24-Feb KF External Audit in for a week for Interim Audit Ext Audit

Draft Closing down timetable issued to External Auditors. JC
Check with Director of Finance any changes to Chief Officer scheme TW

Tuesday 25-Feb Email to DMS re TOIL, Annual Leave for Police Officers and Staff on DMS system as at 31/03/20 Deadline 23 April TW
Email Departments for flexi-leave balances of staff as at 31/03/20 TW/Strat Finance
Written request sent to Business Services Support and Legal for Vehicle and Liability Insurance Claims deadline 3 April KF
Meeting with Regional Accountants - Final Accounts Issues JC/PS

Wednesday 26-Feb KF Send email to Claire for information on Police Property Fund Balances as at 31/03/20 JC
Recharge for Crest Vehicle insurance (premium/self insurance) MC
Check all Outturn reports are working following Agresso Upgrade SL

Thursday 27-Feb PS Deadline for return of lists for IS Disposals JC
Friday 28-Feb Orders to be closed for P11 Monitoring JPJ/LSc

Email to District/Borough Councils re Accounting for Council Tax - deadline Wednesday 29 April MC
Email Assets Team re assets held for sale, surplus assets and impairments JC
Deadline for leases information from Assets JC/KB
Period end and P11 Monitoring reports run LSc

Saturday 29-Feb
Sunday 01-Mar
Monday 02-Mar KF,MC,JC Strategic Finance to work on Draft Outturn this week for Carry Forward meetings w/c 9 March Strat Finance

Tuesday 03-Mar MC
Email to Assets Team (TH) re reports from Vehicle Management System re purchases and disposals up to 31/03/20. Deadline 3 
April 2020. KB
Finance Support/Legal to review debtor invoices for write off during March - deadline for return 26 March CW/JC
Remind DCC/Derby City to send debt charges and early retirement invoices before 31 March 2020 JC/TW

Wednesday 04-Mar PS,KF,MC Email Business Support re deadlines for Fuel (6 April) and Hire Cars (15 April) LSc
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (9 April) for Barclaycard, CW to email departments with deadline LSc/CW
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (8 April) for POCA information KB
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Thursday 05-Mar MC Action write off any items in collection accounts and salaries interims (04's) LS/JC/CW
Balance all reconciliation accounts in anticipation of year end (eg collection accounts, salaries Interims etc) LS/CW
Prepare utility accruals KB

Friday 06-Mar MC Deadline for embedded leases JC
Deadline for CDC% information KF
Send Information to LSH re capital spend JC
Backpay files from Kier to be input into Agresso CW

Saturday 07-Mar
Sunday 08-Mar
Monday 09-Mar PS,KF External Audit in for a week for Interim Audit Ext Audit

Send out system admin Year End Procedures JC
Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations Strat Finance

Tuesday 10-Mar PS Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations Strat Finance
Wednesday 11-Mar PS,KF Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations Strat Finance
Thursday 12-Mar PS Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations Strat Finance

Cleaning Recharges to be actioned and put in Agresso KB/LSc
Review out of date cheques and write-off actioned by 26 March.                                                                                         LS

Friday 13-Mar PS Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations Strat Finance
Provide GAD with a record of the summary data and cashflows during 2019/20 MC
All recharges to be sent to EMSOU (estimate for March) -  deadline to be agreed AC/MC
Check Balance Sheet Codes for revenue items posted by mistake (eg 0222,0236,0336,0238,0338,X999 etc….) JC
Email to Leicestershire/Business Support re salaries over £40,000 and P11D information. TW/JC

Saturday 14-Mar
Sunday 15-Mar
Monday 16-Mar JC,KF Email Business Support re deadline for repair costs Chief Officer Vehicles (3 April) for P11D calculation CW
Tuesday 17-Mar JC Cheque/BACS run Fin Supp
Wednesday 18-Mar JC,PS,KF Look at Expenses in DRAFT and contact submitters to remind them to make claims ACTIVE prior to 6th April CW
Thursday 19-Mar JC Email to Sheila Sismey re Derby PFI CCR's PS
Friday 20-Mar JC Deadline for Divisions/Departments/Strat Finance to send any invoices they might receive to Finance Support Divs/Depts/Strat Finance

MC to send template letter to Banks to inform them that EY will be asking for verification of bank balances we hold with them MC
Saturday 21-Mar
Sunday 22-Mar
Monday 23-Mar KF,MC Email Finance Support (CW) & Divisions to remind about banking on 31 March 2020 JC

Deadline for Divisional & CTIU Petty Cash to be received by Finance Support Divisions/Fin Supp
Tuesday 24-Mar MC Cheque/BACS run to pick up most invoices Fin Supp

Last day for virement requests from Divisions/Departments to be actioned by 27 March. Strat Finance
Wednesday 25-Mar PS,KF,MC Email to Force Solicitor, Director of Finance and Office of PCC (Chief Finance Officer & Chief Executive) re contingent liabilities MC

Last day for debtor invoice details to reach Finance Support for input deadline 31 March 2020 Fin Supp
Thursday 26-Mar Out of date cheques In Agresso LS

Email to Chief offIcers and Office of PCC re related party transactions KF
List of Debtors to be written off/credited to be established CW

Friday 27-Mar Action Debtor Write offs (JC) and credit notes (CW) by this date JC/CW
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Cheque/BACS run to pick up remaining invoices to be paid 31/03/20 Fin Supp
Petty Cash - need written confirmation from Regional organised crime unit for hostage petty cash imprest and also from 
Gallaghers Basset for vehicle insurance imprest as at 31/03/2020 CW
Pensions Deficit information input into Agresso LSc

Saturday 28-Mar
Sunday 29-Mar
Monday 30-Mar KF Check with Enterprise if we can have hire vehicle invoice by 15th April LSc
Tuesday 31-Mar Income (cash receipts) to be banked. Divisions to send Statement of Receipts and Banking slip to Fin Supp by 2.30pm Fin Supp

Transfer monies from legal account to main account Trea Man
Emails sent to Force Managers re force assets as at 31/03/2020 due back 3 April JC
Cash Receipts to be registered in Agresso for HQ and Divisions. Fin Supp
Debtor invoices to be input. Fin Supp
All handdrawn cheques to be posted (Manual Payments) Fin Supp
Last Cheque/BACS run for 2019/20 and HQ Petty Cash. Fin Supp
Period/Year end routines and Agresso system default period changed to 202001. MC/LSc
Run report of invoices registered but not approved (posted) plus other year end reports JC

Wednesday 01-Apr PS,KF Open Purchase Orders as at 31 March carried forward to 202001 LSc/MC
Check all Cash Receipts input JC/CW
Income banked (Manual Credits and Debits) up to 31 March 2020 posted within Agresso. Manual Receipts to be posted. Fin Supp
Final reconciliation of Account code 0325 - debtors income - Liase with Finance Support if necessary KB
Auditors to request third-party verifications for bank balances. MC to send letters for investments as at 31 March 2020 to be 
returned to auditors- schedule to be sent to Auditors MC

Thursday 02-Apr Final Bank Reconciliation for 2019/20 completed. Save copy in excel (Final Accounts Balance Sheet Working Papers) LS
Balance system Debtors and Creditors JC
Send out Bad Debt Provision information to Fin Support (CW) deadline for return 14 April JC/CW
Email PFI provider about lifecycle expenditure - capital/revenue PS

Friday 03-Apr Deadline for Petty Cash Reconciliation Information Fin/Bus Supp/CTIU
Cancelled cheques (no reissue) relating to old year to be posted CW
Deadline for repair costs Chief Officer vehicles Bus Supp
Deadline for Force Asset information from Assets Assets/JC
Deadline for vehicle and legal claims information Bus Ser/Legal
Email sent re capital orders to accrue JC
Deadline for information from Vehicle Management System re purchases and Disposals Assets/KB

Saturday 04-Apr
Sunday 05-Apr
Monday 06-Apr KF,SL Deadline for Fuel recharges Bus Supp
Tuesday 07-Apr SL Fuel Charges to be input into Agresso LSc

Summarise System Debtors and Creditors into different formats KF
Cheque/BACS Run Fin Supp
Cut off date for Police overtime and Expenses for staff/officers, Fin Supp to sort out queries for submission on 9th Fin Supp



Draft Final Accounts Closedown Plan for the Chief Constable and Police and Crime Commissioner 2019/20
AGENDA ITEM 10A, APP A  

Page 5 of 9 14/02/2020

Day Date Leave Task/Comment Responsible Task Complete

Run report of invoices (creditor/debtor) posted in 2020/21 after payment run to check which need accrueing into 2019/20 - Run 1. 
Send out to Strategic Finance. JC/LSc

Wednesday 08-Apr PS,KF,SL Check Retirements, do any pension commutations need accrueing back into 2019/20 TW/AC
EMSOU to send final spreadsheet, Notts to send Arrow Recharge EMSOU/Notts
Deadline POCA information CW/KB

Thursday 09-Apr SL Download Year End PWLB Information from internet MC
Deadline for Barclaycard Expenditure spreadsheet to be received for March transactions Fin Supp
Finalise system accruals spreadsheet run 1 & input into Agresso JC/LSc
Barclaycard Expenditure to be input into Agresso LSc
Vehicle Reconciliation Complete KB
Overtime and 10% allowance submission to Kier LSc
Reconcile POCA to Finance Support records and post journals KB/Fin Supp
Send email out re Grants to be checked for conditions JC

Friday 10-Apr
Saturday 11-Apr
Sunday 12-Apr
Monday 13-Apr
Tuesday 14-Apr Bad Debt provision deadline CW

Require overtime and expenses information for accrual  Leicestershire
Chief Officer private mileage recharge journal to be posted (0421) CW/JC
Check that Finance Support have entered all debtor and creditor invoices into Agresso that relate to 2019/20 to be picked up for 
final accrual by Strategic Finance JC/Fin Supp
Run report of invoices (creditor/debtor) posted in 2020/21 after payment run to check which need accrueing into 2019/20 - Run 2. 
Send out to Strategic Finance. JC/LSc

Wednesday 15-Apr PS,KF Final reconciliation of salaries interims/collection accounts LS/CW/JC
Maintenance recharges to be done LSc
Deadline for Long/Short term hire vehicles for March transactions Bus Supp
Amounts for Police Officers' &staff overtime/10% allowances/unsocial hours in April 2020 payroll posted to period 201913. Also 
accrue March registered Overtime. LSc
Amounts for Mileage & Expenses in April 2020 Police Officer and Police Staff payrolls posted to period 201913 LSc

Thursday 16-Apr Finalise system accruals spreadsheet run 2 & input into Agresso JC/LSc
Over/Underspends on Collaborations to be sent out - deadline to be agreed PS
Information provided to Chief Finance Officer (PCC) re Police Property Fund. CFO to agree amounts and CW to prepare report to  CW
Hire Cars Expenditure to be input into Agresso LSc

Friday 17-Apr Deadline for Related party questionnaires KF
Information back from DCC - IAS19 information - awaiting deadline DCC

Saturday 18-Apr
Sunday 19-Apr
Monday 20-Apr KF Information back from Valuer LSH
Tuesday 21-Apr Last journal entries to revenue codes  (Final outturn position) by 4pm Strat Finance

Excelerator Reports run for final outturn position KF
Wednesday 22-Apr PS,KF Check Final Outturn Reports and send out Strat Finance
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Capital Accounting 22 April to 6 May JC
Collaboration Accounting 22 April to 28 April (lead force information to others in region), 6 May for Derbyshires Accounts TW/SL/KF/MC

Thursday 23-Apr GAD issues the consolidated results re IAS19 GAD
Download information for Apprenticeship levy and post journal TW
Police Officer/staff TOIL,RDIL, Flexi and Annual Leave to be obtained from DMS and departments TW

Friday 24-Apr IAS19 figures to be posted in ledger. MC
All other IAS19 Information back from DCC DCC
Sponsorship balances in ledger balanced to Sponsorship register AC
Balance Manual Debtors and Creditors and analyse for Debtor/Creditors note Deadline 11 May KB

Saturday 25-Apr
Sunday 26-Apr
Monday 27-Apr KF Prepare Annual Governance Statement - Chief Constable and PCC for Audit Committee (JARAC) on 21 May SA/AD
Tuesday 28-Apr Information required for Chief Officer renumeration note re P11D information (Chief Officers cars etc..) CW

Lead Force Information to be sent/received from region re collabaration  - deadline to be agreed TW/SL/KF/MC
Deadline for Provisional Outturn Figures for Joint Director of Finance to report to PCC & Chief Finance Officer KF/HoF

Wednesday 29-Apr PS,KF Accounting for Council Tax Information received from Councils MC
Thursday 30-Apr Accounting for Council Tax Information posted in ledger MC
Friday 01-May Accumulated Absences information to be posted TW
Saturday 02-May
Sunday 03-May
Monday 04-May KF
Tuesday 05-May Check if we need any information from Legal for contingent Liability note eg number of claims for pension challenge JC/MC
Wednesday 06-May PS,KF Last day for our share of EMSOU/Collaborations to be entered into Derbyshire's Accounts TW

Final day for Capital journal entries JC
Last journal entries for contributions to/from Reserves and Balance Sheet (final position) JC/PS
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Codes complete Strat Finance

Thursday 07-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Friday 08-May
Saturday 09-May
Sunday 10-May
Monday 11-May KF Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF

Information for Debtors/Creditors note complete KB
Tuesday 12-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF

Last date for all Statements in the accounts to be completed JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Wednesday 13-May PS,KF Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Thursday 14-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Friday 15-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Saturday 16-May
Sunday 17-May
Monday 18-May KF Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF

Strategic Priorities Assurance (SPA) Board 
Tuesday 19-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
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Wednesday 20-May PS,KF Last date for all notes in the accounts to be completed JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
Thursday 21-May Draft Statement of Accounts Finalised including Group Accounts -sent to be checked JC

JARAC
Friday 22-May CW Draft Statement of Accounts Checked SA/AD/JC/PS
Saturday 23-May
Sunday 24-May
Monday 25-May
Tuesday 26-May Draft Statement of Accounts Checked SA/AD/JC/PS
Wednesday 27-May PS,KF Changes to Statement of Accounts finalised JC/PS
Thursday 28-May Statement of Accounts completed JC/PS
Friday 29-May Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance

Start Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Return - for completion by 26 June?? - awaiting deadline date KF/JC
Chief Finance Officer for PCC/Director of Finance to sign off Accounts by this date SA/AD
Set of signed Accounts to be provided to Auditors and published on internet. JC/PCC Office
Statement of Public Rights to be published on Internet JC/AD/PCC office

Saturday 30-May
Sunday 31-May
Monday 01-Jun KF, JC Accounts open to public inspection for 30 working days

Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Tuesday 02-Jun JC Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Wednesday 03-Jun KF, PS, JC Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Thursday 04-Jun JC Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Friday 05-Jun JC Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Saturday 06-Jun
Sunday 07-Jun
Monday 08-Jun KF Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Tuesday 09-Jun KF, CW Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Wednesday 10-Jun KF,PS,CW Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Thursday 11-Jun KF,CW JARAC Final Accounts Workshop HoF/JC/AD/SA

Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance
Friday 12-Jun KF,PS, CW Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist Strat Finance

Deadline for Outturn Reports (Revenue & Capital) for SPA Board on 13 July ?? HoF/PS/JC
Deadline for Treasury Management Annual Report SPA Board 13 July ?? MC/JC
Deadline for Annual Debtors report for SPA Board 13 July?? KB/JC

Saturday 13-Jun
Sunday 14-Jun
Monday 15-Jun KF, PS,CW
Tuesday 16-Jun PS, CW
Wednesday 17-Jun PS,KF,CW
Thursday 18-Jun PS,CW
Friday 19-Jun PS,CW Completion of RO Forms - awaiting deadline date MC
Saturday 20-Jun
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Sunday 21-Jun
Monday 22-Jun KF Audit of Accounts 22nd June until end of July. Ext Auditors doing both Police & Fire at same time Ext Audit
Tuesday 23-Jun All debtor invoices that relate to old year to be sent to Finance Support to be raised Strat Finance
Wednesday 24-Jun PS,KF
Thursday 25-Jun
Friday 26-Jun Completion of CO Forms - awaiting deadline JC

Completion of WGA Return - awaiting deadline date KF/JC
Saturday 27-Jun
Sunday 28-Jun
Monday 29-Jun KF
Tuesday 30-Jun
Wednesday 01-Jul PS,KF
Thursday 02-Jul
Friday 03-Jul
Saturday 04-Jul
Sunday 05-Jul
Monday 06-Jul KF,TW

Tuesday 07-Jul TW
Wednesday 08-Jul PS,KF,TW
Thursday 09-Jul TW
Friday 10-Jul TW Conclusion of Public inspection of Accounts 
Saturday 11-Jul
Sunday 12-Jul
Monday 13-Jul KF Strategic Priorities Assurance (SPA) Board 
Tuesday 14-Jul
Wednesday 15-Jul PS,KF
Thursday 16-Jul
Friday 17-Jul
Saturday 18-Jul
Sunday 19-Jul
Monday 20-Jul KF Deadline for Audited SOA for JARAC?? 
Tuesday 21-Jul
Wednesday 22-Jul PS,KF
Thursday 23-Jul
Friday 24-Jul
Saturday 25-Jul
Sunday 26-Jul
Monday 27-Jul KF
Tuesday 28-Jul JARAC Accounts signed off

Send Accounts to Auditors JC
Wednesday 29-Jul PS,KF Opinion of Auditors required Auditors
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Thursday 30-Jul Publish Accounts on Internet by this date JC/PCC office
Friday 31-Jul Conclusion of Audit published on Internet JC/PCC office
Saturday 01-Aug
Sunday 02-Aug
Friday 28-Aug Audited WGA sent off - awaiting deadlines dates KF/JC

Weekend
Bank Holiday
Annual leave/Non working Day
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POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND GROUP 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Accounting Policies 
 
General Principles 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The accounting policies 
contained in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the 
public sector by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 
 
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified 
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities. 
 
With the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 on 22 November 2012 two 
‘corporation sole’ bodies, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and the Chief Constable 
for Derbyshire were formed.  Both bodies are required to prepare separate Statements of Accounts. 
 
The Financial Statements included here represent the accounts for the Commissioner and also those for 
the Group.  The financial statements cover the 12 months to 31 March 2020.  The term ‘Group’ is used 
to indicate individual transactions and policies of the Commissioner and Chief Constable for the year 
ended 31 March 2020.  The identification of the Commissioner as the holding organisation and the 
requirement to produce group accounts stems from the powers and responsibilities of the Commissioner 
under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below: - 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made and 
received.  Whilst all expenditure is paid for by the Group including the pay costs of police officers and 
staff, the actual recognition in the respective Commissioner and Chief Constable Accounts is based on 
economic benefit. 
 
Debtors – these are recognised in the accounts when the ordered goods or services have been 
delivered or rendered by the Group in the financial year but the income has not yet been received. 
Income has only been included in the accounts when it can be realised with reasonable certainty. Where 
there is evidence that the Group may not be able to collect all amounts due to it, a provision for bad 
debts is established. The provision made is the difference between the current carrying value of the debt 
and the amount likely to be collected. These amounts are set on an individual debtor basis. The 
provision for bad debts is recognised as a charge to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for the income that might not be collected. 
 
Creditors – these are recorded where goods or services have been supplied to the Group by 31 March 
but payment is not made until the following financial year. 
 
Fair Value Measurement 
Some of the non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some financial instruments are measured 
at fair value at each reporting date.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset  in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset  takes place either: - 
 
• In the principal market for the asset ; or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset  
 
The fair value of an asset  is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset , assuming that market participants act in their economic interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account. 
 
Valuation techniques used are those appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. 
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Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets  for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: - 
 
• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that can be accessed at 

the measurement date. 
• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted process included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

, either directly or indirectly. 
• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the assets . 
 
Accounting for Local Taxes  
The collection of council tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement with the Derbyshire District and 
Derby City Authorities (billing authorities) collecting council tax on behalf of the Commissioner (the 
Police Precept). 
 
The council tax income is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis and includes the precept for the year plus a share of Collection Fund surpluses and 
deficits from the billing authorities. 
 
The difference between the income reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Reserve shall be taken to the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The year-end Balance Sheet includes the share of year end debtors (arrears and collection fund 
surpluses) and creditors (prepayments, overpayments and collection fund deficits) attributable to the 
Group 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.  The following have been classed as cash 
and cash equivalents: 
 
• Cash on hand. 
• Cash in bank (Current Account, Call Account and Business Premium Account). 
• Temporary investments with instant access and no penalties. 
 
Exceptional Items 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either 
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, 
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Group’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for 
the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
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Employee Benefits 
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting 
standard but it is based on a simple principle that: 
 
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn 
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the 
future”. 
 
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment, 
termination benefits and post-employment benefits. 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They 
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the Group.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the 
year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (as a surplus/deficit on Provision of Services), but 
then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating 
Compensated Absences Account so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in 
which the holiday absence occurs but have no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Group to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Group is demonstrably committed to the termination of the 
employment of an employee or group of employees or making an offer to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to 
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but 
unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Post-employment Benefits (Pensions) 
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability in 
the Balance Sheet (offset by an unusable Pension Reserve) for benefits earned but not yet paid, and 
entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for in-year movements in the liability.  
Reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement bring back the cost of pensions to the 
amount chargeable to the General Fund for the purposes of grant and local taxation).  
  
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured 
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Group’s share of investments (if any)). 
 
The Group participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit schemes” as 
they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service; 
 
a) Police Officers 
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police 
officers based on pensionable salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions 
liabilities.   
 
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April 
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as 
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently the equivalent 
of 31% of pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  
 
The Group is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that must be 
paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation.  Officer’s contributions and the 
employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account from which pension payments are then 
made. The account is topped up as necessary by a grant from the Home Office if the contributions are 
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insufficient to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus is recouped by the Home Office. Injury 
awards and the capital costs associated with ill health retirements are paid from the Group’s 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which 
fall due after the end of the financial year.  

 
b) Police Staff and PCSO’s 
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational 
pension scheme.  Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final 
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year. 
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types 
of asset, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of the 
fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its liabilities. 
 
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to 
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate 
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’, 
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.  
 

 Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the net pension liability in the Balance 
Sheet at their fair value: - 

 
• Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price. 
• Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate. 
• Property – Market Value. 
 
The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Service cost comprising: 
 
• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned 

this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of scheme amendment or curtailment whose 

effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non-
distributed costs. 

• Net interest expense – the change during the period in the net defined liability (asset) arising from 
the passage of time charged to Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure line, taking into 
account changes in net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution 
and benefit payments 
 

Remeasurements comprising: 
 
• Return on plan assets – excluding amounts included above in net interest, charged to Pensions 

Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have 

not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure. 

• Contributions paid to the pension fund. 
 

Discretionary Benefits 
The Group also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event 
of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award. 
 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.  The Group will report these in the following way if it is determined 
that the event has had a material effect on the Group’s financial position: - 
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• Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be 
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts. 

• Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative 
notes to the accounts. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
Financial Instruments - Liabilities and Assets 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying 
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the 
borrowings that the Group has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Group has not undertaken any repurchasing or early settlement of borrowing. 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. The group only holds 
financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables)  
•  
 
 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying 
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans 
that the Group has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Government Grants & Contributions 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants and third party contributions 
and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable assurance that: - 
 
• The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments. 
• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefit or service potential embodied in 
the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
Net Cost of Services (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income (non ring fenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. 
Where it is applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to 
fund capital expenditure. 
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Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are 
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition and Measurement 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis, 
provided that it yields benefits to the Group and the services it provides for more than one financial year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 
 
• Land, property and other operational assets are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (existing 

use value). Operational assets can either be specialised or non-specialised. Specialised Assets, 
where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of their specialist nature, are 
valued at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) as an estimate for fair value. The only assets to be 
classified as specialised property relate to the operational custody suites situated within the various 
properties. In cases where there is only a small number of cells, or where cells are now out of use, 
these have not been treated as specialised properties.  

• Surplus assets are included at the current value measurement base (fair value), estimated at 
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective. 

• Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed, 
whereupon they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.  

 
Where non property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 
basis is used as a proxy for fair value e.g. Vehicles, IT and Communications equipment and other 
equipment. 
 
Revaluation 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that the 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value but as a minimum every five years. 
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised 
gains. Occasionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to the account. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: - 
 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairments 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they 
are accounted for by: 

 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains). 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
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Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis for on all Property, Plant, Vehicles and Equipment 
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives, as advised by a 
suitably qualified advisor. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. 
freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Component Accounting – where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components 
whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately.  The component is judged to be significant where the replacement value is above £0.5m or 
25% of the asset.  
 
It is the Group’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is 
made in the year of disposal.  Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Disposals and Assets held for sale 
When a non-current asset is planned to be disposed of, it is reclassified as an Asset held for sale. To be 
reclassified it must meet the following criteria: - 
 

• The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject to terms that are 
usual and customary for sales of such assets. 

• The sale must be highly probable (with management commitment to sell and active marketing of the 
asset initiated). 

• It must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair 
value. 

• The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year. 
 
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held 
for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to 
sell. 
 
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are 
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of the disposal). Any 
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance 
of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used to 
finance new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Group’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Reserve Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the 
Group. 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to provide information on policing matters. 
 
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets 
held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset 
held by the Group meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable 
amount of an intangible asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
over its useful life. Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in 
which they are received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve 
Balance; it is therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  - 
 
• Depreciation attributable to the assets used. 
• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the 

Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 
• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets. 
 
The Group is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards 
the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). An annual 
statement for the policy on making MRP is required in accordance with statutory guidance; this should 
be calculated on a prudent basis.  The policy for Derbyshire is: - 
 
• For Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP Policy will be based on the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR) being 2% straight-line basis of the opening balance of the CFR for that year  
• For unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be based on the Asset Life Method, equal 

instalment over the life of the asset   
• For PFI contracts and leases that are deemed to be on Balance Sheet, the MRP requirement would 

be regarded as met by a charge equal to the element of the charge that goes to write down the 
Balance Sheet liability. 
   

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by revenue 
provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not 
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Group has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor 
(landlord) to the lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
The Group has looked at material property leases over £10,000 and for more than 10 years.  IAS 17 
‘Leases’ includes indicators for the classification of leases as a finance lease.  Material leases have 
been judged against these indicators. 
 
 
 
 
 



  Appendix B TO AGENDA ITEM 10A 
  JARAC 
  20 FEBRUARY 2020     

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2019/20                                                                         24 
 

a) Finance Leases 
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment  
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessee will be recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. 
 
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced 
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance 
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability. 
 
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line). 
 
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way 
as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group. Depreciation to be charged over the lease term if 
this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.  
 
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
Where an asset is identified as a finance lease, and where the Group is the lessor, it will be written out 
of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. The carrying amount is written off to Other Operating Expenditure 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the authority’s net investment in the lease, is 
credited to the same line, matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.  The lease 
rentals received write-down the lease debtor and the finance income is credited to the Financing & 
Investment Income & Expenditure line. 
 
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt. 
 
b) Operating Leases 
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Group is the lessee, the rentals will be charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line basis 
over the term of the lease. 
 
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Group is the lessor, shall be retained in the 
Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
 
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts  
The Group has entered into two PFI arrangements, Ilkeston Police Station and St Mary’s Wharf  DHQ at 
Derby.  The first affected the accounts from 1998/99, the second from 2000/01. Both have a continuing 
commitment by the Group for 30 years. PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the 
responsibility for making available the non-current assets needed to provide the services passes to the 
PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes 
and has control over the residual interest in the property at the end of the arrangement (if exercised), the 
Group carries the non-current assets under the contracts on the Balance Sheet as part of Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 
 
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for 
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investments. 
 
PFI assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property, 
plant and equipment owned by the Group.  
 
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year should be analysed into five elements: - 
 
• Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  
 
• Finance cost – an interest charge of 9.114% for Ilkeston PFI and 7.917% for Derby PFI on the 

outstanding Balance Sheet Liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
• Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract. For 

both the Group’s PFI schemes there is no contingent rent as the property element of the fee paid to 
the PFI operator is not indexed. 
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• Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI 
operator. This is also the MRP charge for PFI schemes. 

 
• Lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as fixed assets on the Balance Sheet if the costs are of a 

capital nature or if the costs are revenue debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.     

 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or 
amount. There are three criteria: 
 
• The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 
• It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation. 
• A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the 
year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks 
and uncertainties.  
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.   
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are 
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated 
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months). 
  
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where 
a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
Reserves  
Usable Reserves - the Group’s General Revenue Balances are held in the General Reserve. The 
Group also maintains a number of specific ‘earmarked’ reserves for future expenditure on either policy 
purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General 
Reserve Balance. When revenue expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant reserve is then debited with an 
equivalent amount which is appropriated back into the General Reserve Balance so that the expenditure  
is not charged against Council Tax. 
  
Also held under usable reserves are those that support the financing of capital (Capital receipts reserve 
and Capital Grants unapplied).  
 
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for non- 
current assets (Capital Adjustment Account, Revaluation Reserve, Deferred Capital Receipts), 
retirement and employee benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated 
Absences Account) and Accounting for local taxes (Collection Fund Adjustment Account). These do not 
represent usable resources for the Group.  
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Value Added Tax (VAT) 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all 
VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.  
 
Jointly Controlled Operations  
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Group in conjunction with other venturers 
that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a 
separate entity. The Group recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities 
that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the 
expenditure its incurs and the share of income it earns from the activity of the operation.  
 
Joint Ventures  
Joint Ventures are arrangements under which two or more parties have contractually agreed to share 
control, such that decisions about activities that significantly affect returns require the unanimous 
consent of the parties sharing control, and joint ventures have rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement.  Joint Ventures have their own legal entity. They are accounted for using the equity 
method in the Group Accounts. 
 
The Joint Venture between Derbyshire Police and Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service was formed 
under a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP). The Joint Venture operates an Income and Expenditure 
Account, the LLP Board can re-distribute 75% of any profits back to partners (Police and Fire), they also 
have discretion to re-distribute a further 25% Due to the timing of the LLP accounts Derbyshire Police 
may account for any profit in the following financial year if information is not available in time. 
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BUDGET SETTING MEETING 
 

 

REPORT 
TITLE FINANCIAL BRIEFING – END OF DECEMBER 2019 

REPORT BY CHIEF CONSTABLE AND CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  
DATE 7 February 2020   
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To provide an overview of the financial position for the Force as a whole for the period 9 

– end of December 2019. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A: Finance Briefing 2019/20 (Period 9) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Commissioner notes the current financial position of Derbyshire Police as set 

out in the Finance Briefing Document, in particular, a projected overspend of £0.192m 

to the end of the year (an overspend of £1.860m against the original approved budget); 

 

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 

  

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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1. OVERVIEW 

1.1 The approved budget for 2019/20 is £179,918m and was approved by the 
Strategic Governance Board (SGB) on 21 January 2019. This monitoring 
includes all budget pressures up to the end of December 2019. 
 
Revenue Budget position 
 

1.2 The anticipated year end position is an overspend of £0.192m against the 
revised budget (0.1% of the original budget). However, based on the forecast at 
the end of December, the total contribution from reserves would increase from 
£1.098m, as anticipated at the beginning of the financial year, to £2.217m to 
address the overspend. This will require careful monitoring and the Force has 
established a ‘Finance Futures’ Board with an associated savings programme 
which will be key in identifying savings to support address the overspend and 
ensure the force can sustain the current level of investment. 

 
1.3 The main reason for the projected overspend at the end of December 2019 is 

due to Police Officer numbers being over establishment and associated overtime 
costs. There are, however, continuing IS and maintenance cost pressures on the 
estate which have also been highlighted as part of the 2020/21 budget process. 

 
Treasury Management  

 
1.4 Investment returns continue to be modest, although they continue to exceed the 

base rate. This is partly due to the long term nature of some of our investments.  
Overall the average rate remains at just under 6% for the year so far. 
 
Capital programme  

 
1.5 Derbyshire Police again has a large capital programme this year. 53% of this 

programme has been spent so far with some key projects being delivered, in 
particular, Ashbourne Co-location and the SARC Project. Work has started on 
site at Ascot Drive and the North East Hub proposal is still in development.   
 

1.6 Coupled with this it is also projected that reserves will reduce to £13.132m by the 
year end with the majority earmarked for operational, property and ICT projects. 
The Forces Reserves are now just below average compared to other Police 
Forces but are also reducing quicker than other forces. Reserves do not provide 
a sustainable source of funding and savings plans will be essential in supporting 
continued investment alongside prudent borrowing.   

2. SUMMARY 

2.1 Performance against the revenue budget continues to be closely managed, in 
particular, the forces establishment position given the current projected 
overspend and funding uncertainties. 
 



3 

2.2 Treasury management returns and investment decisions are being monitored 
with the need to maintain a balance between making funds available and 
securing a reasonable return. 
 

2.3 Progress on the capital programme is being reviewed to prioritise projects and 
reallocate funds to new priorities where necessary. 
   

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

None 
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As at the end of December 2019 (period 9), the forecast year end position is an overspend of £0.192m 
against the revised budget, an overall overspend of £1.860m against the original approved budget. 
 
Variances shown in the below table have been compared against the Revised Revenue Budget 
approved at the Strategic Priorities Assurance (SPA) Board on 25 November 2019. 
 

 
 
Overall the forecast is on line with the revised budget but there are significant variances within the 
different budget headings, the largest variances are as follows: 
 
 Police Officer (see below)  £0.502m 

Police Staff    (£0.449m) 
 Premises    £0.423m 
 Transport   (£0.216m) 

Supplies & Services   £0.626m 
 Income    (£0.606m) 
 
Police Officer Salaries £0.215m 
This overspend is due to the additional Police Officer intakes planned for the end of this financial year 
and will be offset by the government grant that will be received for the uplift of Police Officer numbers. 
 
Police Officer Overtime £0.287m 
Major Crime £0.160m, Crime Support £0.076m and North Division £0.053m are the formations that are 
forecasting the highest overspends. 
 
Police Staff 
South Division are forecasting the largest underspend of (£0.227m) due to the high turnover of PCSO 
posts. The impact of the new intakes expected to start in the next two months has been offset by a high 
number of leavers during this month. 
 
Premises  
The most significant area of spend is Repairs and Maintenance costs of £0.214m, the forecast is based 
on an uplift of the costs incurred to date. 
 
Supplies & Services 
IT costs are currently forecasting an overspend of £0.249m on software rental, hardware purchase and 
hardware maintenance. Professional fees are also expected to overspend by £0.191m this is largely 
related to expenditure within the Assets department. 
 
Income 
The most significant increases in the forecast are listed below; 
 

Overall Financial Performance
Revenue Budget 
& Precept Report Revised Budget

Expected Year-
end Projection Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000
Office of the PCC 1,220 1,220 1,250 30
Grants & Commissioning (incl MOJ) 1,562 1,562 1,562 -
Income & Accounting 1,950 -1,784 -1,818 ( 35)
Derbyshire Constabulary 175,186 178,919 179,116 197
Position Against Approved Budget 179,918 179,918 180,110 192

Overall Financial Performance 
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Government Grants (£0.404m) – the amount awarded for the Police Officer 
Uplift grant offsets the overspend on Police Officer salaries 

Local Authority Contributions (£0.098m) – income has been received from partners 
towards the Appropriate Adult scheme for previous years 

Proceeds of Crime Income (£0.050m) – this quarterly income is highly variable, the 
income we’ve received to date is higher than expected 

  
  
The projected impact on usable reserves following the revised budget and the forecast overspend 
is as follows:- 
 

 
 
A more detailed analysis of the key variances worthy of note, which make up a significant proportion of 
the overall underspend are detailed in the following tables:- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Usable Reserves    Balances at 
31/03/19 

 Projected 
Movements      

2019/20 

 Proposed 
Allocation of 

Underspends 

 Projected 
Contributions 

to Capital 
2019/20 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/20 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

General Reserve 5,500 - - - 5,500

Earmarked Reserve

- Usable 8,071 ( 2,174) - - 5,897

-Non-usable 3,915 ( 399) - 3,516
TOTAL RESERVES 17,486 ( 2,573) - - 14,913

General Reserve 5,500 - - - 5,500

Earmarked Reserve

- Usable 8,071 ( 3,962) - - 4,109

-Non-usable 3,915 ( 392) - 3,523
TOTAL RESERVES 17,486 ( 4,354) - - 13,132

Outturn Report 18/19

Period 9 - December 2019
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Key Variances  

  
 

Anticipated Savings £000 Additional Spending £000
Police Officer Salaries 215     
Police Officer Overtime 287     

Police Pensions ( 57)

Other Employee Expenses ( 17)

Police Staff Pay
South Division ( 227) CCMC 110     
Finance & Business Support ( 88)
Corporate Services ( 109)
Various ( 135)

Premises Costs
Repairs & Maintenance 214     
Rents 34      
Rates -     
PFI - Lifecycle & Unitary Costs 84      
Cleaning Cons/Specialist Cleaning 51      
Various 40      

Transport Costs
Travel ( 88)
Comm / De Comm of vehicles ( 115)
Various ( 13)

Supplies & Services and Agency Costs 
Interpreters ( 60) Equipment 64      
Various ( 6) Professional Fees 191     

IT Costs 249     
Pathologists Services 62      
Furniture 62      
Uniforms 85      
Agency - Borrowed Officers 62      

Regional & National Operations
Regional Collaboration ( 2)
Self Funded Operations ( 14)

Gov Grant - Grant for additional officers ( 405)

General Income OPCC 30      
Local Authority Contributions ( 98)
Drugs Profit Income ( 45)
Proceeds of Crime Income ( 50)
Sales - Vehicles ( 33)
Various ( 30)

Debt Charges - Interest & Profit Share ( 34)est e t co e
Grants & Partnerships
Partnerships - Force ( 22)

TOTAL ( 1,648) TOTAL 1,840



FINANCIAL BRIEFING – DERBYSHIRE POLICE         Appendix A to Report 5E 

 
 

PERIOD 9 – December 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
Collaboration 

 
  
 
 

 

 
 

PWLB & Transferred Debt 
 
This Revised Budget includes new borrowing of £6.7m to fund the capital programme. As yet this 
new borrowing hasn’t been taken out, it is likely to be taken out in February.  
 
Average Investments (money markets only) and Investment Income 
 
The amount the Force has to invest is lower compared to 2018/19, at the end of December last year we 
had invested an average of £24m, the equivalent at the end of December this year was £16.6m. The 
amount earned to the end of December last year was £0.147m compared to £0.121m this year. The 
budget for investment income has been revised to £130k.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash Contributions 7,597 7,742 7,718 -24
Officers in Kind Contributions 1,788 1,472 1,514 42
Non-shared Contributions - E M Major Crime Unit 1,911 1,820 1,800 -20
Non-shared Contributions - Contrib to Software Maint 
  

14 14 14 0
TOTAL 11,310 11,048 11,046 ( 2)

Collaboration VarianceProjected 
Out-turn

Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget

Previous 
Year

Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget

This Month Last Month 

£m £m £m £m £m
PWLB & Transferred Debt 4.375 13.910 10.355 4.040 4.098
PFI Liabilities 9.214 8.489 8.489 8.670 8.731
Total Borrowing 13.589 22.399 18.844 12.710 12.829

Total Average Investments 21.356 21.500 15.660 16.557 17.380
Total Investment Income (0.160) (0.160) (0.130) (0.121) (0.116)

Average Interest Earned 0.571% 0.600% 0.613% 0.619% 0.614%
Average LIBID Rate 0.508% - - 0.568% 0.567%
Average Base Rate 0.663% 0.750% 0.750% 0.750% 0.750%

Treasury Management 
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Buildings 
Equipment 

& 
vehicles  

IT  EMCTIU  
Regional 

lead 
force 

Total 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 
              
Actual to 3rd January 2020 2,875 991 1,379 179 0 5,424 
Commitments & Contracts to be 
paid 887 596 1,143 60 36 2,722 
Total to 3rd January 2020 3,762 1,587 2,522 239 36 8,146 

              
Revised Capital Programme  9,090 1,938 3,862 373 0 15,263 
              
              
Budget remaining 5,328 351 1,340 134  (36) 7,117 
              

 

 
Revised Capital Programme 
  
The Revised Capital Programme was approved at SPA Board on the 7th October 2019. 
 
Building Schemes 
 
Co-locations with Fire – Bakewell Co-Location works have been completed and Shirebrook is due to 
complete in January. The tender report has been received for Long Eaton. 
 
Refurbishment of Kitchens and Bathrooms – work is now underway for Wyatts Way and the north of 
the County. 
 
Sexual Referral Centre – The scheme was completed and opened in August 2019. 
 
Derby East LPU Accommodation and North East Division Accommodation - £4.5m is included in the 
2019/20 Revised Capital Programme for these schemes. The land has been purchased for the Derby 
East scheme and work started in February. The purchase of land for the North East scheme is likely to 
be in 2020/21. 
 
Tiered Car Park Rebuild – work commenced in August on the tiered car park rebuild. 
 
Some schemes have been delayed until 2020/21. 
 
Equipment and Vehicles 
 
Vehicles – 98% of the vehicles have been ordered to date. 
 
Equipment – The capital equipment budget £0.291m has been fully committed but the only spend so 
far is on Drones and shotgun replacements. 
       
Body Armour – This scheme has been delayed so the majority of the budget has been moved forward 
into 2020/21.  
 
 

Capital 



FINANCIAL BRIEFING – DERBYSHIRE POLICE         Appendix A to Report 5E 

 
 

PERIOD 9 – December 2019 

IS Schemes  
 
IS replacement schemes are progressing including devices for Windows 10 and replacement ANPR. 
 
Call Centre Telephone Replacement scheme – this was delayed from last year. Assurances have 
been given by the supplier that this will be delivered by the end of the financial year.  
 
Body Worn Video – The model for BWV has been changed so the budget is unlikely to be spent this 
year apart from new recruits. 
 
Digital Interview Recording Units – The order has been placed for this scheme. 
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Detailed Budget Analysis         Annex A 
 

 
 

Derbyshire Police

Revenue 
Budget & 
Precept 
Report

Revised 
Budget

Expected 
Year-end 
Projection Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000
Crime & Territorial Policing 16,534 18,052 18,194 142

Operational Support 16,725 17,704 17,849 145-
Business Futures / Corporate Services 16,274 18,036 17,978 ( 58)-
Finance & Business Services 7,307 7,295 7,659 364-
Force 107,037 106,785 106,389 ( 396)-
Contributions to Regional Units 11,310 11,048 11,047 ( 1)-
Office of the PCC 1,220 1,220 1,250 30-
Grants & Commissioning (incl MOJ) 1,562 1,562 1,562 -

Income & Accounting 1,950 ( 1,784) ( 1,818) ( 35)
TOTAL 179,918 179,918 180,110 192

Subjective Analysis

Precept 
Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget

Expected 
Year-end 
Projection

Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000
Police Officers & Pensions 97,026 98,800 99,245 445

Police Staff 42,980 43,677 43,228 ( 449)

Other Indirect Off icer/Staff Costs 835 1,057 1,040 ( 17)

Premises 9,211 9,527 9,950 423

Transport 3,760 3,657 3,441 ( 216)

Supplies & Services, Agency, Pay and Price 
Contingency, Debt Charges

Regional Units 11,310 11,048 11,047 ( 1)

Secondment 0 0 - -

Contribution to National Policing 215 115 100 ( 15)

BCU Funds 318 347 346 ( 1)

Partnerships & Other Grants 574 694 673 ( 21)

Contribution to/(from) Reserves ( 1,684) ( 4,047) ( 4,047) -

Office of the PCC 1,220 1,220 1,250 30

Grants & Commissioning (incl MOJ) 1,562 1,562 1,562 -

Income (Including Interest Receipts) ( 6,006) ( 6,562) ( 7,222) ( 660)
TOTAL 179,918 179,917 180,109 192
(  )                   Underspend

Low  risk/no action required
Medium risk/management review  required
High risk/management attention required

18,597 19,496 67418,822
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Reserves -                                                                                                      Annex C          

 

 

 Scheme  Total Original 
Budget  

 Total Revised 
Budget  

 Actual, 
Commitments 
& Contracts to 

be paid 

 Budget 
Remaining  Spend 

£000 £000 £000 £000 %
Expenditure
Co-locations with Fire 500 667 578 89 0%
Other Building Work/Land 8,738 8,423 3,184 5,239 38%
IS/Communications 3,464 3,862 2,522 1,340 65%
Vehicles 1,194 1,547 1,516 31 98%
Equipment 710 391 71 320 18%
EMCTIU 340 373 239 134 0%

TOTAL 14,946 15,263 8,110 7,153 53%
Regional Projects 0 0 36 -36
(to be recharged)

TOTAL 14,946 15,263 8,146 7,117

   Balances at 
31/03/19 

 Projected 
Movements      

2019/20 

 Proposed 
Allocation of 

Underspends 

 Projected 
Contributions 

to Capital 
2019/20 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/20 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
GENERAL RESERVES 5,500 5,500

EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:-
Operational Priorities - - 0

Operational Funding & Investment 4,276 ( 3,315) 961

Contribution to Capital - - - 0

Carry-forw ards 1,648 ( 531) 1,117

PCC Grants & Commissioning Reserve 2,147 ( 116) 2,031

Pensions - - 0

8,071 ( 3,962) - - 4,109
Non-useable:-
PFI - Ilkeston 1,063 ( 64) 999

PFI - Derby 2,782 ( 333) 2,449

Insurance 70 5 75

Carry-forw ards non Force - - 0

3,915 ( 392) 0 0 3,523

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 11,986 ( 4,354) - - 7,632

TOTAL RESERVES 17,486 ( 4,354) - - 13,132

Detailed Capital Analysis          Annex B 
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BUDGET SETTING MEETING REPORTS:  
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REPORT BY CHIEF CONSTABLE 

DATE 20 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To provide a courtesy copy of the reports that were presented to the Budget Setting 

Meeting on 20 February 2020. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Budget Setting meeting Reports: 
• FINANCIAL BRIEFING – END OF DECEMBER 2019]  

 (Agenda Item 5E and Appendix A)  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

To note the paper as part of JARAC’s broader remit. 
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A.  None
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Annex A to Report 10C JARAC

notes  2020/21        2021/22        2022/23       

PROJECTED STAFFING LEVELS 19/20 fte's fte's fte's
Police Officers 1758 1,835.0 1,948.0 2,033.0
PCSO's 178 179.0 179.0 179.0
Police Staff 1358 1,409.3 1,409.3 1,409.3

TOTALSTAFFING 3294 3,423.3     3,536.3     3,621.3     

PROJECTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT  £m  £m  £m 

Previous Year's Budget Requirement 181.016 189.879 194.642
less: Pension Support Grant treated as Income within budget ( 1.856)
Previous Year's Budget Requirement - adjusted 179.160 189.879 194.642

Pay & Price Increases
Full Year Effect of Previous Year's Pay Award:-

Police Officers 0.723 1.036 1.056
Police Staff 0.243 0.488 0.506

Provision for Current Year's Pay Award & Inflation:-
Police Officers pay award 1.373 1.466 1.493
Police Staff pay award 0.669 0.704 0.730
Police Officer Increments 1.575 1.582 1.622
Police Staff Increments 0.595 0.610 0.625
Police Staff Pensions Revaluation 0.361
Inflation - Collab 0.247
Specific Price Inflation 0.114 0.152 0.136
General Inflation Contingency

Total - Pay & Price Increases 5.899 6.037 6.168

Previous Year's Budget plus Pay & Price increases 185.059 195.916 200.810

Other Ongoing Changes  (eg from government / policing service decisions)
Police Officers - Turnover (recruitment less wastage) ( 2.366) ( 2.472) ( 2.256)
Police Officers - Vacancy Factor removed 1.365
Police Officers - Overtime (no of Bank Holidays) 0.118 0.235 ( .120)
Police Officers - Rent / Housing Allowance eligibility ( .122) ( .118) ( .108)
Police Officers - Overtime Special Duty adjustment ( .059)
Police Staff - misc changes in existing costs 0.125
Renewal of Pronto licences 0.255
Mobile Phones rental 0.400
Single On-line Home costs ( .029) ( .029)
National IT Charges 0.106
Other subscriptions to national policing services 0.152
Debt Charges - current borrowing (pre 2019/20) ( .029) ( .024) ( .022)
Debt Charges - new borrowing (from 2019/20) 0.358 1.044 0.068
(Profit) / Loss on Joint Venture - LLP ( .300)
JHQ Service Charge Increase 0.110
Investment Income 0.050
Other miscellaneous changes 0.052
Changes in specific Reserve contributions 0.011 ( .043) ( .048)

2019/20 Precept Decisions - full year effect
Police Officers - Reform & Engage posts 0.476
Police Staff posts 0.356
Domestic Abuse training ( .063)
Taser Uplift 0.142 0.036
Other Changes ( .303)

Total - Other Approved or Anticipated Changes 0.252 ( .820) ( 2.486)

Items Agreed after 2019/20 Precept Meeting
WFM - FIMU Restructure, Taser Manager, Crime Registrar ( .025)

Police Staff - Derbyshire Alert / Comms Asst 0.062
Police Staff - Information Management posts 0.034
Police Staff - Business Change posts 0.251
Police Staff - Staff Networks & Inclusion Manager 0.018
Police Staff - Wildlife Officer Post 0.8 fte 0.027
Police Staff - Joint JTC 0.016
Police Staff -  Regional EMPAC Post 0.027
Police Staff -  CMARC Removal of 4% Vacancy Factor
Assets - Rental/Cleaning  Of Serious Crime Hub 0.204
Assets - Rates Roland Hill House 0.018
Business Change - Devolved Budget Requirement 0.036
Child / Adult Protection Contributions 0.040
Dogs Budget - realignment of Budget to spend 0.036

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
Revenue Budget Projections 2020/21 to 2023/24

Updated February 2020
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HR - Increase in EAP Contract 0.012
Income Budget - UOD Police Apprentices ( .112)
Income Budget - Contribution to Gateway Development Post ( .022)
Income Budget - Regional EMPAC Post ( .021)
Income Budget - Director of Finance DFRS Share ( .042)
Income Budget - Other Changes ( .089)
IS - Bes Blackberry 0.127
IS - NEP Annual Charge 0.034
IS - Fleet Management System 0.008
IS - Adobe Licensing Changes 0.022
IS - Crime Support - Digital forensics tool - Additional Licence Costs 0.020
IS - Chorus Licences - Additional Requirement Crime Support 0.010
IS - Photocopier Contract - Savings ( .020)
IS -Ongoing cost of Analytics 0.030 0.160

Collaboration Changes
EMSOU - Adjustment due to loss of funding streams 0.096
Regional Forensic Collision Investigation Network 0.034
Forensics - Realignment of the EMSOU Contract 0.058
Other Collaboration Changes 0.027

Total - Items agreed after 2019/20 Precept  Meeting 0.917 0.160 0.000

Estimated Uplift Officers 2.940 4.079 3.403
less:  Earmarked Uplift Grant ( 2.380) ( 3.164) ( 2.380)
Uplift Set-Up costs 1.250 ( .250)
Provision for Op Relentless 0.250 ( .250)
CMARC - Reduction in Vacancy Factor 0.150 ( .150)
Additional support to Capital Programme 0.250 ( .250)
Additional support to Self-Insurance Provision 0.250 ( .250)
Increase in PCC's Commissioning Budget - net of reserves 0.310 ( .060)
2020/21 Supported Business Cases 0.319 ( .007)
Provision for new Growth Items 0.313 ( .313) 1.000

BUDGET REQUIREMENT FOR YEAR 189.879 194.642 200.347

FUNDING FOR BUDGET REQUIREMENT  2020/21      
£m 

 2021/22      
£m 

 2022/23      
£m 

Central Government Funding
Formula grant ( 108.026) ( 108.026) ( 108.026)
Council Tax grants ( 8.700) ( 8.700) ( 8.700)

Total - Central Government Funding ( 116.726) ( 116.726) ( 116.726)

Precept Funding 
Previous year Council Tax Funding ( 68.858) ( 73.153) ( 75.721)
Change in tax base - annual growth ( 1.128) ( 1.091) ( 1.130)
Change in Band D Council Tax ( 3.211) ( 1.477) ( 1.529)
Change in Collection A/c Surplus / (Deficit) 0.044 0.000 0.000

Total - Precept Funding ( 73.153) ( 75.721) ( 78.380)

TOTAL PROJECTED FUNDING ( 189.879) ( 192.447) ( 195.106)

BUDGET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT ( .000) 2.195 5.241

Contribution from Operational Funding / Investment Reserve 0.000 ( 1.153) 0.000

REMAINING (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT NOT  FUNDED 0.000 1.042 5.241

.

Balance at start of year 2.153 1.653 0.000
Support to PCC Commissioning / additional PCSO's ( .500) ( .500)
Revenue surplus / (deficits) per above 0.000 ( 1.153) 0.000

Balance at end of year 1.653 0.000 0.000

IMPACT ON OPERATIONAL FUNDING RESERVE
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BUDGET SETTING MEETING  
 

 

REPORT 
TITLE 

BUDGET 2020/21, PRECEPT REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL FORECAST 2020/21 – 2023/24 

REPORT BY 
JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE, DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE FOR THE CONSTABULARY AND CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER FOR THE PCC 

DATE 7 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
This report sets out the budget and precept proposals for the Office of the Police and 

Crime Commissioner and the Constabulary.  

 

This report provides information on the draft: - 

1. Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC’s) Revenue Budget for 2020/21. 

2. Proposed Precept for 2020/21. 

3. Medium Term Financial Forecast 2020/21 – 2023/24. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
List of Annexes 

A Revenue Budget Forecast (Medium Term) 2020/21 – 2023/24 

B Budget for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 2020/21 

C Budget for the Chief Constable 2020/21 

D Anticipated Reserves 2020/21 – 2022/23 

E Summary of precept 2020/21 
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RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1. To note and acknowledge the letter from the Chief Constable (see page 7-10) 

setting out his professional recommendation to the PCC regarding the budget and 

precept proposal for 2020/21. 

 

2. In respect of the revenue budget for 2020/21: - 

a) To note the information and analysis as set out in this report. 

b) To agree the proposed adjustments to the 2020/21 budget as detailed in both 

this report and Annexes A through E 

c) To maintain a revenue contribution to capital of at least £2.95m into the base 

revenue budget. 

d) To approve the revenue budget for 2020/21. 

 

3. In respect of the council tax requirement, the associated police precept and 

provisional contributions to/(from) reserves: - 

a) Confirm the £10 precept increase for a Band D Property, as unanimously 

approved by the Police and Crime Panel on 23 January 2020. 

b) To note the anticipated movement in reserves during 2020/21 as shown in 

paragraph 8.4 and Annex D. 

 

4. In respect of the Medium Term Financial Forecast for 2020/21 - 2023/24 discussed 

within this report but also shown in more detail at Annex A: - 

a) To note the financial forecasts up to 2023/24. 

b) To note the assumptions inherent in those forecasts, as described in paragraph 
6.7 and the scenarios that affect the projected financial position. 

c) To note that the Medium Term Financial Forecast (paragraph 6.7 and Annex 
A) indicates reserves will not be sufficient to close a future funding gap. 

d) To recognise that the Force will need to identify efficiencies and savings both for 

reinvestment but also to protect front-line services. (The savings strategy is 

included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy) 
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e) To repeat the call to government for a fairer funding settlement for Derbyshire 

that includes an increase in central funding and does not merely pass the 

financial burden to local tax-payers through precept increases. 

 

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name:  Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 

 

 
  

mailto:sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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Preface from the Police & Crime Commissioner 
 
To say that my preface to this precept report is being written in unusual times is, to coin 

an over-used phrase, something of an understatement. Announcements about the 

levels of police funding (‘the Settlement’) are usually made in early December which 

allows us to prepare detailed papers that include certainties about the levels of funding 

we will be getting from central Government through the Police Grant; we also know at 

what level the precept limit has been set, so I have an idea of the scale of the flexibility I 

have available to me when considering any change; and most importantly I will have 

had time, albeit over the holiday season, to give Derbyshire residents the opportunity to 

have their say over any potential changes in precept levels for policing. This year we 

had none of this. We did not get these vital figures until 22nd January – less than 24 

hours before I was due to present my precept report to the Police and Crime Panel.  

 

The General Election in December meant that decisions about governmental spending 

were put on the back burner, it also meant no statements about the capping 

arrangements for any potential precept rises. This in turn has made it very difficult for 

me to go to the people of Derbyshire and explain the financial picture for 2020/21 and 

what I may need to ask in terms of the precept level for policing in the coming year. To 

me this is unacceptable but something over which I have no control.  

 

I think it is fair to say that there is an acceptance that after a decade of austerity, and 

resultant cuts in policing, there has been a significant effect on the Police Service of 

England and Wales. The headline-grabbing announcement towards the end of the year 

of 20,000 additional officers would seem to be a recognition of this. Whilst obviously 

welcomed, let me be clear that this will not cancel out the effects of the past ten years, 

though it will help shore up the service. It is important to recognise that the roll out of 

these additional resources will take time, and will not be felt in full until the end of 2023. 

We must also acknowledge that whilst any additional police officers are a welcome 

boost to the service, the 20,000 does not address the estimated 19,000 police staff 

roles that have been lost that allow these new officers to do the job of policing and 

keeping people safe, rather than the administrative tasks that keep the engine running. 
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Last year I will admit I was, like most of my colleagues, caught a little off guard when 

the government announced the flexibility to raise the precept by a maximum of £24. We 

had heard whispers that a greater flexibility than the usual 2% increase might be on the 

cards, but this represented the first significant increase in over ten years. I worked 

closely with the Chief Constable and ensured that he fully understood that if I was going 

to ask the public of Derbyshire for an additional £24, I (and they) expected to be able to 

see and feel the difference that this would make. The Chief agreed that this was 

important and we set about an unprecedented recruitment campaign, to seemingly 

impossible deadlines, to be able to deliver the uplift in officers and staff. True to his 

word, the Chief Constable delivered these officers and staff and we are now starting to 

feel the benefit of them within our communities. We have seen increased visibility within 

neighbourhoods, we have seen work (supported by additional funding from my office) to 

increase activity to address speeding through enforcement and investment in 

Community Speedwatch initiatives, we have seen a focus on tackling the issues of rural 

and wildlife crime through investment in the rural crime team. Initial feedback I have had 

from people out on the streets has been positive, but I am acutely aware that there is 

still more for us to do. 

 

It would be short-sighted to simply consider policing in isolation, as I have a wider 

responsibility relating to partnership working and supporting victims of crime. Some may 

suggest that austerity’s bite has been even more noticeable with some of our partners, 

and I have certainly felt the impact of their cuts through a shift of demand from services 

traditionally provided by partners onto the police. Examples of this would include 

children’s services and provision for those with mental health needs. Whilst I obviously 

want to play my part as an active partner, I simply cannot afford to plug all of the gaps 

that are now appearing. 

 

I have had difficult decisions to make when it comes to this year’s budget and precept. 

As I have outlined above I have had to consider options with only half the picture. As 

you would expect, I have spent a considerable amount of time talking to the Chief 

Constable to gain his professional perspective and he has chosen to write an open 

letter to share his views with the people of Derbyshire (a copy of which follows). My 

Chief Finance Officer has worked with the Force finance team to model potential 
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financial positions and options for this and future years. I have gone to the public, both 

online and in person, to ask for their views.  

 

I must also acknowledge the elephant in the room in that there are the PCC elections in 

May. But let me be clear…the decisions I will make, and the recommendations I outline 

in this report are based on doing what I believe are the right things for the people of 

Derbyshire, not the most politically expedient. When I took up office in 2016 I took an 

oath which stated that I would, to the best of my ability, execute the duties of my office 

to ensure that the police are able to cut crime and protect the public. 

 

 
 
 
Hardyal Dhindsa 
Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
February 2020 
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1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – WHAT THE SETTLEMENT MEANS FOR 

DERBYSHIRE 

1.1 In reading this report and the supporting documents, it is useful to keep in mind 

the following key headlines: 

• The government grant settlement and precept flexibility allowed for up to a 

£10 increase for a Band D property, (a 4.62% increase or less than a £1 a 

month for a Band D property). The initial limit set by the Government was 

equivalent to a £4.31 increase in the Band D charge or 2%. £10 provides 

an extra £4m of additional income to Derbyshire through council tax, 

bringing council tax funding to £73m.  

• The Constabulary has received £7.5m up front through its Core Grant in 

2020/21 to cover Derbyshire’s share of the extra 20,000 officers 

announced by the Government with a further £2.4m performance related 

payment linked to achievement of the government’s targets. This funds 85 

additional officers in 2020/21 as part of the wider national uplift that will 

see 283 officers by 2022/23. 

• There are a number of other bid-based funding schemes that are being 

introduced, most notably the national Taser Funding of £10m which the 

Force can bid into on the basis of risk and threat. A bid has been 

submitted recently for £0.14m for 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

• Overall funding of £189.88m based on a £10 increase.  In Derbyshire, this 

sees our funding increase by 5.6% between 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

• £1m funding has been provided from the PCC Reserves to cover 

additional PCSO recruitment for 2 years. 

 More detailed assumptions are covered later in the report. 

1.2 The Commissioner, whilst welcoming additional specific funding, regrets that 

much of the burden is still having to be transferred again to the public of 

Derbyshire. The Commissioner has consulted with the public of Derbyshire 

concerning his proposal to increase the precept in 2020/21. This consultation, 

starting prior to the Government funding announcements, ran until 23 January 
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2020 with 1,444 respondents.  76.9% of respondents supported a precept 

increase of £10 and 47.1% would have supported an increase of £24 if it was 

allowed by referendum limits. 

1.3 A budget settlement with a £10 increase in precept for a Band D property in 

2020/21 means we are able to maintain our operational policing capabilities in 

the short term, support the introduction of the extra officers and sustain the 

investment made over the last two years with £4.892m of investment from 

2019/20 maintained across the Force and PCC priorities. We can continue to 

maintain and equip neighbourhood teams, rural crime teams, prevention, 

response policing and our roads policing team and continue to progress our 

essential investments in technology and analytics to support the force in dealing 

with risks and threats to the communities of Derbyshire. We will be able to 

continue to support the £3.209m investment from 2019/20 (of the £4.892m) into 

these priority areas, made up of 58 officers and 62 police staff so our 

communities will continue to see a visible investment in the areas that need 

them. This follows on from our investment of 25 new officers during 2018/19 and 

a further 25 other officers reallocated to areas of increased risk and threat. 

These were primarily in Child Abuse and Exploitation, Domestic Abuse, Sexual 

Violence, Modern Slavery and Cyber Crime. On the back of these two years of 

investment, the Force has significant developments in investigation of rape 

offences, 7 day a week public protection, 24 hour drone capability, increased 

taser capability and enhanced investigation capacity and safeguarding support to 

all children at high risk of all types of exploitation. It will also ensure we can 

deliver the 283 extra officers by 2022/23 as our share of the 20,000 announced 

nationally by the government. 

1.4 Careful financial management over the last few years has also allowed us 

to continue to invest in our people, Information Technology, in particular, 

the National Enabling Programme (NEP) to improve information sharing 

and productivity and the Estate. Investment in other priority areas included 

sustaining our previous investment in 2019/20, but also in year investment 

to reinforce our information management team to meet new legislative 

requirements, new communications approaches including Derbyshire Alert 
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and partnership contributions in making Derbyshire Safer together. These 

priorities and others amount to an extra £0.917m during 2019/20, after the 

precept was agreed.  

1.5      A further £3m of investment into the constabulary was identified as part of 

the 2020/21 budget considerations including support for: 

           - Additional funding for infrastructure to support the increase in officer 

numbers through the additional grant (£1.25m)  

          - Neighbourhood priorities through Operation Relentless, a joint 

community focussed approach using problem solving to deal with the 

top priorities and challenges facing local people (£0.25m); 

          - Further investment into the maintenance and improvement of the 

Constabulary’s buildings (£0.25m); and 

          - £0.63m to support business cases for additional ICT, training and 

health and safety requirements for the constabulary; 

There are also unavoidable costs we have to cover of £5.899m, 

predominantly pay awards and pension contributions. Other changes in 

the year amount to a reduction in the budget requirement of £1.113 which 

are included in Annex A. 

 (Further detail on the cost-pressures and investments the Force will make are 

included in section 5 of this report and also Annex A).  

1.6 In addition to maintaining the investments identified by the Force, the 

Commissioner will invest: 

• £172k to mainstream the contribution to the Mental Health Triage Hub 

based in the Force Control Room (previously funded from reserves); 

• £100k to mainstream the Safe Space provision in Derby City Centre 

(previously funded from reserves); 

• £53k in services including improving rural community access to 

domestic abuse support; 

• £35k to provide and promote online safety work in schools 
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• £30k to continue the work of the East Midlands Chamber of 

Commerce with the Business Crime Reduction Partnership (previously 

funded from reserves) 

• £10k towards a broader £30k partnership initiative aimed at supporting 

female persistent offenders break the cycle; and   

• £4k as a contribution to the road safety charity BRAKE to support them 

in their work with Derbyshire.  

1.7 The extra government funding for officers through the settlement and potential 

for precept flexibility for 2020/21 only are by no means a permanent solution to 

our funding challenges with significant uncertainty over future funding from the 

Government. The underlying budget pressures remain due to the ring-fencing of 

the funding. Indeed, this funding actually restricts the Forces ability to manage 

and fund other pressures. The absence of a multi-year settlement also makes 

planning and resourcing very difficult. The Force is developing its ‘bridging the 

funding gap’ savings programme and is reviewing priorities, vacancies, overtime, 

demand, detective staffing models and back office processes to address the 

anticipated £2.2m deficit in 2021/22 that still remains, even after a £10 increase 

in the precept alongside anticipated government funding. Despite the potential 

for a £10 increase in Precept the Force and the PCC will continue to lobby for 

extra funding as part of the next Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). Had 

we not received the flexibility on the precept in the last two years and without 

flexibility this year, we would be looking at a deficit of nearly £12m by the end of 

2020/21.  This is approximately equivalent to the salary costs of 240 police 

officers. The table below shows the impact on council tax income of a £4.31 or 

2% increase or a £10 (4.62%) increase.  
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High level analysis of 2020/21 precept options 
Precept Band D Precept Generates an 
Increase 2020/21 Increase additional 

(%) (£ per yr.) (£ per yr.) (£ per year) 
  

 
    

1.99% 220.91 4.31 
        
2,575,796  

  
 

    

4.62% 226.60 10.00 
        
4,325,970  

 

1.8 Even with the proposed additional investment from Government, the Force is still 

short of its previous establishment of 3,730 Officers and staff in April 2009 with a 

projected establishment of 3,423.3 at March 2021. However, the need to identify 

further savings remains, particularly with the likely expectation from government 

that officer numbers will be maintained and vacancies minimised. This will be a 

significant challenge to the Force in the future. 

 

1.9 We have maintained a significant contribution to our capital programme for 

2020/21 (£2.95m) in the revenue budget. This is because our reserves are 

diminishing and we face the need to finance our future capital expenditure, 

particularly on our police stations, by borrowing. The additional contribution from 

the revenue budget will help to reduce the amount of borrowing required and will 

be needed now we increasingly have to pay for much of our new IT equipment 

and software through our revenue funding. 
 

1.10 Derbyshire continues to be a safe County and the investment last year into 

priority areas has had an impact. The Force continues to meet the Home Office 

tests to allow it to increase its precept. Reserves are around average for Forces 

nationwide, procurement savings targets set by the Home Office are being met 

and the Force maintains a low cost per head of population when compared with 

other Forces. With the proposed additional investment, particularly into our 

communities, the Force has a great opportunity to continue to make Derbyshire 

Safer. 

 



AGENDA ITEM 10C  
JARAC 

20 FEBRUARY 2020 

Page 16 of 38 
 

2. THE NATIONAL PICTURE  

WHAT’S HAPPENED IN THE PAST? 
2.1 Since the Chancellor announced the results of the Coalition Government’s 

Spending Review in 2010 Government support for local policing budgets was 

reduced, in real-terms, by 34%. Even with annual increases in council tax 

precept, total funding for local police was reduced by 21% up until 2018. 

 

2.2 The 2015 Spending Review claimed overall police spending would be protected 

in real terms between 2015/16 to 2019/20.  The actual funding to police forces 

was only protected to a flat cash level, which is not insulated from inflation or 

changes in the national pay settlement. Even at this level, Police and Crime 

Commissioners (PCCs) have been expected to increase their precept by the 

maximum permissible level. 

 

2.3 The 2019/20 Police Finance Settlement provided an additional £970m of 

additional funding, with £813m for local policing. Precept flexibility was increased 

to up to £24 and an additional £161m of other additional grant funding was 

provided to cover other national priorities and pressures. There were national 

efficiency targets set by the Home Office which were met to allow for the precept 

flexibility. 
 

WHAT’S HAPPENED THIS YEAR? 
2.4 The key headlines for 2020/21, announced on 22 January 2020, are set out 

below: 

• An additional £750m for the recruitment of 6000 towards officers towards 

the 20,000 total less £50m to cover central costs; 

• A requirement for the Home Office to find £120m of savings from within 

the budget in return for the investment in officers. 

• Of the £700m - £532m through un ring-fenced core grant with £168m ring-

fenced for successfully meeting recruitment targets. 

• No other inflationary increases in core grant resulting in a 7.5% increase 

in core funding; 

• £10 precept flexibility for all PCC’s or equivalent; 
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• A £92m (9%) increase in reallocations of funding to the centre in ICT, 

Organised Crime and Counter terrorism priorities. 

• ‘Flat cash’ pension grant allocations compared to 2019/20; 

• A reduction of 74% to capital grant funding to PCC’s to £76m; and  

• The ending of Police Transformation Grant 

 

This funding doesn’t address the legacy issues facing the Constabulary after 

having to pull back on investment in the Estate and Information Technology and 

meet growing demand. These pressures remain in the short and medium term.   

 

WHAT DO THE GOVERNMENT EXPECT IN RETURN? 
2.5 In 2019/20, the Home Affairs Select Committee (HASC) outlined the Policing 

Minister’s 4 priority areas to “drive efficiency, productivity and effectiveness next 

year”: - 

 

1. Continued efficiency savings in 2019-20 through collective procurement and 

shared services. There will be an expectation that every force contributes 

substantially to procurement savings and the Home Office will be working 

with the police to agree the “right force level objectives for 2019-20 and 2020-

21”. 

2. Major progress expected to resolve challenges in investigative resource 

identified by HMICFRS, including recruitment of more detectives to tackle the 

shortfall. 

3. Continue to improve productivity, including smarter use of data to deliver 

£50m of productivity gains in 2019-20. 

4. Maintain a SOC response that spans identification and management of local 

threats as well as support for national priorities. 

 

The Force performed in all these areas with over £0.590m in equivalent 

annualised savings through collaborative procurement and shared services, with 

particular work with the Fire and Rescue Service through shared posts and 

procurement. This was highlighted in the latest Home Office returns. There was 

also national recognition for the approach to smarter working through mobile 
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technology and the excellent approach to serious and organised crime. This 

expectation remains and there will still be with an overall national efficiency 

target of to achieve across the country as part of the settlement conditions. 

 

 There are other specific expectations on the sector, attached to the increase in 

funding: 

• Forces are required to recruit the additional 6,000 officers by the end of 

March 2021;  

• There are further planned £30m savings from procurement in 2020/21. 

Blue Light Commercial is the new body to deliver these savings in a timely 

manner with an expectation that a further £20m of savings will be 

available once established with further savings in back office functions; 

• Continued improvement in digital, data and technology solutions to 

maximise the benefit of mobile working; and 

• A Strategic Change and Investment Board (SCIB) to pursue best values 

from the investment in police technology. 
  

WHAT ELSE DO WE THINK WILL IMPACT ON US? 
Additional Pension Costs  

2.6 The changes to the way in which police pensions are calculated means that the 

police, as well as other “unfunded” schemes, saw sharp increase in costs. As 

part of the 2019/20 settlement, these costs, nationally for the Police, were 

estimated to be approximately £330m (£302m for police officers and a further 

£28m for Metropolitan Police Service Civil Servants).  

 

2.7 In 2019-20 the Treasury provided forces with an additional £142.5m grant in 

addition to the £161m additional funding.  The result is that in some forces the 

combined grants cover the full pension costs, in others there is a relatively small 

remaining figure.  Actual costs will depend on local circumstance netted off with 

the pension grant allocations. In Derbyshire there was a shortfall of £0.4m in 

2019/20. This will grow to £2.6m in 2020/21 as grant will be frozen at 2019/20 

levels.   
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Tax base assumptions 
2.8 The Home Office have updated their tax base assumptions to reflect the latest 

forecasts from the Office for Budget Responsibility of a 1.33% increase in 

England. 

 

Reallocations of funding 
2.9 In 2020/21 the top-slices/reallocations totalled £1.121bn, £92m higher than last 

year.  

2.10 The table below shows the allocations for 2020/21: 

 

Police Funding - National Reallocations 2020/21 
 £m 
PFI (Private Finance Initiative(s)) 72.8 
Police technology programmes 498.4 
Arm’s length bodies 73.1 
Police Uplift programme 16.5 
Top-ups to NCA and ROCUs 56.8 
Strengthening the response to Organised Crime 140 
National Capability Programmes 28.6 
Special Grant 80.9 
Other 153.8 
Total Reallocations and Adjustments 1,121 

 
Council Tax Referendum Principles 

2.11 The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government published the 

draft council tax referendum principles. In 2020/21, it proposed that PCCs will be 

allowed to increase band D bills by only 2%. However, this has been increased 

to £10. 
 

Grant Allocation 
2.12 The settlement confirms that the PCC will receive the following grants in 

2020/21: 

 

 

 

 

 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/764254/Draft_Council_Tax_Referendum_principles_report_2019_to_2020.pdf
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Derbyshire Reallocations 2019/20 2020/21 Variation 
 £m £m £m 

Home Office Police Grant 62.6 70.1 +7.5 

Ex DCLG1 Formula Funding 37.9 37.9 - 

Sub-total 100.5 100.5 - 

Legacy Council Tax Grants 8.7 8.7 - 

Total General Grants 111.1 116.7 +7.5 

 

2.13 In addition to these general grants the PCC will receive a Pension Support Grant 

of £1.9m and, assuming that the officer uplift targets are met, an earmarked 

grant for additional salary costs of £2.4m. He also normally receives funding from 

the Ministry of Justice to fund victim and witness services (£1.212m in 2019/20). 

Under accounting rules, these grants are treated as income within the overall 

budget requirement. 

 

WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD? 
The Spending Review 

2.14 The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) and the National 

Police Chiefs Council (NPCC) continue to work closely with Home Office and 

wider policing partners on any future spending review submissions. It is 

anticipated that multi-year spending reviews will return in 2021/22 which, whilst 

still likely to present funding challenges, this should allow policing to plan more 

effectively. 

 

Funding Formula 
2.15 The police funding formula is widely considered to be unfit for purpose and 

needs replacing. Indeed, the current formula has never been fully implemented. 

Substantial work was undertaken in 2016/17 to bring forward new proposals but 

this work was suspended in May 2017, following the snap general election.  The 

Minister is expected to announce that this work will recommence as part of future 

spending reviews. 

                                            
1 DCHLG – Department for Communities, Housing & Local Government 
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3. IS THE CONSTABULARY DEMONSTRATING PRODUCTIVITY & 
EFFICIENCY AND DELIVERING VALUE FOR MONEY (VFM) 

3.1 In order to meet the Minister’s conditions in relation to productivity and efficiency, 

the APCC, NPCC and Home Office have created a National Commercial Board 

through which to focus efforts to deliver real progress in relation to procurement 

and shared services. Efficiency targets are being developed as part of this and 

regular monthly returns are submitted to inform the efficiency targets set by the 

Treasury to support any further investment or precept flexibility. 

 

Results of VFM Profiles 
3.2 Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 

(HMICFRS) publish value for money dashboards, which provide comparative 

data on a wide range of policing activities from 2011 up to the most recent data 

release. 

 

3.3 Derbyshire is consistently below average net spend per head of population 

against all forces (£170.47 vs. £184.92) and also slightly lower than Most Similar 

Group and the same as the region, as shown in the graph below: 

 

 
Reserve Position 

3.4 Derbyshire’s reserves have been falling faster than the national average over the 

past seven years. Reserves have been used appropriately to support investment 
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and ensure that any precept increases are justified alongside savings plans and 

reserves. The level of reserves is now only around the national average and 

reserves are now being used to meet certain cost pressures rather than holding 

a contingency in the budget. This position isn’t sustainable and the reserves 

projections later on in the report show the challenges in funding future 

investment from reserves and identify the need to develop the budget on a more 

sustainable footing through council tax increases and savings plans, in the 

absence of government funding flexibility. 

 
 
4. WHAT ARE THE CHALLENGES FOR POLICING? 

 
4.1 Chief Constables still have significant challenges as outlined in the letter to the 

PCC in respect of the 2020/21 budget. A reduction in real terms funding of police 

budgets of 21% (range 11% to 29%) up until 2018 came at a time when the 

policing mission had been expanded and demand has grown. 

 

4.2 The public and political expectation that policing should address crimes against 

the most vulnerable, (domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, modern slavery, 

human trafficking, county lines and forced marriage) is resource intensive. 

Victims require safeguarding. Investigations are often complex and partnership 

case management is intense. The ability to create significant efficiencies is 

limited in an area concerned with protecting very vulnerable people. 
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4.3 The threat from terrorism remains high and significant investment in counter 

terrorism policing has been provided to National Counter Terrorism Policing. 

Whilst the funding in some counter terrorism capabilities has grown it is worth 

reflecting that the majority of the police responses to terrorist and indeed local 

emergencies such as the Todbrook Dam in Whaley Bridge come from core 

policing resources. Even uplifts in areas such as armed policing with additional 

funds have required support from host force budgets. 

 

4.4 The demand on policing remains high. This is reflected in additional demand 

through reports and call volumes but it is also apparent in the evidence being 

provided to police. The digital footprint in most investigations requires more time 

to process the work. The force needs to respond to an increasingly digitally 

capable criminal requiring new technology capabilities and organisation and 

serious and organised crime is a threat, more widely regarded as a national 

security issue. 

 

4.5 Finally, the stretch on the police workforce is extensive with a sharp focus now 

on the level of community and neighbourhood resources and the need to reinvest 

back into our communities.  

 
5 WHAT ASSUMPTIONS HAVE WE MADE? WHAT COSTS DO WE NEED TO 

COVER? WHAT INVESTMENT DO WE NEED TO MAKE? 
 
Assumptions 

5.1 The proposals developed for the budget ensure that resources remain committed 

towards priority service areas, the delivery of the strategic objectives contained in 

the Police and Crime Plan and meeting our Strategic Policing Requirement. 

 

5.2 In developing and refining the budget and the forecasts the following underlying 

assumptions have been made:  

• Pay inflation has been allowed for at 2.5% per annum in each of the four 

years to reflect the increase in inflation and removal of the central 

government capping on pay increases. 
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• An increase in council tax precept of £10 per annum in 2020/21 (4.62%), 

reverting to 1.99% for subsequent years in line with assumed referendum 

principles. 

• Council tax billing base to increase by 1.6% in 2020/21 and by 1.5% in each 

of the next three years. 

• Police grants (Main Grant & Pensions Grant) have been assumed to remain 

at the cash levels as notified in the final settlement for 2020/21 with the 

earmarked Officer Uplift grant increasing pro rate over the following two years 

in line with Derbyshire’s current shares of the total 20,000 officers. 

• Maintenance of the Regional and Organised Crime Unit (ROCU) funding  

• There is no assumed taser funding at the moment. 20% of the funding will 

relate to 2020/21 and the remaining 80% in 2021/22. 

• No change in the assumption that the Force will pick up Special Branch costs 

in 2020/21.  

• An assumption that there will be no flexibility in managing the number of 

police officers with a requirement to fill all vacancies (£1.4m in 2020/21) 

• No provision has been made at this stage for the introduction of the new 

National Police Funding Formula due to the unknown impact this will have on 

Derbyshire’s share of the national policing funds. 

• The future investment in technology, whether direct capital purchase or 

revenue service contracts, will need to be funded by revenue given the 

diminishing reserves and the minimal level of annual capital grant. 

 
Inflation 

5.3 This additional cost does not relate to any increase in service but is required just 

to maintain the existing base level of service and pay commitments.  The 

2020/21 budget assumes that all such increases can be contained within existing 

estimates, i.e. they will be offset by procurement / other savings. 

 

Costs We Have to Cover 
5.4 These are items within the budget which are committed to by means of previous 

decisions taken, national agreements or statutory payments.   The main 

significant changes that have occurred in this section for 2020/21 include: 
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Description £m 

Pay Awards 3.008 

Pay increments/ Specific Price Inflation 2.283 

Pension Contributions 0.361 

Other contributions to national IT Services 0.106 

EMSOU2 / Other regional collaboration 0.247 

Total unavoidable costs 6.005 

Other approved or anticipated changes 0.146 

 
Priority Areas  

5.5 These items of growth or sustained investment are required to improve 

performance, meet the Commissioner’s and Constabulary’s priorities and the 

growing demands on the Constabulary.  The list of growth items is considerably 

smaller than previous years, reflecting the financial restrictions. The significant 

areas are identified below: 

Description £m 

Maintaining and sustaining investment  
Full year impact of 2019/20 Precept Changes 0.608 

Police Officers national target establishment 1.365 

Less:  Police Officer turnover (2.366) 
Renewal of Pronto licences 0.255 

Support for Regional Collaboration 0.215 

Other Budget Changes 0.077 

Total  0.154 

                                            
2 EMSOU – East Midlands Serious & Organised Crime Unit 



AGENDA ITEM 10C  
JARAC 

20 FEBRUARY 2020 

Page 26 of 38 
 

  

Description £m 

Other areas of investment to support the front line  
New accommodation – North Division   0.222 

Business Change – increase in posts 0.251 

Communication & Engagement – increase in posts 0.062 

Information Management – increase in posts 0.034 

Other new police staff posts 0.088 

Further support for the officer uplift 1.250 

PCC Commissioning budgets 0.310 

Operation relentless 0.250 

Support of Capital Programme  0.608 

Other investments and business cases 1.000 

Total 4.075 
 

These investments and cost-pressures are also shown in Annex A. 

The Workforce Strength 
5.6 The table below provides a summary of the changes to the funded establishment 

built into the 2020/21 revenue budget including the uplift from the Governments 

proposed grant for extra Police Officers: 
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FTE’s 

 
Police 

Officers 
 

PCSO’S 
Police 
Staff 

Total 
Staff 

Total 

2019/20 Funded Posts – Precept Report  1758  178   1358    1536 3294 

Workforce Modernisations (8)  10.2  2.2 

Business Change Department – approved increases   8.0  8.0 

Comms & Engagement – approved increases   2.0  2.0 

Criminal Justice – temporary posts funded by PCC / 

MHCLG 
  4.6  4.6 

Increase in Regionally-funded posts   5.2  5.2 

Increase in CREST / DBS-funded posts    5.0  5.0 

Review of assets function   10.0  10.0 

Other Police Staff changes  1.0 6.3  7.3 

Police Officers national uplift 85    85 

Projected 2020/21 Funded Posts – Precept Report  1835  179   1409.3    1578.3 3423.3 

 

The 20 extra PCSO’s funded through the contribution from the PCC will be 

recruited in 2020/21 on top of the numbers above. 

 

6.     WHAT IS THE EXPECTED OUTCOME? - 2020/21 DRAFT BUDGET SUMMARY 
6.1 The tables below provide a summary of the 2020/21 draft revenue budget 

showing a high-level split of the overall budget between those elements that the 

PCC is directly responsible for and those under the direction and control of the 

Chief Constable to manage and operate. 

 

6.2 The proposed draft budget for 2020/21 for the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner is summarised in the table below: 
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Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
Approved Budget 

2019/20 (£m) 
Draft Budget 
2020/21 (£m) 

Commissioner’s Office 1.220 1.277 

Crime Prevention Fund  0.275 0.275 

Community Safety Fund  1.366 1.792 

Victim and Witness Services 1.133 1.614 

Sub-Total 3.994 4.958 

Revenue Contributions to Capital 3.092 2.942 

Debt Charges 0.701 0.731 

Interest Receipts (0.160) (0.110) 

Sub-total 7.627 8.521 

Contribution from Reserves -   (0.146) 

Contribution to Reserves 0.024 0.028 

Grant from the Ministry of Justice (estimate) (1.212) (1.212) 

Local Authority Contributions  (0.450) 

Net Budget Requirement  6.439 6.741 

 

6.3 The proposed draft budget for the Chief Constable is set out in the table below:  
 

Chief Constable 
Approved Budget 

2019/20 (£m) 
Draft Budget 2020/21 

(£m) 

Derbyshire Constabulary 160.912 171.084 

East Midlands Collaboration 11.310 11.596 

BCU Fund 0.318 0.318 

Partnerships 0.576 0.579 

Contribution to National Policing 0.215 0.163 

Sub-total 173.331 183.740 

Contributions from Reserves (0.610) (0.602) 

Net Budget Requirement  172.721 183.138 

 
NB. The 2019/20 approved budget has been adjusted to reflect the accounting requirement that Pension Support Grant is 

treated as income. 
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6.4 The budget for the share of specialist policing within Derbyshire that is being 

delivered collaboratively with other police forces within the East Midlands is 

summarised in the table below: - 

East Midlands Collaboration 
Proposed 

Budget 
2019/20 

Draft 
Budget 
2020/21 

 £m £m 

EMSOU Serious and Organised Crime, incl TSU 4.886 4.940 

Major Crime 0.188 0.189 

Forensics 1.875 1.969 

HR Service Centre 0.745 0.802 

Learning and Development / Occupational Health 1.039 1.074 

Legal 0.357 0.397 

Contribution to Regional Teams 0.302 0.307 

Major Crime (budget retained within Derbyshire’s base) 1.911 1.909 

Crimestoppers Regional Manager 0.007 0.009 

Total Collaboration 11.310 11.596 

 
Council Tax base 

6.5 The tax base is calculated by the billing authorities by converting all properties to 

band D equivalents and making assumptions about the levels of discounts to be 

offered and the amount of tax to be collected. Billing authorities are not required 

to finalise their tax bases until the end of January. The total tax base for the PCC 

for 2020/21 is expected to be 321,088.28 and is broken down by authority in 

Annex E. 

 

Band D Council Tax 
6.6 Assuming the Government allow for an increase of £10, the recommended Band 

D council tax proposed for 2020/21 is £226.60, an increase of 4.62% on the 

comparable figure for 2019/20.  
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Precept Increase 

£10 
 

Net Revenue Budget  £189.879m 
Budget Increase (%) 6.2% 
Proposed Council Tax Requirement £72.759m 
Police Council Tax (Band D) £226.60 
Police Council Tax Increase (£) £10.00 
Police Council Tax Increase (%) 4.62% 
Proposed Contribution from reserves £1.296m 

 
MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL FORECAST 2020/24 

6.7 The impact of the budget proposals for 2020/21 and key assumptions for costs and 

income streams over the next 4 years is summarised in the table below.  All 

government funding, including all special grants, are shown as external funding, 

illustrating the full cost and funding of the Derbyshire PCC and Chief Constable. This 

shows a balanced budget for 2020/21, rising to a potential deficit of £7.889m in 

2023/24, based on the some broad assumptions. These forecasts are set out in more 

detail at Annex A.  Given the uncertainties surrounding future funding for the police 

service the projected deficits can only be highly provisional at this stage and 

represent the likely to worse case scenarios, assuming no police grant increase of 

further funding for officers and restrictions through ring fenced grant. It also assumes 

a 2% precept increase in future years and shows the extent of the challenge that 

remains. 

Medium-Term Forecast 2020/24 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £m £m £m £m 

Previous Year’s Gross Expenditure   179.160 189.879 194.642 200.347 

Inflation (including pay awards and 
increments) 5.899 6.037 6.168 6.320 

Other spending pressures/reductions 4.188 (0.954) (1.463) (1.919) 
New Business Cases 0.632 (0.320) 1.000 1.000 
Net Revenue Budget 189.879 194.642 200.347 205.747 

Projected Funding (189.879) (192.447) (195.106) (197.859) 
Likely Annual Budget Base 
(Surplus)/Deficit 0 2.195 5.241 7.888 

Contribution (to) / from 
Reserves/Bridging the Funding Gap 
Programme 

0 (1.153) 0 0 

Likely Remaining (Surplus)/Deficit 0 1.042 5.241 7.888 
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6.8 We continue to model a range of scenarios for the future and the Statement from 

the Chief Finance Officer for the Chief Constable highlights some of the risks that 

need to be managed. The scenarios range from the £9.258m by 2023/24 to 

£1.221 depending primarily on whether the Government announce inflation 

linked increases or keep funding flat, the level of precept flexibility and the 

ambition of the Constabulary. The Savings Strategy included within the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy sets out more details on the planned approach. 

 

 ‘BRIDGING THE FUNDING GAP – THE COST OF POLICING PROGRAMME 
(COP) 

6.9 The Force has developed its programme to ‘Bridge the Funding Gap’ called Cost 

of Policing (COP). This will align our review of demand and risk and also 

determine the cost of demand. This be monitored through the Finance Futures 

Board. The following diagram sets out the themes and regular updates will be 

included in the budget monitoring reports. Much of the focus will be on managing 

the workforce growth and development, linking closely to the Workforce Futures 

Board to achieve the savings targets. The Force will work with the figures 

outlined above in determining the savings targets. 

 

 

 

‘Bridging the Funding Gap’ – The Cost of Policing Programme 
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6.10 It is vital that Derbyshire Police continue to explore opportunities to deliver 

savings to fund future investment as Reserves will only cover any deficit until 

2021/22 based on the current projections, without further savings or funding. 

 

7.      PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 

7.1 The Commissioner conducted a public consultation through both digital (the 

Commissioner’s website) and face-to-face contact (at engagement events). The 

consultation described the Commissioner and Chief Constable’s desire to protect 

policing services in Derbyshire from a budget deficit that, despite the national 

uplift programme, may lead to cuts if not properly addressed. 

 

7.2 The consultation commenced prior to any Government confirmation on a revised 

precept flexibility in 2020/21.  The Commissioner included options ranging from 

0% (a freeze in council tax) up to a £24 increase (i.e. the increase from last 

year). 

 

7.3 The consultation achieved 1,444 responses , 930 online and 514 face-to-face.  

All districts (and the City) were represented in the consultation responses. The 

results showed that 76.9% of respondents supported a precept increase of £10 

or more. 

 

8.      RESERVES AND BALANCES 
 

8.1 There is continuing focus on the amount of reserves held by the police. A report 

was presented to the Policing Minister in October 2018 which showed that total 

revenue reserves at 31st March 2018 amounted to £1.40bn; a reduction of 14% 

on comparable figures twelve months ago. The last available forecasts indicate 

that revenue reserves will fall by a further 47% between now and March 2021 to 

a figure of £747m.  
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8.2 Capital grants and reserves have fallen from £534m in March 2017 to £168m by 

March 2018 and expected to fall still further by March 2021. The  

 
Reserves Position for Derbyshire 

8.3 The budget plans accommodate all the known immediate financial risks facing 

Derbyshire Police.  Nevertheless, risks continue to remain over future finance 

settlements, inflation and the impact of future pay awards, but also the:  
 

• Contributions to Regional Organised Crime Units (ROCU) and East Midlands 

Serious and Organised Crime Unit. 

• Future funding to support recruitment and the associated costs 

• National Police Information and Technology charges 

• Employer Pension rates. 

• Changes to the funding model for the National Police Air Service (NPAS). 

• Forensics (investment in digital technology and supplier pressure). 

• Introduction of the Emergency Services Network (ESN). 

• Impact of Brexit. 
 

8.4 Equally, major and unpredictable new policing operations can also impact heavily 

on the budget.  As it stands, reserves are sufficient to provide a cushion against 

short term risks.  The table below shows the projected level of reserves up to 

2024:  
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  Balances 
at 31/03/19  

 Estimated  
Balances 

at 31/03/20  

  Estimated 
Balances 

at 31/03/21  

  Estimated 
Balances 

at 31/03/22  

  Estimated 
Balances 

at 31/03/23  

   £m   £m   £m   £m   £m  
 GENERAL RESERVES  5.500  5.500  5.500  5.500  5.500  

 EARMARKED RESERVES            

 Useable:-            

Operational Funding and Investment 
Reserve  4.276  2.153  1.653  0.000  0.000  

 Carry-forwards  1.647  1.116  0.982  0.982  0.982  

 PCC Grants & Commissioning  2.147  1.031  0.885  0.885  0.885  

 Sub-Total  8.071  4.300  3.520  1.867  1.867  

 Non-useable:-            

 PFI - Ilkeston  1.063  0.999  0.925  0.842  0.749  

 PFI - Derby  2.782  2.449  2.078  1.672  1.228  

 Insurance  0.070  0.076  0.081  0.081  0.081  

 Sub-Total  3.916  3.524  3.084  2.595  2.058  
 TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES  11.986  7.824  6.604  4.462  3.925  

            
 TOTAL RESERVES  17.486  13.324  12.104  9.962  9.425  
            

 

8.5 Further detail on the level of reserves is set out in Annex D and the Reserves 

Strategy within the Medium Term Financial Strategy show the modelling of the 

impact on reserves of risks and key assumptions. 

 
9.     IS OUR BORROWING AFFORDABLE? 

 
9.1 Whilst the Prudential Code relates to new capital controls, it does impact on the 

revenue budget. Any agree long term borrowing meeting all the Prudential Code 

guidelines will have on-going revenue implications over a long period. Separate 

reports deal with the Capital Programme and also the Prudential Indicators for 

the Constabulary have been prepared. Borrowing assumptions for currently 

approved capital schemes are included in this report. 
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10.      ASSURANCE STATEMENT FROM THE S151 OFFICERS’ CONSIDERATIONS 
 

10.1 When setting the Budget and Capital Programme for the forthcoming year the 

Police & Crime Commissioner must be satisfied that adequate consideration has 

been given to the following: − 

 

• Government policy on police spending, as applied to the Police & Crime 

Commissioner. 

• The CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. 

• The impact on the Council Tax and the threat or risk of exceeding the 

excessiveness principle (previously capping). 

• Whether the proposals represent a balanced budget for the year. 

• The robustness of estimates and the size and adequacy of general and 

specific earmarked reserves. 

• The medium-term implications of the Budget and Capital Programme 

(MTFS). 

 

10.2 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Commissioner’s Chief 

Financial Officer to provide the Commissioner with assurance on the robustness 

of estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations and the adequacy 

of reserves. 

 

10.3 The Act requires that the Commissioner has regard to the report of the Chief 

Finance Officer in making their budget decision. Where this advice is not 

accepted, this needs to be formally recorded in the minutes of an appropriate 

meeting.  

 

ASSURANCE OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE’S CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

10.4 As the Chief Constable’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following 

assurances: - 
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• The main assumptions and estimates, for compiling the budget are set out 

within the report and the figures for the 2020/21 budget have been based on 

these assumptions.  

• The recommendations are consistent with the budget strategy also set out 

within the report and do not impact on the financial stability of the 

Constabulary. There is, however, increased pressure on reserves with the 

operational funding and investment reserve being exhausted in 2021/22 

based on current forecasts and potentially significant savings programme 

targets for future years.  

• Future financial implications up to 2024 have been analysed but can only 

provide an indication of the potential financial position that the Constabulary 

and Commissioner will face. This reflects all known factors that could have an 

impact on these financial plans up to 2023 and we are assuming that funding 

for the increased pensions contributions will continue in the medium-term 

financial forecast which is a risk that we will have to monitor closely. The 

impact of increasing funding through ring fenced grants will also require 

careful monitoring and the development of the Cost of Policing Programme to 

‘Bridge the Funding Gap’ will be required to deliver savings to sustain the 

budget in the short and medium term and will be monitored through the 

Finance Futures Board. 

• The figures within the Medium Term Financial forecasts are based on a 

number of key assumptions and can only provide an indication of the scale of 

the challenge that we face at this time. In particular the figures are heavily 

dependent on future government funding decisions and precept limitations. 

• Medium Term implications –. There are a number of scenarios that the 

Constabulary will need to model with the current MTFP based on the most 

prudent forecast around funding and precept increases. It does, however, 

present a significant challenge, accepting it provides the worst or a likely case 

scenario, based on very limited information at the moment. 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 10C  
JARAC 

20 FEBRUARY 2020 

Page 37 of 38 
 

ASSURANCE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER’S CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER  

 
10.5 As the Commissioner’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following 

assurances: - 

• Government Policy – The MTFS is produced in line with the latest 

government policy as applied to Police & Crime Commissioners. 

• CIPFA Code – the MTFS is produced in line with the Prudential Code and the 

CIPFA Treasury Management Code. Details are outlined in the Treasury 

Management and Capital Programme reports. 

• Council Tax – The Government confirmed that legislation through the 

Localism Act provides communities with the power to veto, through a 

referendum, council tax increases deemed by the government to be 

excessive. The level at which council tax is deemed excessive is decided in 

accordance with a set of principles determined by the Secretary of State for 

Communities.  For 2020/21 the revised Referendum Principle is £10 for 

Police & Crime Commissioners. This report includes an increase in the Police 

element of Council Tax at Band D by £10 and £4.31 (2%).  Increases in 

council tax secure year on year funding, as being a part of the base revenue 

budget. 

• Balanced budget – a balanced budget is presented. 

• Robustness of Estimates – I have reviewed the matters that have been 

considered in drafting the proposed budget and the consequential budget 

requirement, and the required level of the police precept.  I am satisfied that 

the procedures adopted by the Director of Finance and his team are 

sufficiently robust to ensure the financial data is accurate and forms a sound 

basis for the preparation of the estimates for 2020/21. 

• Adequacy of reserves – I consider the level of general reserves (£5.5m) to be 

adequate for meeting estimated future risks.  Specific reserves are reducing 

(rapidly in some cases) but are at appropriate levels to support future 

expenditure in the medium term.  Given the size of the deficit, however, I will 

keep this position under regular review.   

• Medium Term implications – I consider that the MTFP presents a best 

estimate of the future financial pressures that the Commissioner will face.  It 
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should be noted that inherent within the MTFP are key assumptions that (a) 

the pensions grant for 2020/21 continues in future years in flat terms, (b) the 

precept is increased by £10 in 2020/21 and 1.99% thereafter and (c) that 

2.5% pay inflation will apply in the future.  Movement in any of those key 

assumptions would have significant impact on the available resources to 

support policing.  The Director of Finance and I will continue to monitor 

national developments carefully to ensure the Commissioner and Chief 

Constable are sighted on any emerging risks for Derbyshire. 
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Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is to provide 
information to the public and other stakeholders on the Constabulary’s plans 
to manage its finances over the medium term. 
 
Background 
 
The strategy supports affordable, sustainable service delivery through the planned 
use of revenue budgets, capital budgets, reserves and balances. It contains: 
 
 

• Our Reserves Strategy; 
• Our Capital Strategy. 
• Our Council Tax Strategy; 
• Our Treasury Management Strategy; 
• Our Investment Strategy; 
• Our Borrowing Strategy; and 
• Our Savings Strategy;  
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Aims of the Strategy –  
 
‘To secure the financial health and viability of Derbyshire Constabulary in the 
future and develop sustainable financial plans to make Derbyshire Safer 
together’ 
 
Achieved by: 
 
Carefully managed spending to reduce the cost of borrowing, to manage our 
Reserves for the purpose of financial sustainability; 
 
Continuing to manage borrowing and apply revenue and Reserve funding where 
possible to fund the Capital Programme; 
 
Maintaining sufficient Reserves and balances to cover financial risks whilst 
continuing to invest in the Constabulary; 
 
Actively exploring the opportunity for savings through collaborative, targeted and 
intelligence led service delivery; 
 
Establish robust partnership relationships to deliver enhanced services to our 
communities through greater collaboration; 
 
Actively seeking ‘Invest to Save’, Efficiency and Collaborative opportunities;  
 
Ensuring council tax precepts deliver value for money; 
 
Meeting our statutory responsibilities to provide ‘Best Value’ to our communities. 
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OUR RESERVES STRATEGY 

1.  Proposal and Introduction 
 

1.1 The Commissioner holds a number of reserves as part of his approach to 
maintaining a sound financial position and protecting Derbyshire Police to 
some degree from volatility in the risk in the budget going forward.  The 
requirement for financial reserves is linked to legislation such as the Local 
Government Act 1992, which requires the Commissioner to “have regard” to 
the level of reserves needed to meet future expenditure when calculating a 
budget.  Part of sound financial management is to assess the adequacy of 
these reserves and release those reserves no longer required.  
 

1.2 A Review of Reserves is a key part of the Commissioner’s budget setting 
process.  Consideration of reserve levels is linked to legislation for budget 
setting contained in both the Local Government Acts of 1992 (section 31A & 
42A) and 2003 (section 25) and linked to section 114 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988. 
 

1.3 Derbyshire Police is still facing significant financial pressures from general 
inflation, the impact of future pay awards, a need to update and upgrade the 
police estate as well as the continual need to keep pace with technology.  
There continues to be increasing demands on the service from the public and 
ever more focus on protecting the vulnerable and a whole range of “new” 
crimes, such as modern slavery and human trafficking that were never 
envisaged even a few years ago. 
 

1.4 The responsible use of reserves has always played a key role to ensure that 
we are able to manage through the continued uncertainty.  With an apparent 
end to government austerity, the level of uncertainty has reduced but not 
disappeared. We still need reserves to help cushion the impact of sudden 
unforeseen spending pressures. Reserves also play a big part in helping to 
meet the costs of change as we seek to reshape Derbyshire Police so that it 
can meet the new and emerging policing risks that it faces. 
 

1.5 Due to the significant financial risks facing Derbyshire Police in 2020/21 and 
future years, it is essential that reserves provide a sufficient contingency to 
meet this risk and to ensure a robust budget.  Consistent with Medium Term 
Financial Plan, it is recommended to maintain the General balance at a 
minimum of £5.5m.  
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2.  Review of Reserves 2020/21 
 

2.1  The projected reserves position over the next four years is shown below:- 

 

2.2 Each reserve has been assessed for its estimated balance as at 31st March 
2020 and for the estimated additions or withdrawals from the reserve during 
2020/21 and future years. Further detail can be found in the table below and 
at Appendix 1. 

Total Reserves 

 
0.0
2.0
4.0
6.0
8.0

10.0
12.0
14.0
16.0
18.0

31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.0.3.22 31.03.23

Reserves Held on Behalf of
Other Organisations
Pending Future Deficits on PFI
Contracts
Support the Medium Term
Budget
Budgetary Risk

General Reserve

  

  
Balances 

at 
31/03/19  

 
Estimated  
Balances 

at 
31/03/20  

  
Estimated 
Balances 

at 
31/03/21  

  
Estimated 
Balances 

at 
31/03/22  

  
Estimated 
Balances 

at 
31/03/23  

   £m   £m   £m   £m   £m  
 GENERAL RESERVES  5.500  5.500  5.500  5.500  5.500  
 EARMARKED RESERVES            
 Useable:-            
Operational Funding and 
Investment Reserve  4.276  2.153  1.653  0.000  0.000  
 Carry-forwards  1.647  1.116  0.982  0.982  0.982  
 PCC Grants & Commissioning  2.147  1.031  0.885  0.885  0.885  
 Sub-Total  8.071  4.300  3.520  1.867  1.867  
 Non-useable:-            
 PFI - Ilkeston  1.063  0.999  0.925  0.842  0.749  
 PFI - Derby  2.782  2.449  2.078  1.672  1.228  
 Insurance  0.070  0.076  0.081  0.081  0.081  
 Sub-Total  3.916  3.524  3.084  2.595  2.058  
 TOTAL EARMARKED 
RESERVES  11.986  7.824  6.604  4.462  3.925  

            
 TOTAL RESERVES  17.486  13.324  12.104  9.962  9.425  
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2.3 The above table, (based on this review of reserves), shows that the level of 
reserves is expected to decrease by £8m by 2022/23 to £9.4m. The actual 
balance at year end will depend on spend during the year and any year end 
service carry forwards from unspent revenue funds and/or unspent grant 
allocations. 
 
GENERAL RESERVE  
 

2.4 The General reserve will be maintained at an adequate level to: - 
 
• Provide a working balance to cushion the impact of uneven cash flows 

and avoid unnecessary short term borrowing. 
• Provide a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or 

emergencies (risk), for example significant policing activity that cannot be 
contained within existing budgets. 

• Plan for potential major items of expenditure. 
 

2.5 The appropriate level of reserves for this purpose will be determined and 
reviewed annually.  The adequacy of the General Reserve Balance will be 
determined by assessing the financial risks associated with meeting 
continuing obligations to provide services.  The Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has issued guidance about the factors 
which should be taken into account in determining the overall level of 
reserves and balances. These are: - 
 
• Assumptions regarding inflation. 
• Estimates of the level and timing of capital receipts. 
• Treatment of demand-led pressures. 
• Treatment of savings. 
• Risks inherent in any new partnerships and collaborations. 
• Financial standing of Derbyshire Police (i.e. level of borrowing, debt 

outstanding, etc.). 
• Track record in budget management. 
• Capacity to manage in year budget pressures. 
• Virements and year-end procedures in relation to under and over-spends. 
• Adequacy of insurance arrangements. 
• An assessment of external risks. 
• Impact of major unforeseen events. 
• Level of Government support following major unforeseen events. 
 

2.6 The General Reserve Balance will be reviewed and projections on future 
balances will be made at key points during the financial year, namely as part 
of the budget setting process and update of the Medium Term Financial 
Projection. 
 

2.7 In exceptional circumstances, the actual level of the General Reserve 
balance may fall below the level which is considered appropriate.  This is 
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consistent with the need to provide to meet short-term unforeseen 
expenditure.  However, the actual level will be monitored against balances 
outlined in the Medium Term Financial Projection.  The plan will set out the 
level of planned balances, as well as confirming acceptable thresholds above 
or below the balance. If the balance falls outside of the planned tolerance 
levels, a plan will be agreed by Derbyshire Police to restore balances to the 
appropriate level. 

EARMARKED RESERVES - Usable 

2.8 To support the medium term budget - under this heading a number of specific 
issues are addressed: - 
 
• Operational Funding and Investment Reserve - This reserve is to assist with any 

‘funding gap’ in the revenue budget over the medium-term and for investment in 
new/emerging/growing policing risk and threats. As such it provides a buffer so 
that any unexpected changes to the Constabulary’s underlying cost base or 
revenue streams can be responded to in a measured manner.  

• PCC Grants and Commissioning Reserve - This reserve has been set aside for 
crime prevention measures and other emerging priorities over the term of the 
Commissioners’ office. It is currently used to fund the Commissioner’s annual 
grants scheme and from 2019/20 for a period of two years contributing to 
investing in local neighbourhood policing. 

• Devolved Budget Commitments (Carry-forwards) - This reserve represents the 
underspending on devolved budgets which are carried forward to meet 
commitments that have yet to be incurred. The most common example would be 
where an order for goods/services has been raised but delivery takes place after 
31st March. 
 

2.9 Committed to Future Year Capital Programmes includes: - a Contribution to 
Capital is temporary in nature as it is used to hold revenue contributions to 
our capital programme until such a time as they are used to ‘finance’ capital 
expenditure. In reality, this reserve tends to remain at zero as transactions 
occur simultaneously within our financial accounts.  
 

EARMARKED RESERVES – Non Usable (committed) 

2.10 Under this heading a number of specific issues are addressed: - 
 
• Insurance - This reserve is for future insurance liabilities that are not covered by 

the insurance provision. The insurance excess (or ‘self-insured’ element) on 
liability claims is set at £0.100m so the reserve is used for any large claims up to 
the amount covered by insurers. 

• Regional Collaborative Units - This represents Derbyshire’s share of Regional 
Collaborative Units reserves, these are mainly to be used for future capital 
purchases and asset replacement. 

• Pending Future Deficits on PFI Contracts includes: - 
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 PFI Reserve – Ilkeston - This reserve is required to help the Force finance 
its commitments under a long-term PFI arrangement in Ilkeston. The 
Force receives grant related to this PFI arrangement but it does not cover 
all outgoings. The reserve allows the costs related to the PFI arrangement 
to be spread across the contract term rather than having a serious impact 
on the available budget for policing Derbyshire.  

 PFI Reserve – Derby – As above but in respect of the PFI arrangement 
for a major police station in Derby city centre. 
 

2.11 Reserves Held on Behalf of Other Organisations includes: - 

This reserve contains monies held on behalf of the Derbyshire Road Safety 
Partnership (CREST) and contributions from other forces towards meeting the cost of 
the National Asset Recovery Team, as Derbyshire remains the accountable body. 

3.  Guidance on the Management of Reserves 
 

3.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) guidance on 
Reserves and Balances (LAAP bulletin 99 issued July 2014) advises that “Chief 
Finance Officers should take account of the strategic, operational and financial risks 
facing the authority. The assessment of risks should include external risks, such as 
flooding, as well as internal risks, such as the ability to deliver planned efficiency 
savings”. 
 

3.2 The CIFPA guidance lists a number of assumptions to be considered when forming a 
budget, which although these directly link to the setting of a budget, the level of risk 
and uncertainty of these assumptions are be relevant in determining an appropriate 
level of reserves. Assumptions to consider include inflation, demand led pressures, 
delivery of planned savings and risks from new collaborations or ways of working. 
 

3.3 It is important to differentiate between general and uncommitted reserves and 
reserves held for a specific purpose. It is only the general and uncommitted reserves 
that could be used to support “short term costs”. 
 

3.4 CIPFA guidance says “Authorities should be particularly wary about using one off 
reserves to deal with shortfalls in current funding.  Where such action is to be taken, 
this should be made explicit, and an explanation given as how such expenditure will 
be funded in the medium to long term”. 
 

4.  Review of Provisions  
 

4.1 In addition to earmarked and general reserves Derbyshire Police also hold provisions 
to cover the cost of third party claims where there is a clear liability, which is likely to 
result in a payment but the amount and timing of the potential payment is uncertain. 
 

4.2 The provisions above were based on the latest information as to the value of the 
potential liability.  It is expected that provisions will be typically used within the 
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financial year, except where the “time lag” on some claims being notified and settled 
is often over one year. 
 
 
 

5.  General Fund Reserve - Risk Assessment and Sensitivity/Scenario Appraisal 
 

5.1 The estimated General Fund Reserve and Usable Earmarked Reserves of £9m 
represents 4.7% of the Budget Requirement (BR), as at 31st March 2021.  This is 
expected to fall by 31st March 2022 to £7.4m a reduction of £1.6m, or 3% of the BR. 
 

5.2 For the 2020/21 budget the level of General and Earmarked Reserves is now under 
the national average compared to other police forces. 
 

5.3 The CIPFA guidance on reserves does not recommend a minimum level of reserves. 
It states that “Local Authorities should make their own judgments on such matters 
taking into account all the relevant local circumstances which will vary between 
Authorities”. CIPFA also state that “a well-managed authority with a prudent 
approach to budgeting should be able to operate with a relatively low level of 
reserves”. 
 

5.4 A risk assessment of all 2020/21 budgets suggest that the maximum overspend in 
any year, if all services were subject to adverse pressures and where there isn’t any 
specific service related earmarked reserve, would be £8.7m or 4.6% of 2019/20 BR 
(see table below). An estimate should be added to reflect any, as yet unknown, in 
year budget pressures, say £1.9 million.  This would result in a required Total 
Reserves of £10.6 million or 5.6% of BR. The current level of General Fund Reserve 
will cover 52% of this sum.  

Unforeseen / Unpredictable Risk £m 
Pay and Price Increases   
Additional 1% increase   
Police Officer Pay 1.0 
Police Staff Pay 0.5 
Police Staff Pension Contribution 0.5 
Additional 10% increase   
Vehicle Fuel costs 0.1 
Utilities costs 0.1 
Capital Programme Risks   
10% increase in tender costs for 25% of the capital programme 0.5 
Policing Pressures   
Complex Murder Enquiry 1.0 
Medium Range Murder Enquiry 0.5 
Major Policing Operation - eg. public order 0.5 
Loss of Grant Funding   
Impact of loss of:-   
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1% of general grant funding 1.2 
10% of specific grant funding 1.0 
Over-spending   
1% over-spend against budget 1.9 
Total 8.7 

5.5 The overall risk assessment is similar to previous year, as although some of the 
higher value areas of volatility that were identified as a high risk last year have 
continued to cause pressures on the revenue budget. 
 

5.6 The risk remains as despite significant investment further pressures still remain, with 
a need to update and upgrade the rest of the police estate as well as the continual 
need to keep pace with technology.   
 

5.7 Nationally Chief Constables believe the service is financially stretched. A reduction in 
real terms funding of police budgets of 21% (range 11% to 29%) has come at a time 
when the policing mission has been expanded and demand has grown.   
 

5.8 The public and political expectation that policing should address crimes against the 
most vulnerable, (domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, modern slavery, human 
trafficking, county lines, forced marriage and modern slavery) is resource intensive.  
Victims require safeguarding, investigations are often complex and partnership case 
management is intense. The ability to create significant efficiencies is limited in an 
area concerned with protecting very vulnerable people.  
 

5.9 The threat from terrorism has increased and significant investment in counter 
terrorism policing has been provided to National Counter Terrorism Policing. Whilst 
the funding in some counter terrorism capabilities has grown it is worth reflecting that 
the majority of the police response to the London Bridge and Manchester attacks 
came from core policing resources. This is also the case for the Todbrook Reservoir 
emergency. Even uplifts in areas such as armed policing with additional funds have 
required fiscal support from host force budgets. 

 
5.10 The demand on policing is growing. This is reflected in additional demand through 

reports and call volumes but it is also apparent in the evidence being provided to 
police. The digital footprint in most investigations requires more time to process the 
work. 

 
5.11 The service needs to respond to an increasingly digitally capable criminal requiring 

new technology capabilities and organisation. Serious and organised crime is a 
threat becoming more widely regarded as a national security issue. Finally the stretch 
on the police workforce is extensive. A period of pay restraint has seen wages fall in 
real terms. A smaller workforce is increasingly stretched against a growing demand 
with an attendant personal impact on staff. 
 

5.12 A prudent risk based approach to budget setting and reserve levels will have 
mitigated some risks of an overspend, although it should be noted that in areas of 
high risk such as, the police estate, have already declared significant budget 
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pressures over the past few years. It is vital that the improvement plan and medium 
term financial strategy for this service is delivered to reduce the levels of (financial) 
risk around this service. 
 

5.13 The 2020/21 budget plans accommodate all the known immediate financial risks 
facing Derbyshire Police.  Nevertheless risks continue to remain over future finance 
settlements, inflation and the impact of future pay awards, but also: - 

 
• Contributions to Regional Organised Crime Units (ROCU) and East Midlands 

Serious and Organised Crime Unit. 
• Ring fenced and bid based funding for national priorities such as Police Officers 

and Tasers. 
• Employer Pension rates. 
• Changes to the funding model for the National Police Air Service (NPAS). 
• Forensics (investment in digital technology and supplier pressure). 
• Introduction of the Emergency Services Network (ESN). 
• National ICT charges 
• Impact of Brexit. 
 

5.14 It is unlikely that all budgets will be adversely affected in the same year or that there 
will be no underspending arising from savings or additional income. The indicative 
level of balance for the General Fund of £5.5m is in line with the level of risk included 
in the 2019/20 calculation and reflects the need to keep an appropriate level of 
general reserve to manage known challenges, such as the increasing demand for 
service. 
 

5.15 The 2020/21 budget to be presented in January 2020 will also include an assurance 
statement from the Chief Finance Officer about the adequacy of the proposed 
financial reserves, in accordance with the requirements of section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 2003. 

 

6.  Capital Programme 
 

6.1 It is assumed that in the circumstances of a significant overspend within the capital 
programme this will be covered by alterations to the timing of schemes within the 
capital programme; use of internal resources or from external borrowing within the 
approved Prudential Indicators. Any additional borrowing costs would have to be met 
from the Revenue Budget. 

 
6.2 It is assumed that in the circumstances of a significant overspend within the capital 

programme this will be covered by alterations to the timing of schemes within the 
capital programme; use of internal resources or from external borrowing within the 
approved Prudential Indicators. Any additional borrowing costs would have to be met 
from the Revenue Budget. 
 

7.  Comparison with Other Police Forces 
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7.1 The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) holds statistical data on 

the level reserves held by all Police Forces. Analysing the latest reserve data shows 
that Derbyshire’s reserves have been falling faster than the national average over the 
past six years.   
 

8.  Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

8.1 Derbyshire Police is continuing to face financial challenges and reserves are under 
increasing pressure. I am satisfied that the General Reserve and Earmarked 
Reserves are adequate for the Financial Plans for 2020/21 to meet any known or 
predicted liabilities over the period in which the liabilities are expected to become due 
for payment, if the following actions are undertaken: - 
 
• The General Reserve has a minimum balance of £5.5m, equal to 3% of the 

Budget Requirement. 
• Earmarked Reserves (as summarised in table shown at paragraph 2.1) has 

estimated balances at the 2020/21 year-end totalling £11.6m.  

However, it is important Derbyshire Police continue to plan for different scenarios 
and develop plans to deal with them. The current draw on reserves cannot be 
maintained and the Cost of Policing Programme to ‘Bridge the Funding Gap’ will be 
essential in providing financial stability alongside appropriate local funding decisions. 
Reserves are on element of this and further reference is made to this in the Chief 
Finance Officer Statement in the Budget setting report and the wider Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 

 
9.  Governance of Reserves 

 
9.1 Appendix 1 shows the projected balances of the reserves at the end of the current 

financial year and future years. These balances are based upon planned levels of 
spending. In the event of any unplanned expenditure occurring in the financial year 
current Standing Orders and Financial Regulations will apply. 
 

9.2 The Reserves will continue to be reported as part of the regular Finance Monitoring 
Updates, the annual Statement of Accounts and subject to an annual review and 
challenge as part of the budget process. 
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Appendix 1 

 

  Balances at 
31/03/19 

 Movements      
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Transfers 
Between 
Reserves         

 Contributions 
to Capital 

   Balances at 
31/03/20 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions 

to Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/21 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions 

to Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/22 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions 

to Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/23 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
GENERAL RESERVES 5,500,000 -                 -                 5,500,000 -                 -                  5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 

EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:-
Operational Funding and Investment Reserve 4,276,487 (3,123,509) 1,000,000 2,152,978 (500,000) 1,652,978 (1,652,978) 0 0 
Carry-forwards 1,647,489       ( 531,400) 1,116,089       (133,700) 982,389          982,389          982,389          
PCC Grants & Commissioning 2,146,744       (116,000) (1,000,000) 1,030,744       (146,159) 884,585          884,585          884,585          
Total Useable:- 8,070,720 (3,770,909) 0 0 4,299,811 (779,859) 0 3,519,952 (1,652,978) 0 1,866,974 0 0 1,866,974 
Non-useable:-    
PFI - Ilkeston 1,063,054 (63,595) 999,459 (74,465) 924,994 (82,985) 842,009 (92,682) 749,327 
PFI - Derby 2,782,382 (333,443) 2,448,939 (371,188) 2,077,751 (405,762) 1,671,989 (444,405) 1,227,584 
Insurance 70,247            5,438 75,685 5,400 81,085 81,085 81,085 
Total Non-useable:- 3,915,683 (391,600) 0 3,524,083 (440,253) 0 3,083,830 (488,747) 0 2,595,083 (537,087) 0 2,057,996 
TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 11,986,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 7,823,894 (1,220,112) 0 6,603,782 (2,141,725) 0 4,462,057 (537,087) 0 3,924,970 

TOTAL RESERVES 17,486,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 13,323,894 (1,220,112) 0 12,103,782 (2,141,725) 0 9,962,057 (537,087) 0 9,424,970 

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
STATEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES AT 31 MARCH 2019 AND FORECAST LEVELS TO 31 MARCH 2023

2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23



  Annex A for Agenda Item 10c (5b) 

13 
 

OUR CAPITAL STRATEGY 
 

1. Introduction  
 

1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Prudential Code requires local authorities to produce a capital strategy to 
demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in 
line with desired outcomes and take account of stewardship, value for money, 
prudence, sustainability and affordability. 
 

1.2 This Capital Strategy is the policy framework document that sets out the 
principles to be used to guide the allocation of capital investment by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and informs decisions on capital spending 
priorities within his Police and Crime Plan. 
 

1.3 The Capital Strategy has direct links to the other plans such as the Asset 
Management Plan and IT Strategy and forms a key part of the 
Commissioner’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 
 

1.4 Capital investment is technically defined as “Expenditure on the 
acquisition, creation, or enhancement of ‘non-current assets”.  This is 
items of land, property and plant which have a useful life of more than one 
year. A fuller definition is attached at Appendix 1. Expenditure outside this 
definition will be, by definition, revenue expenditure. 
 

1.5 Most non-current assets are properties that are used in the delivery of quality 
policing services. The Commissioner’s land and buildings asset base of some 
35 properties has a current use Balance Sheet value of approx. £25.898 
million.  In addition the Commissioner has an interest in assets held by a Joint 
Venture Limited Liability Partnership with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue 
Service, which operates a Joint Headquarters and a Joint Training 
Centre/Firearms Range. 
 

2.  The Capital Strategy sets out the guiding principles on the following elements:  
 

• The Capital Programme 
• Approach to Borrowing  
• Grants and Contributions  
• Capital Receipts 
• Revenue and Reserves  
• Prioritisation and Approval 

 
 The Capital Programme 

2.1 The Commissioner is responsible for determining the programme for capital 
investment in non-current assets that are central to the delivery of quality police 
services. Capital investment must meet the varying needs of Derbyshire Police, 
reflecting the Commissioner’s priorities set out in his Police and Crime Plan and the 
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Chief Constable’s Delivery Plan, which sets out how the Chief Constable will deliver 
against the commitments in the Police and Crime Plan.  
 

2.2 Annually the Commissioner in conjunction with the Chief Constable will prepare a 
capital programme outlining the estimated capital expenditure and funding over a 
minimum three year period. 

 
2.3 The current key priorities of the Capital Programme include :- 
 

• To ensure the property estate remains fit for purpose, identifying opportunities to 
collaborate with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service, develop the estate 
infrastructure, maintaining core sites and progress the Asset Management Plan.  

• To ensure provision is made for ICT & Business Change Technology to maintain 
and develop the existing infrastructure and invest in the core technologies 
required to provide innovative digital policing services.   

• The maintenance and replacement of other core assets where necessary, e.g. 
vehicles and communication infrastructure.   

 
2.4 The plans acknowledged the constrained financial position of the Constabulary and 

maximise both the available financial resources and the capacity that the 
Constabulary has to manage change projects. 

 
2.5 The basis used for estimating the cost of schemes uses one or more of the following 

estimation techniques: - 
 

• Analogue estimating, using cost data from previous schemes. 
• Parametric estimating, using published data from specific reference sources. 
• Bottom up estimating, using the professional judgement from appropriately 

qualified and experienced members of a project team. 

2.6 In considering the principles, the Commissioner needs a balance between guidance 
and prescription to allow a flexible approach to be taken, but which is reflective of 
times of uncertainty. This Strategy focuses on the key policies for the allocation of 
capital resources to schemes in line with the Commissioner’s priorities and statutory 
responsibilities. 

 
2.7 The management of the Capital Programme is also supported by the Commissioner’s 

Financial Regulations.  
 

 Approach to Borrowing 

2.8 The Commissioner is able to borrow money on the money market or from the Public 
Works Loans Board (PWLB) to fund capital schemes or, on a short term basis, use 
its own internal resources (i.e. cash flow).  However, for all schemes initially funded 
from borrowing, the Commissioner will have to fund the repayment and interest costs 
as there is no central government “supported borrowing” allocations and related 
revenue support. 
 

2.9 The Commissioner is only able to borrow for “unsupported borrowing” (also known as 
Prudential Borrowing) under the guidance contained in the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Prudential Code.  In summary, the 
Commissioner is required to ensure that all borrowing is both prudent and affordable. 
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2.10 The Commissioner is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means 
that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as the cash supporting reserves, balances and cash flow 
has been used to pay for capital expenditure as a temporary measure. This strategy 
is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is still of concern. 
  

2.11 This policy also relies on the availability of internal resources and this will be kept 
under review as more work is done on identifying revenue requirements, in particular 
to address the existing and emerging policing risk and threat as well as funding 
required for new capital schemes. 
 

2.12 The Commissioner takes a prudent approach to new borrowing, paying particular 
regard to the robustness of the business case, to include forward predictions of 
affordability on the revenue budget and its ability to support the capital programme. 

 

Grants and Contributions 

2.13 The Commissioner receives capital grant funding from government and is able to bid 
for grant funding direct to particular government departments or from other grant 
awarding bodies. However this funding is now at levels significantly lower than in the 
last decade. 
 

2.14 The Commissioner continues to bid for additional external grant funding but restricts 
schemes to those which support his priorities or statutory service objectives and 
where it can be proved that the scheme is sustainable, and where requirements for 
match-funding and future revenue consequences have been considered and 
approved.   

 

Capital Receipts  

2.15 The Commissioner receives capital receipts from asset disposals.  The 
Commissioner will aim to maximise its capital receipts, where possible, by enhancing 
the land prior to disposal; e.g. by obtaining planning permission or providing a 
development plan.  As appropriate the Commissioner may dispose of assets by 
tender or by public auction.  

 

Revenue and Reserves  

2.16 The Commissioner is able to use revenue funding and reserves for capital schemes.  
However, as a result of competing revenue budget pressures and the continued 
uncertainty of central government funding, the Commissioner has to balance the use 
revenue contributions or reserve funds to directly fund capital schemes alongside the 
other operational and organisational needs of Derbyshire Police.  
 

Prioritisation and Approval  

2.17 It is always difficult to make choices between competing priorities within a service 
that has ever increasing demands from the public and the type of crime is also 
changing significantly, with ever more focus on protecting the vulnerable and a whole 
range of “new” crimes, such as modern slavery and human trafficking that were 
never envisaged even a few years ago. 
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2.18 The key stages in the Commissioner’s prioritisation and approval process are as 

follows: -  
 
• If a specific scheme is requested to be approved/funded there will be a 

requirement for a detailed business case or scheme outline. Business cases are 
to be submitted to the Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner for review in 
consultation with the Chief Constable. 

• The Capital Programme will be updated and any recommendations for schemes 
to be approved by the Commissioner included in the next Finance Briefing. 
 

Monitoring and Performance  

2.19 Monthly capital monitoring reports outlining progress against the approved 
programme will be prepared for the Commissioner.  
 

2.20 The overall responsibility for the management and monitoring of the capital 
programme is undertaken by the Constabulary’s Change Board.  The Change 
Board’s terms of reference also includes monitoring strategic and critical risk 
resulting from schemes, prioritising schemes and resources needed to deliver 
schemes, reporting on the benefits of schemes and capturing organisational learning 
through delivery of schemes. 

 
2.21 A Strategic Estates Board has been established to look at how the Constabulary 

prioritise its Property investment and maintenance programme with a series of 
criteria around operational need and benefits. The Constabulary are looking at how 
its develops this further across other areas with a focus on: 
 

• Further enhancement of business cases to include the full impact of 
proposals; 

• The sustainability of proposals, in particular, the benefits realised through 
decisions and the ‘cost of change’; and 

• The cost effectiveness of the capital projects and how project managers 
demonstrate that. 

 
2.22 A report detailing the Prudential Indicators will be prepared on a half yearly basis to 

comply with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance. Prudential Indicators not only 
help assess affordability, but also set performance measures. 
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Appendix 1 – Definition of Capital Expenditure  

Capital investment is simply described as: - 

This definition of capital expenditure that the Commissioner has to comply with for the 
classification and, therefore, the funding of capital expenditure in linked to International 
Financial Reporting Standards. “Qualifying Capital Expenditure” under s25 of Local 
Government Act 2003 is defined when:  

“The expenditure results in the acquisition, construction or enhancement of fixed assets 
(tangible and intangible) in accordance with “proper practices””  

“Proper Practice” (from 1 April 2010) is under International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) rules. The relevant standard is IAS16 which has the following definition of capital 
expenditure: - 

“Expenses that are directly attributable to bringing an asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management”.  

“Directly attributable” means that, for examples, if building a police station, it is the costs 
linked to the actual construction of the building, not temporary accommodation, moving 
people around etc.  

Subsequent Capital Expenditure on an asset is defined as: - 

“Expenses that make it probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Commissioner 
and whose cost can be measured reliably” subject to “if the expenditure is to replace a 
component, the old component must be written out of the balance sheet”.  

Future economic benefits means that it is not necessary for the expenditure to improve the 
condition of the asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The 
measurement is against the actual standard of performance at the date of expenditure; e.g. if 
service potential or asset life is increased. 
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OUR COUNCIL TAX STRATEGY 

 
Background 
 
Council Tax is subject to significant central control, much of which is enshrined in primary 
legislation.  
 
In recent years, the Government has given greater flexibility to the Constabulary to increase 
Council Tax with limits raised to £12, £24 and £10 over the last 3 years. However, this has 
come with an expectation that Policing will continue to deliver savings and efficiencies in 
return. The PCC is mindful of the increasing burden on the taxpayer through Council Tax 
increases and whilst taking advantage of this flexibility over the last three years has clearly 
demonstrated the value of the investment to the community through increases in front line 
resources to address risk, threat but also community concerns. 
 
The PCC has looked to limit council tax increases where possible but has also to consider its 
financial resilience in light of projected budget deficits, pay and price inflation, rising 
employer pension contributions, and other budget pressures. Band D Council Tax for 
2020/2021 is set at £226.60. Following years of public sector austerity, the Authority 
considers precepting options as a measure to minimise future budget deficits, deliver 
investment and to assure itself that the future resilience of Derbyshire communities is not 
compromised. Precepting options will continue to be considered alongside the level of 
available reserves.  

 
 

Council Tax per Banding 

BAND 2019/20 2020/21 

  £ £ 

A 144.40 151.07 

B 168.47 176.24 

C 192.53 201.42 

D 216.60 226.60 

E 264.73 276.96 

F 312.87 327.31 

G 361.00 377.67 

H 433.20 453.20 
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OUR TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
The overall objectives of our Treasury Management Strategy are as follows: 
 

• To ensure sufficient funding is available for day to day activities and capital projects 
through the effective management of cash flow; 

• To seek to reduce the financial impact on the revenue account of net interest costs 
through optimal levels of borrowing and investment levels; 

• To ensure the security of investments and liquidity of funds. To maximise income 
from the Constabulary’s investments after ensuring these two considerations are 
met. 

 
Background 
 
A detailed Treasury Management Strategy is approved annually.  The current strategy was 
approved on 7 February. 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary have a statutory responsibility to safeguard prudence and 
sustainability of its capital investment. The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and 
supporting regulation requires the Authority to ‘have regard to the CIPFA Prudential Code 
and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code to set Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the 
next three years’. 
 
It is a statutory duty under Section 3 of the Act and supporting regulations, for the 
Constabulary to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow, referred 
to as the ‘Affordable Borrowing Limit’.  
 
The Constabulary must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised 
Limit, which requires that total capital investment remains within sustainable limits and has 
an acceptable impact upon future council tax levels. 
 
Approach 
 
Our Borrowing and Investment Strategies are included as part of the annual report to the 
PCC. 
 
In contemplation of its Treasury Management Strategy, the Authority gives due consideration 
to the following: 
 

• Prudential and Treasury Indicators; 
• Treasury limits in force and Treasury ‘risk’; 
• Borrowing requirements; 
• Interest rate prospects; 
• The security of capital; and  
• The liquidity of investments. 
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OUR SAVINGS STRATEGY 
Background 
 
Savings are required to bridge the gap between spending pressures and reductions in 
government funding.  The Constabulary is facing continued and increasing pressure to: 
 

• Find even more savings to balance the budget over the medium term; 
• Achieve and maintain financial stability over the medium and longer term; 
• Deliver agreed priorities and objectives, including meeting changing statutory and 

legislative duties;  
• Deliver value for money for local people and taxpayers, through working together 

with our partners.  
 

The Constabulary has a strong track record of delivering savings. However, had we not 
received the flexibility on the precept in the last two years and without flexibility this year, we 
would be looking at a deficit of nearly £12m by the end of 2020/21. This is approximately 
equivalent to the salary costs of 240 police officers.  The Constabulary also provides value 
for money when compared to other similar Forces: 

 

The Constabulary are showing a balanced budget for 2020/21, rising to a potential deficit 

of £7.889m in 2023/24, based on the some broad assumptions. Given the uncertainties 

surrounding future funding for the police service the projected deficits can only be highly 

provisional at this stage and represent the likely to worse case scenarios, assuming no 

police grant increase of further funding for officers and restrictions through ring fenced 

grant. It also assumes a 2% precept increase in future years and shows the extent of the 

challenge that remains. 
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Medium-Term Forecast 2020/24 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £m £m £m £m 

Previous Year’s Gross Expenditure   179.160 189.879 194.642 200.347 

Inflation (including pay awards and 
increments) 5.899 6.037 6.168 6.320 

Other spending pressures/reductions 4.188 (0.954) (1.463) (1.919) 

New Business Cases 0.632 (0.320) 1.000 1.000 
Net Revenue Budget 189.879 194.642 200.347 205.747 

Projected Funding (189.879) (192.447) (195.106) (197.859) 
Likely Annual Budget Base 
(Surplus)/Deficit 0 2.195 5.241 7.888 

Contribution (to) / from 
Reserves/Savings Programme 0 (1.153) 0 0 

Likely Remaining (Surplus)/Deficit to 
be met from savings programme 0 1.042 5.241 7.888 

 
We continue to model a range of scenarios for the future. The scenarios range from the 

£9.258m by 2023/24 to £1.221m depending primarily on whether the Government announce 

inflation linked increases or keep funding flat, the level of precept flexibility and the ambition 

of the Constabulary. 

 
Approach 
 

The Constabulary has developed its programme to ‘Bridge the Funding Gap’ called Cost of 

Policing (COP). This will align our review of demand and risk and also determine the cost of 

demand. This be monitored through the Finance Futures Board. The following diagram sets 

out the themes and regular updates will be included in the budget monitoring reports. Much 

of the focus will be on managing the workforce growth and development, linking closely to 

the Workforce Futures Board to achieve the savings targets. The Constabulary will work with 

the figures outlined above in determining the savings targets.
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 ‘Bridging the Funding Gap’ – The Cost of Policing Programme 



Appendix A

Ref 2020/21 
£'000

Reprofile 
from 

previous/fu
ture year

Business 
Cases/ 

Changes

2020/21 
£'000

2021/22 
£'000

Reprofile 
from 

previous 
year

Business 
Cases/ 

Changes

2021/22 
£'000

2022/23 
£'000

Reprofile 
from 

previous 
year

Business 
Cases/ 

Changes

2022/23 
£'000

2023/24 
£'000

Reprofile 
from 

previous 
year

Business 
Cases/ 

Changes

2023/24 
£'000

EXPENDITURE

Building Works
Co-Locations schemes with DFRS 500        500         500        500         500        500         500        500         
Business Continuity - Security Issues & UPS 120        120         120        120         120        120         120        120         
Derby East LPU Accommodation 6,420     6,420      -          -          -          
North East Division Accommodation 4,500     4,500      3,500       3,500      -          -          
Other New Build/Refurbishment/Replacement Projects 1,592     1062 250           2,904      605        -352 253         605        -355 250         605        -355 250         

Total Building Works 13,132   1,062 250 14,444    1,225     -352 3,500 4,373      1,225     -355 0 870         1,225     -355 0 870         

Vehicles & Equipment
General Vehicle & Chief Officer Vehicle Replacement Programmes 1,194     1,194      1,194     1,194      1,194     1,194      1,194     1,194      
Equipment 160        160         160        160         160        160         160        160         
Body Armour Replacement 350        350         300        300         -          -          

Total Vehicles & Equipment 1,704     0 0 1,704      1,654     0 0 1,654      1,354     0 0 1,354      1,354     0 0 1,354      

IS Schemes
IS Replacement Projects 1,120     1,120      1,090     1,090      1,170     1,170      1,170     1,170      
IS Infrastructure Projects 300        300         330        330         900        900         900        900         
IS Customer Projects 600        600         1,000     1,000      350        350         350        350         
Emergency Services Network EMSCP) 2,000     1,300-          700         1,300       1,300      -          -          

Total IS Schemes 4,020     -1,300 0 2,720      2,420     1,300 0 3,720      2,420     0 0 2,420      2,420     0 0 2,420      

East Midlands Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit (EMCTIU) 175        0 175         175        0 0 175         175        0 0 175         175        0 175         

TOTAL PLANNED EXPENDITURE 19,031   (238) 250 19,043    5,474     948 3,500 9,922      5,174     (355) 0 4,819      5,174     (355) 0 4,819      

FUNDING
Capital Grant 637        (400) 237         637        (400) 237         637        (400) 237         637        (400) 237         
Other Grant & Contributions 175 175         175        175         175        175         175        175         
Use of Reserves -         -          -         -          -         -          -         -          
Borrowing 14,740   24               325 15,089    1,245     948           3,375       5,568      1,270     -617 412 1,065      1,270     -355 400 1,315      
Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay 2,692     250 2,942      3,092     3,092      3,092     3,092      3,092     3,092      
Sale of Land & Buildings 787        262-             75 600         325        525 850         -         262 -12 250         -         -          

TOTAL FUNDING 19,031 (238) 250 19,043 5,474 948 3,500 9,922 5,174 (355) 0 4,819 5,174 (355) 0 4,819

EXPENDITURE COMPARED TO FUNDING 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2023/24
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Annex C to Report 10C

2019/20 
Approved             

£m

2020/21 
Proposed     

£m
Police Officers 94.114 100.123
Community Support Officers 5.186 5.559
Other Police Staff 37.794 41.524
Police Pensions 2.912 3.047
Other Employee Expenses 0.834 0.792
Premises 9.212 9.761
Transport 3.760 3.667
Supplies & Services 14.629 16.773
Agency & Contracted Services 0.172 0.212
Pay & Price Contingency 0.000 0.000
Specific Grants ( 2.759) ( 6.994)
General Income ( 3.087) ( 3.380)
Derbyshire Constabulary 162.767 171.084  

Contribution to East Midlands Collaboration 11.310 11.596
BCU Funding 0.318 0.318
Partnerships 0.576 0.579
Contribution to National Policing 0.215 0.163

PROPOSED GROSS SPENDING 175.186 183.740

Contribution from reserves
   - PFI ( .425) ( .468)
   - Devolved Carry-Forwards ( .185) ( .134)
   - Other Reserves -                 

( .610) ( .602)

PROPOSED NET SPENDING 174.576 183.138

2020/21 PROPOSED BUDGET 
Services Commissioned via the Chief Constable
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Office of the PCC  - 2020/21 Budget (detail)
Annex B to Report 10c JARAC

Account Account(T)
2019/20 

Base Budget
Full Year 
Inflation Increments

Other 
Changes

2020/21 
PROPOSED 

BUDGET
1100 Police Staff Pay 734,100 20,600 10,300 4,000 769,000
1120 Police Staff Overtime - Plain Time 1,100 1,100
1140 Police Staff National Insurance 79,300 2,200 1,100 (1,100) 81,500
1160 Police Staff Superannuation 94,700 9,900 1,200 (5,600) 100,200
1501 Training Courses 5,000 5,000
1600 NHS Re-Imbursement 0 0
1602 Recruitment Advertising 1,000 1,000
1603 Interview Expenses 500 500
2210 Hire of Rooms 1,200 1,200
3200 Police Vehicle Fuel 400 400
3300 Hire of Vehicles 1,200 1,200
3400 Other Mileage (PSV) 11,000 11,000
3403 RaIl Travel 8,000 8,000
3408 Car Parking, Taxis, etc 1,000 1,000
4000 Equipment - General 3,000 3,000
4040 Furniture 2,500 2,500
4100 Accomodation / Hotel Expenses 1,800 1,800
4101 Subsistence Expenses 400 400
4291 Meals / Refreshments 1,700 1,700
4400 Printing and Stationery - General 5,000 5,000
4401 Publications 500 500
4505 Financial Contracts 48,000 48,000
4520 Professional Fees 22,400 22,400
4543 Professional Fees - Legal 17,600 17,600
4575 Media Relations 46,500 46,500
4630 Hardware - Purchase 0 0
4635 Software Purchase 17,500 17,500
4740 JARAC Attendance 7,000 7,000
4741 JARAC Mileage 1,000 1,000
4805 Non-Recruitment Advertising 4,900 4,900
4807 Conference Expenses 2,500 2,500
4888 Bank Charges 7,000 14,800 21,800
4890 Misc Expenditure 25,000 25,000
4895 Subscriptions General 67,000 67,000
Office of the PCC - Total Budget 1,219,800 32,700 12,600 12,100 1,277,200
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2020/21 PRECEPT PROPOSAL:  A £10 COUNCIL TAX INCREASE ON BAND D PROPERTIES

Band D Council Tax 
Base

Total    
Funding Collection Fund Council Tax

£226.60 Surplus Deficit

321,088.28     73,153,026     612,078      217,656-     72,758,604     

Amber Valley                                           
Borough Council  39,909.63       9,136,982       93,460        9,043,522       

Bolsover                                                   
District Council 22,169.60       4,949,847       73,784-       5,023,631       

Chesterfield                                                 
Borough Council  29,181.08       6,725,910       113,477      6,612,433       

Derby                                                          
City Council  69,592.06       15,625,689     143,872-     15,769,561     

Derbyshire Dales                                     
District Council  29,828.68       6,843,082       83,903        6,759,179       

Erewash                                                   
Borough Council 33,699.90       7,725,090       88,693        7,636,397       

High Peak                                           
Borough Council 30,970.00       7,092,822       75,020        7,017,802       

North East Derbyshire                         
District Council 31,263.33       7,145,796       61,525        7,084,271       

South Derbyshire                                    
District Council  34,474.00       7,907,808       96,000        7,811,808       

2019/20 Approved 178,061,975   BAND 2019/20 2020/21
2020/21 Proposed 189,878,603   £ £
Increase in GRE 6.64% A 144.40 151.07

B 168.47 176.24
C 192.53 201.42
D 216.60 226.60
E 264.73 276.96
F 312.87 327.31

2019/20 Approved 68,432,634     G 361.00 377.67
2020/21 Proposed 72,758,604     H 433.20 453.20
Increase in CTR 6.32%

Gross Revenue Expenditure Council Tax per Banding

Council Tax Requirement
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TITLE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/24  

REPORT BY JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE AND 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

DATE 7 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To set out the capital programme for Derbyshire Constabulary for 2020/21 to 2023/24.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Appendix A. Capital Programme for 2020/21 to 2023/24 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1. To approve the Capital Programme for 2020/21 to 2023/24 and associated funding 

as set out in Appendix A. 

 

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name:  Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
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1 INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

Background 
1.1 During the recent period of austerity the Government has cut resources for 

capital projects.  This has meant that Derbyshire Constabulary has increasingly 
relied on using reserves and limited capital receipts to fund an increasing share 
of its capital projects. 

1.2 Each year Derbyshire Constabulary has a number of core capital spending 
requirements in order to replace and maintain its assets and therefore 
maintaining its capabilities: -  

 

  £’m 

To maintain buildings  0.370 

To replace police vehicles  1.194 

To replace key items of equipment  0.160 

To ensure its IT systems are supported  1.420 

Total Replacements   3.144 
 
1.3 These ongoing capital needs amount to some £3.1m annually, while the 

government Capital Grant is currently only £0.237m. This represents a shortfall 
of £2.9m even before the Constabulary considers investment in major new 
projects to improve performance or make it more efficient. In addition to the 
above, in some years there are major replacements of equipment e.g. body 
armour, mobile devices, body worn video which further increases the shortfall.   

1.4 In addition to the ongoing capital commitments, there are several major projects 
which are either currently underway or which need to be progressed over the 
next four-year period.  These are as follows: - 
 
• Co-Location schemes with DFRS £2.000m in total is included in the 

Programme over four years to continue the programme of sharing premises 
with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 

• Derby East LPU Accommodation.  Cotton Lane police station is an ageing 
building with increasing ‘fit-for-purpose’ issues.   £9.5m has been included to 
enable the re-location to premises more suited to modern policing needs 
(£3.08m of the £9.5m is included in previous years Capital Programmes, 
£6.42m is included in 2020/21). The land for this project was purchased in 
December 2019, the scheme started in February 2020.  

 
• North East Division Accommodation.   The force’s new model of policing 

has brought forward the requirement for a ‘hub’ in the north of the county.  An 
initial cost estimate of £6m has been identified and provision had been 
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included in the capital programme (£1.5m of this is included in the 2019/20 
capital programme but this is likely to be carried forward to 2020/21), an 
additional £3.5m is required in 2021/22 to bring in line to the provision for 
Derby East Hub. 

 
• Emergency Services Network (ESN) implementation. This is a multi-billion 

pound national project involving all three emergency services.  Following 
implementation, transmission of the force’s critical voice traffic will move from 
the dedicated Airwave network, to a commercial mobile network. The plan is 
this will allow the service to benefit from the considerable improvements in 
communications technology that have emerged since the Airwave PFI 
contract started, at a substantially reduced running cost.  
     
The investment required to integrate the Police Service into the new network 
will be shared between the Home Office and individual forces.  Provision of 
£2.845m was included in the Capital Programme spread over 2017/22. To 
offset these costs Home Office grant of £0.875m was received in January 
2017. This gives a net estimated cost of £1.970m. Monies have already been 
spent on making control-rooms ESN-compatible and on project management. 
The timing of the spend and realisation of the savings is reliant on the Home 
Office project delivering to time and quality with little input from ourselves. 
The purchase of the devices have been delayed until 2020/22, monies may 
also be required for additional airwave terminals due to the delay in the 
project. Information on timescales and costs is expected in February 2020. 
Costs are likely to exceed the current provision in the Capital Programme. 
The impact of a delay will increase future year running costs in the Airwave 
system until completed.  

 
1.5 The overall Capital Programme for 2020/24, incorporating the above projects, is 

set out at Appendix A. In addition to the above, provision is included in the 
Capital Programme for the Contact Management and Resilience Centre 
(CMARC) project, replacing Locker storage at Wyatts Way and replacement of 
body armour.  An additional £0.250m has been included in 2020/21 for critical 
estates works. 
 
Future Schemes – Estates 
 

1.6 A list of priorities were agreed by the Strategic Estates Board in December 2018, 
which included the PCC’s and the Chief Constable Office. Some of these 
priorities have been completed or have been included in the Capital Programme. 
Other schemes may be added to the capital programme as and when a business 
case has been evaluated and approved such as a hub in the North West. 
Condition surveys have been carried out, these need to be assessed and 
additional provision may be required in future years. 
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IS Schemes  

1.7 As well as the ESN referred to at paragraph 1.4, provision is included for the 
following:- 
 
• IS Replacement Projects The force has a replacement programme for 

servers, communications equipment, hardware, network equipment and 
ANPR replacement.  
 

• IS Infrastructure  This is for schemes that cover the core infrastructure. 
  

• IS Customer Projects This tends to be for one-off, standalone projects but is 
again reviewed to ensure benefits are robust and in keeping with the risks of 
the organisation. A review of the Command and Control system is included in 
2021/22.  

 
Other Schemes 

1.8 A general provision of £0.160m is included for Capital Equipment. This will be 
used for any one off/replacement of equipment. In 2020/21 this will be partly 
used for a replacement Kiosk solution for Specialist Crime and Intelligence. 
 
Funding 

1.9 As referred to at paragraph 1.3, post-austerity the level of ongoing Capital grant 
which the force receives is inadequate to meet even a basic asset replacement 
programme. In 2009/10 the capital grant allocation was just over £2m, in 
2019/20 this was £0.637m and in 2020/21 it has been reduced by a further 
£0.400m to £0.237m. This represents a reduction of 88% in support compared to 
the immediate pre-austerity period and it is prudent to assume this will not 
increase in the future. 

1.10 Consequently a number of steps have been taken to address this situation, in 
particular: 

• The inclusion of a permanent contribution to capital expenditure within the 
revenue budget.  This is approximately £3m per annum. 

• The identification of opportunities to supplement ongoing funding with 
specific capital grants, capital receipts and additional revenue 
contributions. 

1.11 No schemes have been identified to come from Reserves in the current Four 
Year Capital Programme. Reserves have previously be used for major projects 
such as the Joint Police and Fire HQ, the Joint Training Centre/Firearms Range 
and the refurbishment of the former heli-hangar and vehicle compound.   

1.12 The balance of funding is to be met from borrowing. This is summarised in the 
table below. 
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 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 

Borrowing 
Requirement 15.089  5.568    1.065  1.315 23.037 

 
1.13 In addition to the above, it is planned to borrow £6.700m in 2019/20. The Capital 

current Programme doesn’t include some of the priorities which have been 
agreed by the Strategic Estates board in December 2018 and additional 
borrowing would have to be taken out if these projects go ahead. 

1.14 The overall level of borrowing may fluctuate depending on the timing of capital 
projects and any capital receipts that are generated during the next four years.  
 

Summary and Conclusion 
1.15 The key aim has been to plan for significant high-priority investment within the 

capital programme but with due consideration of its affordability.  On that basis 
the programme has:- 

 
• Removed the reliance of the programme on capital receipts  – given the 

current state of the economy and the amount of surplus building land in the 
area, there is an increasing risk that the disposal of land may take a number 
of years 
 

• Prudential Borrowing of £29.737m (including 2019/20 borrowing) is deemed 
to be affordable (see Prudential Indicators, Minimum Revenue Provision, 
Treasury Management and Investment Strategy report presented to this 
meeting) 

1.16 At this stage a realistic view has also been taken around the phasing of capital 
projects.  While some schemes may progress quicker than expected other 
schemes may take longer to progress  

1.17 The Capital Programme will be monitored at regular intervals to ensure that 
capital resources are being used effectively to deliver schemes within the 
programme. 

1.18 The programme will also be kept under regular review - in particular to take 
account of requirements that emerge as initiatives to address the risks facing the 
public are monitored. 
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JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE 
COMMITTEE  

 
 

REPORT 
TITLE JARAC SELF ASSESSMENT 

REPORT BY SUE SUNDERLAND  
DATE 20 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

The JARAC Self-Assessment along with members’ responses to the self-assessment 

questions is attached for discussion.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

JARAC Self-Assessment Good Practice 

JARAC Self-Assessment Notes 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
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JARAC Self assessment – notes re questions  
Includes a response for each question marked as partly or no 

Question 4 – point raised in discussion around CC’s response to concerns raised by JARAC in 
past around Data Quality (CC had a fairly dismissive view of the importance of data quality). 
Response only changed following concerns raised by HMIC review. 
 
Question 6 -  There is no formal arrangement to hold the committee to account however we 
produce an annual report. We get limited feedback from PCC & CC although they confirmed 
our usefulness at recent meeting with Chair & Deputy Chair. Consider use of a stakeholder 
questionnaire in future? 
 
Question 7 – scope of work through terms of reference have expanded to cover each of the 
areas listed and now specifically cover fraud and corruption which was a gap in the past. The 
role in relation to value for money is relatively limited and focuses mainly on seeking 
assurance from the external auditors and HMIC around this. 
 
Question 9 – we have not formally considered this but our role is expanding – for example 
our new role in providing some assurance to the PCC & CC around the budget setting and 
monitoring process. 
 
Question 10 – previously answered as a no because of the past issues around our lack of 
coverage of fraud and corruption – now answered as yes – whilst we might still not have the 
coverage in this area completely right we have a plan to improve our coverage and will 
assess how effective we believe the coverage to be later in the year.  
I feel that assurance on some of the partnerships/collaborations is difficult to obtain to complete 
satisfaction but I’m not sure there is a plan in place to make this more robust? [LG] 
 
Question 12  - opportunity taken to increase the size of the committee to 6 when 
recruitment for a replacement identified two strong candidates with complimentary skills. 
 
Question 15 – this was previously marked as partly but with the increased focus around 
development as a routine part of the agenda I feel this is now addressed – do you agree? 
Current Finance related briefings are good. Could we have a programme of deep dives into other 
areas, you will recall that at the recent induction session we were very interested in what the CC had 
to say about the programmes to change the culture of the force and the technology programme and 
these were agreed as potential development sessions for JARAC. 
Yes, I feel my induction has been well planned and thorough. The recent walk-through of 
the budget and financial performance to the JARAC, together with the future planning 
dates that have been added in December, all support the committee and help broaden 
our understanding. Introductions to new people at meetings have been unprompted and 
most helpful. [LG] 
 
Question 17 - I would question External Audit in view of our discussions at the last meeting. I think 
this working relationship is very fragile.  
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Question 18 – Yes, all documentation is received in good timing and has proven to be accurate and 
up to date [LG]. 
 
Question 19 – see comments under Question 6  
 
Question 20 – I would like to see us reduce the time we spend interrogating IA & EA in the 
pre meets and move to a more normal once a year private session with them. 
 
Question 21 – better attendance from relevant officers and appreciate attendance and 
input of Deputy CC & Deputy PCC but scope for this to improve further. 
Agree that this could be stronger. The planning seminar in December is a good start, not sure how 
often the Police Risk committee meets but would be helpful if we all got the opportunity to attend, 
also to other governance meetings. 
 
Question 22 – mainly done through the review and challenge of IA/EA recommendations 
(where we have pushed for better management responses) and follow up around 
implementation. We have seen improvements around implementation but there is further 
to go and there is also further to go in improving management responses to 
recommendations. 
How do we assess the effectiveness of the various bodies in the governance framework? Do they all 
carry out an annual effectiveness review which we could then see? 
 
Question 23 – in part this assessment is an evaluation – anything else we could do? Also 
links to responses to Questions 6 and 19. 
Suggest Survey monkey to key stakeholders 
 
Question 24 – the annual report contains a next steps section that outlines areas where we 
want to improve or change what we do. Although this is not specifically an action plan – we 
can prepare on based on this assessment once complete. 
Agree for the need of a prioritised action plan for each year. This is all inward looking, do we get any 
key themes from other Forces, nationally or national/regional Chairs of Audit meetings? 

I would find it useful to see where we are lacking on our skills/experience matrix as I’m not sure 
where our weaknesses are? Is this something that could be shared? [LG] 
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Self-assessment of good 
practice  

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set 
out in CIPFA’s Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has 
a high degree of performance against the good practice principles, then it is an 
indicator that the committee is soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable 
membership. These are the essential factors in developing an effective audit 
committee.  

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee 
work programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual report.  

 
 Good practice questions  Yes Partly No 
 Audit committee purpose and governance    
1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? ☑   
2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? (applicable 

to local government only) Direct access to PCC & CC 
☑   

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement? 

☑   

4 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement? 

 ☑  

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance? 

☑   

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily? 

 ☑  

 Functions of the committee    
7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core 

areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement? 
• Good governance 
• Assurance framework including partnerships and 

collaboration arrangements 
• Internal audit 
• External audit 
• Financial reporting 
• Risk management 
• Value for money or best value 
• Counter fraud 
• Ethical framework 

 

 

 

☑ 

☑ 

☑ 

☑ 

☑ 

☑ 

 

☑ 

☑ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

☑ 

 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee 
is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate consideration 
has been given to all core areas? (see comments) 

☑   
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 Good practice questions  Yes Partly No 
9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in 

CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would be appropriate for 
the committee to undertake them? (see comments) 

 ☑  

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans 
in place to address this? (see comments) 

☑   

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking on any 
decision-making powers that are not in line with its core purpose? 

☑   

 Membership and support    
12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the 

committee been selected?  
This should include:  

• separation from the executive  
• an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 

membership  
• a size of committee that is not unwieldy  
• consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least one 

independent member (where it is not already a mandatory 
requirement)  

(see comments) 

☑   

13 Have independent members appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent way and approved by the full 
council or the PCC and chief constable as appropriate for the 
organisation? 

☑   

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and 
skills? 

☑   

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings 
and training? 
(see comments) 

☑   

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the 
core knowledge and skills framework and found to be satisfactory? 

☑   

17 Does the committee have good working relations with key people 
and organisations, including external audit, internal audit and the 
CFO? 
(see comments – discuss further at meeting) 

☑   

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee 
provided? 
 (see comments) 

☑   

 Effectiveness of the committee    
19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those 

interacting with the committee or relying on its work? 
 ☑  

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members? 

☑   

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and action 
plans with the responsible officers? 
(see comments) 

 ☑  

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the improvement of 
governance, risk and control and are these acted on? 
(see comments & discuss at meeting) 
 

 ☑  
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 Good practice questions  Yes Partly No 
23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to 

the organisation? 
(see comments & discuss at meeting) 

 ☑  

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of 
weakness? 
(see comments & discuss at meeting) 

 ☑  

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work? 

☑   
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Evaluating the effectiveness 
of the audit committee  

Assessment key  
5  Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting 

improvements across all aspects of this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable.  
4  Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting 

improvement across some aspects of this area.  
3  The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is 

some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant gaps.  
2  There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of 

this support is limited.  
1  No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area.  
 
Areas where the 
audit committee can 
add value by 
supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the 
audit committee can 
add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness  

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness 

Overall assessment: 5 
– 1 See key above 

Promoting the 
principles of good 
governance and their 
application to decision 
making  

Supporting the 
development of a local 
code of governance  
Providing robust 
review of the AGS and 
the assurances 
underpinning it  
Working with key 
members/PCC and 
chief constable to 
improve their 
understanding of the 
AGS and their 
contribution to it  
Supporting 
reviews/audits of 
governance 
arrangements  
Participating in self-
assessments of 
governance 
arrangements  
Working with partner 
audit committees to 
review governance 
arrangements in 
partnerships 
 

Not applicable?  
 
 
Done – thorough 
review 
 
To a limited extent – in 
particular we have 
challenged the content 
of the AGS in the past 
when elements 
appeared too political 
or missed out key 
elements. 
We actively review all 
audits and support 
auditors as required. 
Not applicable? 
 
Not done – we rely on 
IA to report back to us 
on collaborations. 
Possible option for 
future. Did once have 
an IA facilitated 
session for all police 
auditors so 
opportunity to meet 
and discuss. 

4  
 
Based on rigorous 
review and challenge 
given to the AGS and 
any linked reviews. 
Opportunities to 
improve around 
partnership/ 
collaboration work. 
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Areas where the 
audit committee can 
add value by 
supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the 
audit committee can 
add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness  

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness 

Overall assessment: 5 
– 1 See key above 

Contributing to the 
development of an 
effective control 
environment 

Actively monitoring 
the implementation of 
recommendations 
from auditors  
Encouraging 
ownership of the 
internal control 
framework by 
appropriate managers  
Raising significant 
concerns over controls 
with appropriate 
senior managers  
 

Yes – relatively new 
but increasingly 
effective. 
 
Yes – through 
challenge to managers 
around responses to 
recommendations. 
Not directly but raise 
concerns in meeting 
and require further 
evidence before giving 
assurance to PCC & CC 

4 – improving area 
particularly around IA 
recommendations – 
challenging original 
management 
responses, seeking 
further assurance and 
following up 
implementation. 

Supporting the 
establishment of 
arrangements for the 
governance of risk and 
for effective 
arrangements to 
manage risks 

Reviewing risk 
management 
arrangements and 
their effectiveness, eg 
risk management 
benchmarking  
Monitoring 
improvements  
Holding risk owners to 
account for 
major/strategic risks  
 

Partly – we have a 
somewhat restricted 
role around risk 
management 
(excluding operational 
risks). We do not hold 
risk owners to account 
(as some audit 
committees do).  
The risk reports are 
summaries and do not 
give a full flavour of 
the mitigating controls 
and arrangements. But 
we do scrutinise and 
challenge the risk 
reports that we 
receive. 
The attendance of the 
Deputy Chair at one of 
the risk management 
group meetings 
provides further 
assurance as to the 
robustness of internal 
risk mgmt 
arrangements. 

3 – could explore how 
we can strengthen our 
role/contribution in 
this area? 
The presentation of the 
new risk management 
system was helpful to 
understand the 
process in place– Mark 
Everby did leave an 
open invite for a 
member of JARAC to 
attend their risk 
seminar/meeting. 
Perhaps this would be 
useful for one member 
to undertake and 
report back to the rest 
of the JARAC. [LG] 
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Areas where the 
audit committee can 
add value by 
supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the 
audit committee can 
add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness  

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness 

Overall assessment: 5 
– 1 See key above 

Advising on the 
adequacy of the 
assurance framework 
and considering 
whether assurance is 
deployed efficiently 
and effectively 

Specifying its 
assurance needs, 
identifying gaps or 
overlaps in assurance  
Seeking to streamline 
assurance gathering 
and reporting  
Reviewing the 
effectiveness of 
assurance providers, 
eg internal audit, risk 
management, external 
audit  
 

The assurance 
mapping used to give 
us an overview of the 
assurance framework 
(although it needed 
refreshing). We need 
to revisit this.  
We are clear in the 
minutes as to whether 
we can take assurance 
from the evidence 
provided and request 
further assurance 
where we are unable 
to take assurance. 

3 – need to revisit the 
assurance mapping  

Supporting the quality 
of the internal audit 
activity, particularly by 
underpinning its 
organisational 
independence 

Reviewing the audit 
charter and functional 
reporting 
arrangements  
Assessing the 
effectiveness of 
internal audit 
arrangements, 
providing constructive 
challenge and 
supporting 
improvements  
Actively supporting 
the quality assurance 
and improvement 
programme of internal 
audit 

IA are externally 
appointed and have 
clear reporting lines 
which include direct 
access to the JARAC, 
PCC and CC as 
required. 
Although we have not 
formally assessed the 
effectiveness of IA we 
do this on a regular 
basis through our 
review and challenge 
of their work. In 
particular to improve 
the effectiveness of 
their reporting the 
Chair worked with IA 
and the CFOs to agree 
revised arrangements 
for reporting including 
agreeing management 
responses to IA 
recommendations. 
We are also supportive 
and contribute to IA 
planning. 

4 – looking to increase 
involvement in audit 
planning going 
forward. 
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Areas where the 
audit committee can 
add value by 
supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the 
audit committee can 
add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness  

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness 

Overall assessment: 5 
– 1 See key above 

Promoting effective 
public reporting to the 
authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and 
measures to improve 
transparency and 
accountability 

Improving how the 
authority 
discharges its 
responsibilities for 
public reporting; for 
example, better 
targeting at the 
audience, plain 
English  
Reviewing whether 
decision making 
through partnership 
organisations 
remains 
transparent and 
publicly accessible 
and encourages 
greater 
transparency  
Publishing an 
annual report from 
the committee 
 

We have had little 
involvement in public 
reporting formats. 
Summary accounts are 
not produced and the 
full accounts are not 
intelligible to anyone 
not directly connected 
with their preparation 
or audit. 
However this would 
more properly be 
something for the 
panel to consider and I 
feel is outside our 
remit. 
We do produce an 
annual report which 
goes to the SPA 

1 for the public 
reporting element but 
don’t feel this is part of 
our remit. 
This is part of 
governance 
arrangements for 
public bodies so we 
should consider 
approach and 
principles but not the 
detailed delivery. What 
do other Audit 
committees do in this 
respect? 
 
4 for our own annual 
report 
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Annex D to Report 10c

  Balances at 
31/03/19 

 Movements      
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Transfers 
Between 
Reserves         

 Contributions 
to Capital 

   Balances at 
31/03/20 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/21 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/22 

 Projected 
Movements  
(to) / from 
Revenue 

 Projected 
Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 
Balances at 

31/03/23 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
GENERAL RESERVES 5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 -                  -                  5,500,000 

EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:-
Operational Funding and Investment Reserve 4,276,487 (3,123,509) 1,000,000 2,152,978 (500,000) 1,652,978 (1,652,978) 0 0 
Carry-forwards 1,647,489       ( 531,400) 1,116,089       (133,700) 982,389          982,389           982,389           
PCC Grants & Commissioning 2,146,744       (116,000) (1,000,000) 1,030,744       (146,159) 884,585          884,585           884,585           
Total Useable:- 8,070,720 (3,770,909) 0 0 4,299,811 (779,859) 0 3,519,952 (1,652,978) 0 1,866,974 0 0 1,866,974 
Non-useable:-    
PFI - Ilkeston 1,063,054 (63,595) 999,459 (74,465) 924,994 (82,985) 842,009 (92,682) 749,327 
PFI - Derby 2,782,382 (333,443) 2,448,939 (371,188) 2,077,751 (405,762) 1,671,989 (444,405) 1,227,584 
Insurance 70,247            5,438 75,685 5,400 81,085 81,085 81,085 
Total Non-useable:- 3,915,683 (391,600) 0 3,524,083 (440,253) 0 3,083,830 (488,747) 0 2,595,083 (537,087) 0 2,057,996 
TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 11,986,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 7,823,894 (1,220,112) 0 6,603,782 (2,141,725) 0 4,462,057 (537,087) 0 3,924,970 

TOTAL RESERVES 17,486,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 13,323,894 (1,220,112) 0 12,103,782 (2,141,725) 0 9,962,057 (537,087) 0 9,424,970 

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
STATEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES AT 31 MARCH 2019 AND FORECAST LEVELS TO 31 MARCH 2023

2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23
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